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This year, one of Everbright's missions is to dedicate ourselves to
building our brand, we have adopted a clear brand positioning of
“Making Wealth Simple”. Taking the advantage of Everbright's
dominance on the cross-border financial platform and the combined
strengths of Chinese and Western corporate governance practice,
whilst at the same time asserting our dedication to cultivate globally-
minded talent, we discover the huge business opportunities brought
by the China’s economic rise, these enable us to provide our clients
with convenient, professional and practical customized solutions and
helping them to create wealth and value with ease.

We firmly believe that branding is vital for enhancing both
Everbright's image and client commitment, and we pledge to do

nou

so in the spirit of “customer-friendly”, “agile” and “pragmatic”,

specifically,

1. "Customer — Friendly”
establishing the most reliable partnerships
* Providing a cross-border financial service platform based on

— Understanding clients’ needs and

our extensive resources and social connections in both Hong
Kong and Mainland China

e Search for worldwide talents to provide domestic and foreign
investors with professional financial solutions to suit national
conditions in China and simultaneously satisfy international
standards

2. "Agile”
* Keeping a close eye on market movements, meeting clients’

- Agile, flexible and efficient operational process

needs with efficient and innovative services, and providing
clients with an attentive experience

3. "Pragmatic” — Solid foundations and sustainable development
* Providing practical and reliable solutions for all clients by fully
utilizing the strengths and reputation of our parent company
the China Everbright Group as a state-owned enterprise,
to complement our own financial strengths, excellent risk
management and corporate management systems

Moving forward, Everbright will focus on direct investment, asset
management and asset investment whilst developing fee-based
business comprising investment banking (corporate financing) and
brokerage services (wealth management). Updating our corporate
identity will complement our ongoing determination to consolidate
our existing strengths. And by incorporating the notion to “Making
Wealth Simple” in our daily operations, we strive to assist all
our clients to create wealth and value in the most relaxed and
convenient way.
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China Everbright Limited (“Everbright”; stock code: 165) is a FEXAERER QT (AL - BHR
cross-border enterprise offering diversified financial services,  $f : 165) /A — 5 ¥l & 7 £ B A9 3 30 12 44t
its parent company is the China Everbright Group. Everbright, Zi{t &@@RENEZE @ FREAFEN K
with pragmatic practices, solid financial foundation, focuses on %[ o Y AKIERIERIBEE - MIEE HEE -
developing direct investment, asset management and asset QRQAIFIREEHERE  BEBTEMEER
investment, while at the same time growing the fee-based business &7 WHEKBEKERIT(PERE) L
comprising investment banking (corporate finance) and securities A EE (M EER) SWEEEFLREEN
brokerage (wealth management). B

CHINA EVERBRIGHT LIMITED - HONG KONG BUSINESS Y KiZpy — B8 %k &EE
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EEEE
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AR

Investment
Banking
RERIT

Asset
Investment

EXERE

Engages in direct investments in Mainland China and fund management business for
institutional and individual clients.

REEREATR - RETEAMEERENESERRS -

Manages investment portfolios for institutional and individual clients.

REELREAAZEPERREMAS -

e Provides securities brokerage services for Hong Kong listed shares, China B
shares and shares listed on some overseas stock markets. Also provides services
such as margin financing, IPO subscription and placement.

e Offers 7 major foreign currencies and 6 types of cross trading and precious
metals trading services to institutional and individual investors.

e Wealth Management provides a one-stop financial services platform, offering
investment-linked and insurance-related products along with traditional financial

products.
o REHEFE - MHBERLERSIINEENENESFEERS - L ARHKRERE « #
PR BB AN A A AR A% ©

o AHBREAAREERHLEIZEEBN A ABINBRESBERXHRE
e WEEERHUUASHHETS KRERSHMERI  RURERENRRIAH
EmFER -

Acts as sponsor, lead manager or co-lead manager. In addition, it provides financial
advisory services in share placement, acquisitions, M&A, privatization and project
financing.

BELETREBA - TAEEKEIEFAEENAE - BINMREREMIEERITRYG -
FERERE - W - 70t LALNIEEBMEFHMBERIE-

Developing asset investment fund in Mainland China, investing in real estate, finance
and resources businesses.

RRAMEXRERES  WENBEEUE  2REERFER -
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
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TURNOVER
B

HK$ millionB &
5,000

4,000
3,000

2,014
2,000

2,772

4,438

OPERATING PROFIT
HERR

HK$ millionB &

2,000 1,755

1,500

1,000

534

1,000

05 06 07

TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
BERAATRRER

HK$ million B &
20,000
16,359

15,000

10,000

6,375

4,827
5,000

05 06 07

TOTAL ASSETS
mEE

HK$ millionB &
25,000

20,286
20,000

15,000
10,000 8,367

5,940
5,000

05 06 07

500

332

05 06 07

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
RRFRREGERR

HK$ millionB &
6,000

5,006
5,000

4,000
3,000
2,000
879

1,000
296

0 05 06 07

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
BREXRBT

HKS
3.5 3.17
3.0

2.5
2.0
1.5

1.0

0.5 0.19

0 05 06 07

HENARERERAR 2L FFR



4

CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEVE R

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Tang Shuangning

Zang Qiutao

Chen Shuang

Xu Haoming

Tang Chi Chun, Richard

Ng Ming Wah, Charles*

Seto Gin Chung, John*

Lin Zhijun*

Tung Iring*

Chairman
Deputy Chairman
Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

* Independent Non-executive Directors

COMPANY SECRETARY
Tang Chi Chun, Richard

REGISTERED OFFICE
Room 4001, 40th Floor
Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of Communications Company, Limited
Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

LEGAL ADVISORS
Messrs. Wilkinson & Grist

SHARE REGISTRARS

Tricor Secretaries Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITORS
KPMG

Website Address
http://www.everbright165.com.hk

Stock Code: 165

China Everbright Limited Annual Report 2007

EEENE
e
B

e

e
BT
Sz
AR
i

gER

* BUIHRTEFE

NEAMWE
TR

St 4t

=B

BRE /R
ERTERP O TE

mEE—=

FEERRIT

BITIRIT(BE)BR AT

SIBRITIRIDBR A A

BAERIT(BE)ERAF]

BAERITARAR

SRR

SRR T

BEZLRBFE
SENEEHERA
&

S2ERER285
S EEARL261E

B
SSREHHEBHR

aut

http://www.everbright165.com.hk

R 4CEE - 165

ESh
BIERE
TR,

FAis AR g



C\:HAIiRI\/IAN'S STATEMENT
FTERES

With well-defined strategies

and business plans aiming at
sustainable development and
stable growth into the future,
China Everbright Limited delivered
impressive results in 2007. We
benefited from further integration
of and positive interaction between
the economies and financial
markets of Mainland China and
Hong Kong.

REEE BRKNEERZERMIZS
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREHRES

With well-defined strategies and business plans aiming at
sustainable development and stable growth into the future,
China Everbright Limited delivered impressive results in 2007.
We benefited from further integration of and positive interaction
between the economies and financial markets of Mainland China
and Hong Kong.

The global economy saw tremendous volatility in 2007, where rapid
growth was marred by short-term corrections. The U.S. economy
experienced a significant slowdown while the E.U. maintained
steady growth. The Japanese economy remained sluggish, but
the emerging markets continued to enjoy remarkable growth. In
Mainland China, double-digit GDP growth was recorded for the
fifth year in a row as the macro-economic conditions and micro-
economic foundations continued to improve. The capital market
hailed full recovery with historical highs seen in various stock
indices. The aggregate market capitalisation of the stock markets
of Mainland China and Hong Kong surpassed their counterpart
in Japan for the first time. Locally, Hong Kong's economy had its
best year in the decade, with the unemployment rate falling to a
low of 3.6%. Trading in the stock market thrived. The Hang Seng
Index saw volatile and soared to record highs. The financial markets
of Mainland China and Hong Kong underwent further integration
following the policy encouraging share issues by H-share companies

and the relaxation of QDII rules.

China Everbright Limited Annual Report 2007
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FTERES

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively “the
Group”) realigned its growth strategies to focus on developing
direct investment, asset management and asset investment, while
at the same time growing the fee-based business comprising
investment banking (corporate finance) and securities brokerage
(wealth management). With participation to the financial markets
of both Mainland China and Hong Kong, the Group registered
substantial growth in income and profit as a result of business
expansion amid favorable market conditions and effective control
of operating costs. The Group's profit attributable to shareholders
amounted to HK$5.01 billion, a substantial increase of over 469%.
Leveraging on bullish sentiments in the stock market, the direct
investment division orchestrated the listing of three of its investment
projects. The division has become an important source of recurrent
profit for the Group. Our associate company, Everbright Securities
registered phenomenal growth in income from all sectors as it
prudently expanded its business network through the acquisition of
small-to-medium sized securities brokers to capitalise on the bullish
stock market in Mainland China. It also maintained leadership in
collective investment management and other innovative products to
position itself favorably for future new businesses. Everbright Bank
completed its financial restructuring exercise as timely State funding
had provided significant relief to the bank’s deficiency in capital
adequacy ratio. Everbright Bank also attained enhanced profitability
as well as risk control ability. As a result, the Company was able
to make a significant write-back on its investments in Everbright
Bank. The Board of Directors of the Group is pleased to declare a
final dividend of HK$0.10 per share (2006: HK$nil) to ensure that

shareholders share directly from the growth of the Company.

BN AR REMBAR(GHEAEE )
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FTERES

Looking forward to 2008, the biggest risk of the global economy
would be coming from the financial sector as the U.S. subprime
crisis continues to unfold. Its impact is far greater than previously
expected, spilling over to Europe and the emerging markets.
Meanwhile, escalating international energy and food prices will
drive global inflation. Trade protectionism will emerge amid high
economic imbalances, resulting in volatility in the global financial
markets. While these factors will increase the risk of a global
economic downturn and uncertainties, a slowdown is seen but not
an overall recession. Effects of a tightening monetary policy will
start to appear in Mainland China, where economic growth is likely
to lose some steam although the trend of “sustainable, fast and
healthy” development is expected to continue, we should be able to
see continued enhancement in the quality and benefits of economic
development. Given the circumstances in the global market and
Mainland China, we are cautiously optimistic about Hong Kong’s

economic prospects.

The restructuring of our parent company, China Everbright Group, as
well as ongoing preparations for the listing of Everbright Securities
and Everbright Bank, will lay solid foundations for the stable and
healthy development of the Group. Adhering to our development
strategies, we will continue to work closely with fellow Everbright
companies in Mainland China amid opportunities and challenges
in 2008, to develop cross-border business platforms, to increase
our market share in Hong Kong, to further strengthen internal risk
management, to enhance our corporate image and enterprise value

and to strive to achieve higher returns for our shareholders.
As the Group obtained excellent results in 2007, may | take this
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders,

clients, directors, management and staff members for their support

and contributions.
Tang Shuangning
Chairman

Hong Kong: 27 March 2008

China Everbright Limited Annual Report 2007
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g:_HIEF E\XiECUTIVE OFFICER’'S REPORT
TR R EE

* Hong Kong business achieved significant growth with net profit
increasing 146% to HK$1.32 billion

* Associate company Everbright Securities significantly boosted revenue,
contributing HK$2.03 billion to the Group's profit

*  Major progress seen in Everbright Bank’s restructuring, the Group’s stake
in Everbright Bank had a fair value of HK$3.76 billion. An amount of
HK$1.57 billion was credited through P&L for FY2007

e Profit attributable to shareholders reached a record high, increasing
469% to HK$5.01 billion compared with last fiscal year

* Final dividend of 10 HK cents per share

o EBYREHBMERE  HEERNEBR13.2(87T ' I8K146%

o BEARNALESARAKARRS - AEEHERT
B#20.3@ 7T

o NRIFITEANFENER H ArfFERENAFEBEA
BH37.6(8TT - BEE15. 7B TTHREBIALRA007FIBHRERA

o ADNRRFEIEEFNEWS0.18TT » BEFEKXIE
BR469% ' BIELFS

o KREBER10EAL



10

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S REPORT

TS S

| am pleased to report that China Everbright Limited concluded the
year 2007 with record-high results under the leadership of the Board
of Directors. All business segments achieved remarkable growth.

RESULTS OF THE GROUP

In 2007, the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group") recorded
the highest-ever profit in the Group’s history, thanks to strategic
adjustments that have resulted in a well-founded business model
as well as favorable market conditions in both Mainland China and
Hong Kong. For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group's
profit attributable to shareholders amounted to HK$5.01 billion, a
substantial increase of over 469% as compared with that of last year.
Shareholders’ equity stood at HK$16.4 billion, representing a year-
on-year increase of HK$10 billion or 156%.

Hong Kong operations

In 2007, the Group secured significant growth in its Hong Kong
operations, underpinned by more diversified sources of income
and more balanced allocation of resources among short-, medium-
and long-term investments. Apart from strategic investments,
profit from day-to-day operations (including direct investment,
asset management, securities brokerage and investment banking)
amounted to HK$1.52 billion, representing an increase of 156%
as compared with the same period last year. Profit after tax of our
Hong Kong operations (excluding non-operating factors such as
property revaluation) was HK$1.32 billion, representing an increase
of 146% year-on-year. Cost-to-income ratio remained sound at
26.9% (2006: 40.8%) and average return on shareholders’ equity was
44.0% (2006: 15.7%).

China Everbright Limited Annual Report 2007
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S REPORT

TS S

RESULTS OF THE GROUP (continued)

Hong Kong operations (continued)

2007 was a hugely rewarding year for our direct investment division,
which recorded a pre-tax profit of HK$752 million. The “Seabright
China Special Opportunities (I) Limited” (“SOF 1”) had been fully
invested and started to bear fruit as fund assets started to realise
their value with the listing of investee enterprises: China High
Speed — Transmission (658.HK) and Sunshine Paper (2002.HK) on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (Main Board) and Goldwind
Science and Technology (& EfH) (002202.CH) on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (A shares). Further, the “China Special Opportunity
Fund L.P" (“CSOF") commenced operation during the year and
investments had started with investments in stakes of certain projects
in Mainland China including an enterprise specialising in financial
data processing platforms. Asset-under-management ("AUM") of
our direct investment business grew further as funds amounting to
US$100 million were committed by U.S. clients through another
“parallel investment” fund. We locked in substantial gains from our
securities investments in Mainland China’s stock market by taking
profit when the market was at one of the high points. Incorporation
of a venture capital fund in joint venture with Zhongguancun, Beijing
(At AR BEHY) was completed during the year and project investments
had started in 2008.

At year-end, AUM of the asset management division stood at
HK$1.4 billion and pre-tax profit for the year amounted to HK$304
million, out of which management fees accounted for approximately
one-third. Our hedge fund “China Everbright Dragon Fund”
reported a pre-tax annual return of 50.3%, outperformed the 39.3%
rise of the Hang Seng Index for the year. We further expanded the
scope of our asset management business during the year to set up
managed funds for individuals at the request of several high-net-

worth customers. The results have been rewarding.

The securities brokerage division reported a pre-tax profit of HK$211
million for the year as it responded to increasing competition in the
marketplace by continuously improving its service standards. Wealth
management services were introduced during the year to enhance
the diversity of services provided to customers, while new branches
were established in North Point and Hung Hom during the year and
in early 2008 respectively. Daily average trading volume rose by
186% year-on-year, further gains in market share lifted us into the
ranks of Category B Brokers. Loan interest income, benefiting from
a marked increase in IPO activities and advances to customers, grew
by 140%. The quality of our loan portfolio remained sound.

EBEK(E)

RS FREABEREBMAIMBERKER
—F - 2FERBFIFABE7 528 o [
Bl R E 21 |(SOF \E 2SIl AR
FAER - TR E R B R EE)(658.HK) « (53¢
#5 2 (2002.HK) & & B} (002202.CH) % =
B8 B 2 BIEREER L AHRYIARK T
BEEBEZ SRS  KNEEIFPBRFRI#e
E211J(CSOF) » I B FMBIE RN A& BhEk
BEREEVYEEHEE  RRAS—[FAREIE
SR ERABTFI1BELES  #E—FEK
EEREEBNEETRERE  EHEEM
FEARNMBSFMSOERE  BARESUE
B BFRIFEIR : Bt RPANEEHE
BESHRILIEDENR  TERZFTZ)N
FHRIRTBERE -

BEBENMFREEESERE 14ET
EFEERVANBERE3.04ET - P ER
BWALME/3 > PIERIIEVEDRE ST BB
BES FERAEHRER50.3% * &R EE
BHEFI9.3%NTHE - FRE—TIHREE
BREBHE KEBESHELHNFR
REBBRUEEEAS WG RIFER
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BE2NET -FRHEUEEEEYR - B
BEPREZTIHRE - ERFAEILAR
R-ZFZENFOEAMFARS T+ BHKR
ML EFRE ETT186% - MG EE—F
£t WEABEEZET - XERIPOK
BEFERFTRBE LT EXMBBA LT
140% » EREERFTFRIFKE
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S REPORT

TS S

RESULTS OF THE GROUP (continued)

Hong Kong operations (continued)

The investment banking division completed an IPO sponsorship
during the year, namely, the listing of Shenzhen Hong Long
Properties (FIIIIEFEHBE). The division contributed a pre-tax profit
of HK$11 million from its growing private placing, financial advisory

and underwriting businesses.

We recognise that human resources are the most important
assets for a financial service company. The Group owes its sound
development to the contributions from a wealth of talents.
While acknowledging the priority of business development, the
management places a strong emphasis on professional ethics and
advocates the philosophy of “sharing value through creating value”.
The internal regime for incentive arrangement and checks-and-
balances was diligently enforced with further improvements made
during the year. Staff stability was maintained at core business teams

and lower staff turnover rate was recorded.

The Group also appreciates the importance of brand building, where
a positive image of the “Everbright” brand will help foster long-term
competitive edge and become a source of customer loyalty and staff
motivation. In this connection, an international brand consultant was
engaged during the year to conduct a comprehensive brand review
and rebranding exercise, with a view to improving the prospects of
the Company’s future development.

Everbright Securities

Mainland China’s stock market saw an outburst in trading volume
in 2007. Stock indices surged amid temporary swings. The SSE
Composite Index ended the year with a 97% gain. Taking full
advantage of the bullish sentiment, Everbright Securities ensured
substantial increase in the income and profited from its brokerage
and securities investment businesses by capturing timely trading
opportunities in the market. At the end of 2007, total assets and
shareholders’ equity of Everbright Securities based on HKFRS were
RMB13.8 billion and RMB10.7 billion respectively, while profit after
tax for the year was RMB5.1 billion, representing a 4.37 times of that
last year. Income from brokerage commission, proprietary trading
in securities, warrant launch, asset management, interest and other
income accounted for 49%, 26%, 13%, 4%, 5% and 3% respectively

of total income.

China Everbright Limited Annual Report 2007
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S REPORT
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RESULTS OF THE GROUP (continued)

Everbright Securities (continued)

Everbright Securities further expanded its sales network in the
prosperous coastal regions in 2007 following completion of the
acquisition and rebranding of Tianyi Securities, the largest securities
house in Zhejiang province. The wholly-owned Everbright Futures
Limited (¢t KEFEHPRAF]) (formerly Shanghai Nan Du Futures
Limited (L/BE#HEERA
increased to RMB150 million during the year, will be the important

Al)), whose registered capital was

platform for the financial derivative business in Mainland China
when its financial futures-related businesses are in operation. In
the asset management sector, Everbright Securities focused on
building “Everbright” into a recognised brand name in wealth
management and “Everbright |” (“[53¢—3%") and "Everbright 11" ("[5
Y Z8%") ranked top with a 15% market share among all collective
investment/money management products offered by securities
houses. Everbright Securities ranked 9th in the securities industry
in terms of trading volume in stocks, funds and warrants with a full-
year market share of 3.19% and 4th in terms of the total number of
warrants launched. Its investment banking business was awarded as
one of the Best Sponsors for Small and Medium Enterprises of Year
2007. It also ranked 4th in the investment banking sector based on
the number of issuers sponsored. Meanwhile, Everbright Securities’
risk management standards were well recognised by the regulatory
authorities, as reflected by its “grade-A, category-A” brokerage
house rating in Mainland China which gives the company a cutting
edge in seeking licenses for new businesses in future. In January
2008, Everbright Securities was granted the QDI status, putting it in
an excellent position for overseas business development.

Preparations for Everbright Securities’ A-Share listing in Mainland
China are well underway. According to an announcement published
by the Company on 27 August 2007, Everbright Securities will
issue up to 520 million new shares for listing on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Upon the listing, the Group's shareholding in Everbright
Securities is expected to be diluted down to approximately 33.33%.
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RESULTS OF THE GROUP (continued)

Everbright Securities (continued)

As at the end of 2007, Everbright Securities had a network of 76
business offices and 18 securities service offices across 23 provinces,
municipalities and autonomous regions in Mainland China.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group held 39.31% of the issued
shares of Everbright Securities.

Everbright Bank

Everbright Bank steered a significant turnaround in overall
operations and profit in 2007. Total assets of Everbright Bank
amounted to RMB739.4 billion as at the end of 2007, representing
a year-on-year growth of 24.0%. The total loan book amounted to
RMB417.4 billion, representing a year-on-year growth of 18.5%.
Profit after tax for the full year increased 90.2% to RMB5.04 billion.
Asset quality continued to improve as the non-performing loan ratio
dropped to 4.49%, a decrease of 3.09% over the year. The balance
of outstanding non-performing loans continued to fall for the third
consecutive year. The loan provision coverage ratio stood at 91.64%
as an indicator of the bank’s prudent risk management approach,
representing a significant improvement of 24.61% over the year.
Ongoing improvements in business innovation were underpinned
by the full-scale upgrade of the “Everbright” series of wealth
management products and the “Best Banking Innovation Award”
received in a poll organised by sina.com for the second year in a
row.

There was substantive progress in Everbright Bank’s restructuring
exercise in 2007. On 30 November, Central Huijin Investment Co.,
Ltd. ("Huijin Co") injected US dollars funds equivalent to RMB20
billion into Everbright Bank to give a strong boost to the bank’s
capital adequacy ratio. At present, preparations for public listing
are well underway. Following the introduction of Huijin Co as
shareholder, the Group's equity interests in Everbright Bank have
been diluted to 6.23% from 21.39%. Everbright Bank is no longer
accounted for as an associate company of the Group. The Group's
investment in Everbright Bank has been reclassified as financial in
nature and treated as available-for-sale securities. As a result of
the substantial recovery of shareholders’ equity of Everbright Bank,
the fair value of the Group's investment in Everbright Bank, which
had been written down to nil at the end of 2004, was revalued at
HK$3.76 billion as at the end of 2007. As a result, a gain of HK$699
million was recorded for 2007, being accounted for as “gain on
deemed disposal of interests in an associate.”

China Everbright Limited Annual Report 2007

RERERE
H RS (1)
BIUE—TTLHE  AKTEHERE23EE
AR R T 76R & B8R EH R

B o

AEER-_ZTTLF+_A=+—HINKE
RARAEH B #EHTTIN#939.31% ©

HARERIT

ZTEEF - R ARRTEBLEENATIG
U E - HIE—TTLFKR AR
TEEREIIVMNELARE L EFEER
24.0% « R EFRHBTELI17T4ETARE - 18
£185%  2FBERMENES04BTAR
B ER0.2% c BEEBERENE TR
B EA4.49%  LLFHTE3.09% TR
EXRTEEE-F TR FEREEBEXA
91.64% * L FHIRS24.61% » ERIKEEE T
BERR - EBBIFENIFERA  [HXE
BIRVEREEAR - WEEMFEEIR
Rk FERARIFIRIT IRE -

ZETEF R RBITREBHIERRE
EAEHEMKR -RT+—A=18 pRE
SREEREERRITER2AA]) RKXKR
TEA200BTARBEEETNES - BA
ERERBEERS  BRIEERGHEAFLE
MHIE - ELRARARE  AEEHED
HRIBITIRER21.39% B EE496.23% © %
RIBTETEBNAEENBE QR - MA
EBRMEARBITNREEENBEEE B
MIREWWRBERIHEES - BREKRIER
TRFEEZOAELDA - REA-STWF
EREREZHHBRENR-_ZZLFEHA
FEBHAZEI7.6EHET - Wl FEEE HEH
BRARERAENIOER  BZZEZLFER
HASTRIN 256 .99 BB TT -



CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S REPORT

TR S =

RESULTS OF THE GROUP (continued)
Everbright Bank (continued)

Upon completion of its financial restructuring, Everbright Bank will
remain under the common management of China Everbright Group.
Close connections will be maintained to tap vast opportunities for

joint ventures in the financial sector.

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2007, the total assets of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$20.3 billion, comprising cash on hand of
approximately HK$1.8 billion. During the year, the Group has fully
repaid the renewable term loans of HK$439 million extended by
China Everbright Holdings Company Limited. Apart from trade
liabilities in the ordinary course of business, the Group has no

material liabilities at present.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s committed borrowing
facilities amounted to approximately HK$170 million. The Group's
gearing ratio (computed as the Group's total interest bearing
liabilities divided by shareholders’ fund) was nil% as at 31 December
2007 (2006: 6.9%).

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had no material exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuations other than assets denominated in

Renminbi.

As at 31 December 2007, none of the Group's listed securities was

pledged.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities. The Group had provided guarantees in
respect of loans extended to its subsidiaries totalling approximately
HK$170 million. As at 31 December 2007, there was no outstanding
borrowings by any subsidiaries of the Group. As at 31 December
2007, the Group also provided guarantees to financial institutions
in respect of trading limits provided by them to its subsidiaries
which are engaged in the businesses of leverage forex trading and
derivatives trading. The amount of such guaranteed liabilities varies

according to the value of transactions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management is of fundamental importance to the business
operation of the Group. The major types of risk inherent in the
Group's business are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk. The Group's risk management objective is to
maximise shareholder value and to reduce volatility in earnings while

maintaining risk exposures within acceptable limits.

The Group's work in the area of risk management is facilitated
by the Risk Management Committee and the Credit Committee
while execution is carried out by the two Committees’ supervising
Risk Management and Credit Control Department. This functional
structure has the role to advise and to assist the management to
identify and assess the main risks faced by the Group’s business
in a co-ordinated manner, also to assess, identify and document
the Group's risk profile and to ensure that the business units focus,
control and systematically avoid potential risks in various areas
of business. The following is a brief description of the Group’s

approach in managing these risks.

(a) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to advances to
customers, trade and other receivables, debt investments and

unlisted derivative financial instruments.

In respect of advances to customers, the Group requires
collateral from customers before advances are granted.
Collateral normally takes the form of listed securities, cash
deposits or debt financial instruments issued by entity with high
credit rating. The amount of advance permitted depends on
the quality and value of collateral provided by the customer.
Subsequent change in value, as well as quality, of collateral is
closely monitored in order to determine whether any corrective

action is required.

China Everbright Limited Annual Report 2007
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RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade and other receivables mainly arise from the Group's
brokerage business and investment activities. Receivables
from securities brokerage customers and brokers are normally
due two days after trade date while deposits with brokers are
repayable on demand. The Group has established procedures
in the selection of brokers with sound credit ratings or

reputation.

Investments in debt instruments and unlisted derivative
financial instruments are also governed by whether the issuers
and the trade counterparties respectively have sound credit
ratings.

The Group has well defined policies in place on the setting and
approval of trading, credit and investment position limits in
order to manage its credit risk exposure and concentration. As
at balance sheet date, the Group does not have a significant
concentration of credit risk other than (i) the provision of
advances to customers, which are collaterialised by unlisted
debt securities issued by issuers with sound credit ratings, of
approximately HK$241 million (2006: approximately HK$240
million) and (ii) a Principal Guaranteed Note ("PGN") with a
remaining notional amount of HK$231 million issued by a
reputable third party with sound financial standing.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset, including derivative financial instruments,
in the balance sheet date deducting any impairment allowance.
Except for the corporate guarantee given by the Group as
set out in note 32(a), the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to
credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
the corporate guarantee at the balance sheet date is disclosed
in note 32(a).

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from advances to customers are
set out in note 18.

BRER )

(a)

FERRE)

RN R EMAR R ERRE ANEE 2 KL
EBRRELY -  BHFRLEBEPIE
WHRZ S EMETIEXREES - mEL
2 REMGR RN AT BE A ESRIEIRE - AR E
EEREREFERREREENNUE
BrEFBERRDET -

T BRI DT S BIRA T A
ERETHAR DY FAEREET
-

AEBAREZBRNATERELR
5~ ZE KRR E R E R ARSI P S
ZEERREREEEPE - RF&H -
AEER()EPERBE241ET(=
TERF - HBB240BTT) ABRIE
EFRERT I EMERESRIEM
K(i)—HHREEERREFMBRRE =
ERTRARE  HBREHRER/B
B231ELHN ABMEBRZEERRE
o

Rt s ESEERRES R
BEMEE BROETAE NFHER
FORR LA E B8 Bk T AP RE32(a) P
KENEEMEHARER  AEEY
BEREEMBERMBEAANEER AR
MEERR - RFHER  RREERR
EEEMREHATERHIE32aE) °

AEFERIBAKRENEERR - ©
BYRE18 ABRGI 3 FR

HENARERERAR 2L FFR

17



18

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S REPORT
1T ABE R EE

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly assess current and expected
liquidity requirements and to ensure that it maintains reserves
of cash and readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and

longer term.

Interest rate risk

The Group monitors its interest rate exposure regularly
to ensure that the underlying risk is monitored within an
acceptable range. Most of the Group's interest bearing assets
and liabilities are on a floating rate basis with maturity of one

year or less.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from advances to
customers, bank balances and loans from ultimate holding

company.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk primarily stems
from holdings of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies, leveraged foreign exchange trading and net
investment in foreign subsidiaries and associates. As most of
the Group's monetary assets and liabilities and net investment
in foreign subsidiaries and associates are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars or Renminbi, the
management does not consider there is any significant currency
risk. The Group has a policy not to maintain a significant
net position on leveraged foreign exchange trading and the

underlying exposure is monitored on a continuing basis.

Overall, the management monitors the Group's foreign
currency exposure closely and would consider hedging

significant currency exposure should the need arise.

China Everbright Limited Annual Report 2007
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had 179 employees. Total staff
cost for the year under review amounted to approximately HK$299
million as noted in the consolidated income statement. The Group
ensures that the remuneration packages for employees are fair
and competitive and employees’ remuneration (including salaries
and bonuses) is linked to their performance. Discretionary year
end bonuses may also be paid to employees based on individual
performance. Other benefits to employees include medical
insurance, retirement schemes and training programs. Directors
and full time employees of the Company may be granted share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the share option scheme approved by
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 24 May
2002.

PROSPECTS

A major slowdown of the U.S. economy is expected in 2008 because
of the subprime mortgage crisis which adds uncertainties to the
global financial markets. In China, the excess short-term liquidity
was rectified following a series of interest rate rises in 2007. Under a
tightening monetary policy, the economic growth in Mainland China
will slow down but healthy and sustainable growth is still expected.
Nevertheless, the bull run of the domestic stock market in 2007 is

unlikely to repeat itself in 2008.
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PROSPECTS (continued)

The Group will adjust its development strategy in 2008 in response
to intense competition in the market. We intend to leverage our
position as a leading provider of cross-border financial services in
Mainland China and Hong Kong. Our focus is on asset management,
including direct investment funds, industry-specific funds, hedge
funds and strategic investments. We will strive to increase the
size of our AUM to form a business portfolio spearheaded by
the asset management business and the fee-based business
comprising investment banking (corporate finance) and securities
brokerage (wealth management). According to the Company’s
stated strategies, the direct investment division will seek to make
prudent investments at reasonable prices targeting at projects
with proven records and growth potential. Drawing on the success
of the direct investment business, an industry-specific investment
division will be established to complement our overall business
mix. Fee-based operations such as securities brokerage, wealth
management and investment banking will be consolidated and
additional outlets are being established in Hong Kong and Macau.
Integration with Everbright Securities in relevant business segments
will be enhanced and a cross-border business platform covering
Mainland China and Hong Kong will be built to broaden sources
of the fee-based business and its market share in Hong Kong. Our
operations in equity capital markets and institutional sales will be
bolstered by the IPO sponsorship and underwriting assignments
by the investment banking division during the year. We appreciate
the importance of risk management for financial enterprises and
will ensure that all business divisions comply with internal rules and
policies and exercise due controls over credit risks, operational risks
and ethical risks. We will invest more in brand building and work to
enhance corporate transparency and market recognition. Additional
investments in information technology will also be made to ensure
that our IT networks and online trading systems are ready to meet

market requirements.

China Everbright Limited Annual Report 2007
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PROSPECTS (continued)

Upon the successful listing of its A Shares, the financial strength and
risk management of Everbright Securities will be further enhanced. It
will seek to enlarge its market share through prudent management
and moderate expansion. Active participation in novel businesses is
planned to bring its innovation capabilities into full play. Meanwhile,
there will be enormous potential for business cooperation between
Everbright Securities and the Group, as the former seeks to develop
and expand its overseas securities business by leveraging on the
Group's operating network and resources in Hong Kong. As such,
Everbright Securities will remain an important source of profit
contribution for the Group.

After completion of the financial restructuring plan, Everbright
Bank has significantly improved in terms of capital adequacy and
competitive edge. The bank intends to enhance its corporate
governance standards by introducing strategic investors with proven
strengths and promote its brand name by launching innovative
products, such as RMB wealth management services. Everbright
Bank will strive to accomplish its IPO mission within the year. We see
value of the Group's investment in the bank being better realized.

Year 2008 will be a year of stable development for the Group. We
are operating upon a solid business structure with sound financial
conditions. We will raise our level of risk control to cope with market
volatility. We strive to maintain steady profit growth in our Hong
Kong operations by improving our overall business mix, attracting
and retaining high-caliber staff as well as creating a harmonious and
progressive work environment. We have a clear brand positioning
as "making wealth simple”, our mission is to provide clients with
simple, professional and practical solutions. We are confident that
we will be able to offer the most trustworthy partnership to clients,
helping them create wealth and value with ease.

As we toast our brilliant results in the past year, | would like to
express my sincere gratitude on behalf of the management for
the support extended to us by our clients and shareholders. With
dedicated efforts, we will continue to add value for shareholders and
enhance the Group's profile as a leading provider of cross-border
financial services.

By order of the Board
Chen Shuang
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 March 2008
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to comply with establishe
corporate governance best
practice, and the Board's core
value is to protect the interests
of shareholders, customers, staff
and other stakeholders.
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GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND STRUCTURE

The Company always aims to comply with established corporate
governance best practice, and the Board’s core value is to
protect the interests of shareholders, customers, staff and other
stakeholders. It is committed to strictly abide by the laws and
regulations of Hong Kong and observing the rules and guidelines
issued by the relevant regulatory authorities such as the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”). The Company also constantly
reviews its corporate governance practices, with a view to measuring
up to international and local best practices. One of the core values
communicated within the Group is a belief that the highest standard
of integrity is essential in business.

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“the code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“the Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange for the year ended 31 December 2007.

BOARD

The Board is at the core of the Company’s corporate governance
framework, and there is clear division of responsibilities between the
Board and the Management. The Board is responsible for providing
high-level guidance and effective oversight of the Management,
generally, including:

e formulating the Group's long term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof;

®  reviewing and approving the annual business plan and financial
budget;

e approving the annual and interim reports;

e reviewing and monitoring risk management and internal

control;
e ensuring good corporate governance and compliance; and

®  monitoring performance of the Management.

OVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD (continued)

The Board authorises the Management to carry out the approved
strategies. The Management is responsible for the day-to-day
operation of the Group and is required to report to the Board. The
Board has formulated a written Board Mandate, which set out the
circumstances under which the Management should report to and
obtain prior approval from the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board

regularly reviews the Board Mandate.

To comply with the code, the positions of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Tang Shuangning and Mr.
Chen Shuang separately. Their roles are distinct and are clearly
established and stipulated in the Board’s Mandate. In short, the
Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board properly
discharges its responsibilities and conforms to good corporate
governance practices and procedures. As the Chairman of the
Board, he is also responsible for making sure that all Directors
are properly informed of important issues which the Company is
focusing on and that all directors receive accurate, timely and clear
information. The Chairman is responsible for organising the business
of the Board, ensuring its effectiveness and setting its agenda.
The Chairman facilitates the effective contribution of directors and
effective communication with shareholders. Mr. Zang Qiutao was
appointed as the Deputy Chairman of the Board on 16 August 2007
by the Company to assist the Chairman in enhancing the function of
the Board. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for providing
leadership for the management and implementing the important
policies and development strategies approved by the Board. The
Chief Executive Officer has direct management responsibility of the
Group on a day-to-day basis and is accountable to the Board for the
financial and operational performance of the Group.

Taking into consideration market practices and international best
practices in corporate governance, the Board has established
6 standing Board Committees to assist it in carrying out its
responsibilities. They are the Executive Committee, Audit and Risk
Management Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Strategy Committee and Management Committee. In
addition, the Board will, as necessary, authorise an independent
board committee comprising all the independent non-executive
Directors to review, approve and monitor connected transactions
(including the continuing connected transactions) for compliance
with the requirements of relevant laws and regulations.
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BOARD (continued)

The Board Mandate contains a well-defined terms of reference
for each of the Board Committees. The Board Committees make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters within their terms
of reference, or make decisions under appropriate circumstances
within the power delegated by the Board. Respective secretarial
supports are assigned to all the Board Committees to ensure
that each has adequate resources to discharge its responsibilities
properly and effectively. According to their mandates, the Board
and the Board Committees will review and evaluate their respective

work processes and effectiveness on an annual basis.

The Board is responsible for supervising the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with due regard to maximizing
shareholder value and enhancing corporate governance of the
Group. The role of the Board is to provide strategic guidance for the
Group and effective oversight of management.

The Board has 9 members, comprising 5 executive directors, namely,
Mr. Tang Shuangning, Mr. Zang Qiutao, Mr. Chen Shuang, Mr. Xu
Haoming and Mr. Tang Chi Chun, Richard and 4 independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Ng Ming Wah, Charles, Mr. Seto
Gin Chung, John, Dr. Lin Zhijun and Ms. Tung Iring. Mr. Richard
Tang, Mr. Charles Ng and Dr. Lin Zhijun, are directors in possession
of financial management expertise. Over one-third of the members
of the Board are independent non-executive directors. The
composition of the Board ensures the independence and objectivity
of the Board's decision-making process as well as the thoroughness
and impartiality of the Board's oversight of the Management.
The Board acts honestly and in good faith. Its decisions are made
objectively and in the best interests of the Company, with a view to
maximising long-term shareholder value and fulfilling its corporate
responsibility to other stakeholders of the Company.

All the existing independent non-executive directors of the
Company have been appointed for a fixed term, with formal letters
of appointment setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, all directors,
including the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, shall retire by
rotation at least once every three years at annual general meetings
and be eligible for re-election. All new directors appointed by
the Board are subject to re-election by shareholders at the next

following general meeting.
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BOARD (continued)

Save as disclosed below, there is no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)) among
the Board members. Mr. Tang Shuangning, Mr. Zang Qiutao and
Mr. Chen Shuang are also directors of China Everbright Holdings
Company Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company. If a
substantial shareholder or director has a potential conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board and general meeting,
relevant directors shall abstain from voting and a Board meeting
attended by independent non-executive directors who have no
material interest in the matter shall be held to disuss and vote on

the same.

The Company has in place an appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance policy to indemnify the directors for liabilities
arising out of corporate activities. The coverage and the sum insured

under the policy are reviewed on an annual basis.

To ensure that the newly appointed directors have an adequate
understanding of the Company’s business and operation, the Board

has set up an initial induction system for the directors.

A total of 7 Board meetings were held during the year with an
average attendance rate of 99%. The meeting schedule was
prepared and approved by the Board at the end of last year. The
formal notices of the regular Board meetings are sent to all directors
at least 14 days before the meeting. In general, The Board agenda
and meeting materials are dispatched to all Board members for
review at least 3 working days before the meetings. The agenda
is approved by the Chairman following consultation with other
Board members and the Management. The Board minutes are a
detailed record of all the issues considered by the Board and the
minutes approved by all the Board members are properly kept
by the Company Secretary. The Chairman of the Board will meet
independent non-executive directors in the absence of executive
Directors and the Management at least once a year. This practice
has been incorporated in the amended Working Rules of the Board.
Individual attendance records of the relevant directors in 2007 are
set out in the table at the last part of this report.

The Board has established standing Board Committees to assist it in

carrying out its various responsibilities.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Executive Committee

As the decision making body of the Company’s major affairs, the
Executive Committee, as delegated by the Board Mandate, will
call meetings from time to time to decide on major issues affecting
the Company’s operations, business and management, including
reviewing and approving the Group’s corporate goals, business
plan and major business projects submitted of the Company or
its subsidiaries. The Executive Committee comprises 4 members:
the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman of the Board, the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer. The Committee
is chaired by Mr. Tang Shuangning. Though there was no formal
meeting held during the year, the members have discussed relevant

matters from time to time.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee assists the Board
in fulfilling its oversight responsibility relating to the financial
statements, internal control, internal audit and external audit of
the Group. The Committee also assists the Board in performing its
oversight role over the Company and its subsidiaries in, amongst

others, the following areas:

® integrity of financial statements and financial reporting process;

e internal control systems;

e effectiveness of internal audit function;

® appointment of external auditors and assessment of their
qualifications, independence and performance and, with

authorisation of the Board, determination of their remuneration;

®  periodic review and annual audit of the Company’s and the
Group's financial statements;

e compliance with applicable accounting standards as well as
legal and regulatory requirements on financial disclosures;

e  review and manage major risk events; and

e corporate governance framework of the Group and

implementation thereof.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit and Risk Management Committee (continued)

The work performed by the Audit and Risk Management Committee
in 2007 included the review and, where applicable, approval of:

the Company’s Directors’ Report and financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2006 and the annual results
announcement that were recommended to the Board for
approval;

e the Company’s interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2007 and the interim results announcement that
were recommended to the Board for approval;

e the audit report and management letter submitted by the
external auditors;

e the re-appointment of external auditors, the audit fees payable
to external auditors for the annual audit and interim review; and

e the Group's internal audit plan for year 2007 and key areas of
focus identified.

In addition, pursuant to paragraph C.2 of the Code, the Audit
and Risk Management Committee conducted an annual review
of the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group.
This review covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls as well as risk management.
Upon completion of the review, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee considered that the key areas of the Group’s internal
control systems were reasonably implemented and were able to
prevent material misstatements or losses, safeguard the Group's
assets, maintain appropriate accounting records, ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and fulfil the requirements of
the Code regarding internal control systems in general. For detailed
information on this topic, please refer to the Internal Control section.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee comprises 4 members
and all of them including the chairman are independent non-
executive directors. The committee is chaired by Mr. Ng Ming
Wah, Charles who has extensive experience in financial and
financial services industry. A total of 4 Audit and Risk Management
Committee meetings were held during the year with the attendance
rate of 100%. Individual attendance records of the relevant members
in 2007 are set out in the table at the last part of this report. The
Committee’s terms of reference are available from the Company.

China Everbright Limited Annual Report 2007

OVERNANCE REPORT

EEETERISE®W)
EURAREREER(E)

Bl RRERZEEE _TTLFANT
ETEREENHMtZ(ER)

° AKANBHE-_ZEEF+-_A=+—H
ti&m%%&ﬁﬁiiﬁiﬂﬁ’ﬁ

EREESRA

° AKANBHE_ZEZ+FA=ZF+HIER
“ﬂm¢%%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ$%%ﬁ&%'
BEEEEH

I}

o AIMBESEMERMNE
K

FIRERBER

o EESMEBBHBMBORE LM TH
EESLEY e B e LR
ROBA R

. $§l_ T L FAMBITEINEE
P

AN - RIBCTFRDEC 22 BBRE - B
EEBERZBGNHAEENAFEZER
RELSAMETTFERN - AERIRE
PREEEMEE RGN BREMHE - EF -

BREEREEEE - BBERARS - B
kEBREEEZ B @R RARE AL TR

MR EERREATMNERER

IEEREHERRIBERNEL  REAEEE
ENZE  SILBNERTERERNE
18 BELEAFA(TRDPHAMEIER
MEOEF - AR ARV AERAST - J2
RN EBE AR

EZMREREEZ B RABHKBAEK -
KEBEERYABLIENTES - §AE
FRAALZENBREMELHHRPEL
AT - ERREAREEZEENAEERN
HAR4IRGE  BFEEEI00%  RZZEZT
+F - FENEEEREMNHER ﬁﬂ#éﬁ
MHEERAN - ZES  BREGENAEAAQ
REY -



>0

ORPOR

ATE G
WS =

ANV -/~

E-e

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Management Committee

As delegated by a Board Mandate approved by the Board,

the Management Committee is managing the Group’s day-to-

day management and operations and implementing the Board

Reso

lutions. Its responsibilities include the followings:

Oversee and manage the daily operations of all the business
units and back office departments of the Group, to ensure the
Group's business operations comply with the requirements of
relevant laws and regulatory bodies.

Effectively implement all the business plans, guidelines,
polices and directions resolved by the Board and/or Executive
Committee and coordinate the collaboration and cooperation

among all the business units and back office departments.

Establish and review all the operational and managerial terms
and reference of the Group, and approve all the business
manuals and operational programs thereof.

Establish internal control systems to review and prevent
material risks faced by the various business units of the Group,

including market risks, credit risks, financial risks and other risks.

Organise the implementation of the Group’s budget plan,
which includes the yearly investment budget, the yearly
revenue budget, the yearly costs budget and any other
various budget refinements; oversee the progress of the
budget implementation and report to the Board or Executive
Committee.

In year 2007, the Management Committee had 6 members

comprising 2 executive directors, the Deputy General Manager and

3 Assistant General Managers of the Company. The Committee

is ch

aired by Mr. Chen Shuang, the Chief Executive Officer of the

Company. The Management Committee usually holds meeting

every two weeks but it will also deal with matters on an ad-hoc basis as

and when necessary. 23 committee meetings were held during the

year

with the attendance rate of 100%.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is responsible for assisting the Board
in nominating the right candidates for directorship and senior
management positions as well as evaluating the competence of the
candidates to ensure that they are in line with the Group’s overall
development strategies. The committee assists the Board in fulfilling
its oversight role over the Company and its subsidiaries in, amongst

others, the following areas:

e selection and nomination of directors, Board Committee
members and certain senior management members as

specified by the Board from time to time;

. periodically review the structure, size and composition (including
skills, experience and knowledge) of directors and Board

Committee members.

e evaluate the independency of the independent non-executive
directors; and

* look out for the right candidate for directorship with
appropriate competency and provide suggestions to the Board

thereof.

Based on the successful experience in the recruitment of directors
and senior management, the Committee will first take into account
the existing skills, knowledge and experience of the Board and
the business requirements of the Group in order to determine the
key requirements for the new director and objective criteria for
selection. Such criteria will include relevant expertise, integrity,
industry experience and independence. The work performed by the

committee in 2007 included the followings:

e review matters relating to the appointment of independent

non-executive directors to the Board;

e review matters relating to appointment of the Company

Secretary; and

e review matters relating to appointment of the Chairman, the
Deputy Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee currently has 4 members comprising the
Chairman, the Deputy Chairman of the Board, and 2 independent
non-executive directors. The independent non-executive directors
represent half of the committee members. The Committee is chaired
by Mr. Tang Shuangning, the Chairman of the Board. A total of 3
Nomination Committee meetings were held during the year with
the attendance rate of 100%. Individual attendance records of the
relevant members in 2007 are set out in the table at the last part of
this report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting the Board
in overseeing the Group’s human resources and remuneration
policies. The committee assists the Board in fulfilling its supervisory
role over the Company and its subsidiaries in, among others, the

following areas:

e  setting of overall human resources strategies, basic criteria and

objective of the remuneration scheme of the Group; and
e approval of remuneration, bonuses and other benefits in kind of
directors, Board Committee members and senior management.
The work performed by the committee in 2007 included the review

and, where applicable, approval of:

° performance appraisal of the executive directors and senior

management for year 2006;

e the proposal on staff bonus (including the senior management)
for year 2006 and salary adjustment for year 2007 for the
Group;

e the incentive scheme of the Group; and

the policies on performance appraisal of staff (including senior

management), annual bonus and annual salary adjustment.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year, to ensure that the Board of Directors receives
remuneration which commesurate for the time and effort
they dedicate to the Group, the committee, in proposing the
remuneration of directors, makes reference to companies of
comparable business type or scale, and the nature and quantity
of work at both Board and Board Committee levels (including
frequency of meetings and nature of agenda items). The proposed
remuneration will be put to shareholders for final approval at
general meetings. The Remuneration Committee also determines
the specific remuneration package of executive directors and senior
management, including share options and benefits in kind. Currently
the principal components of the Company’s remuneration package
for executive directors and senior management include basic salary,
discretionary bonus and other benefits in kind. A significant portion
of the executive director’s or senior management'’s discretionary
bonus is based on the Group's and the individual's performance
during the year. The committee reviews and approves the annual
and long-term performance targets for senior management by
reference to corporate goals and objectives approved by the Board
from time to time. The committee also reviews the performance
of the senior management against the targets set on an ongoing
basis, and reviews and approves the specific performance-based
remuneration of the senior management.

The Remuneration Committee currently has 6 members comprising
the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman of the Board and 4
independent non-executive directors. The independent non-
executive directors represent over two-third of the committee
members. The Committee is chaired by Mr. Tang Shuangning,
the Chairman of the Board. A total of 2 Remuneration Committee
meetings were held during the year with an average attendance
rate of 90%. Individual attendance records of the relevant directors
in 2007 are set out in the table at the last part of this report. The
committee’s terms of reference can be obtained from the Company
Secretary.

Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee is responsible for reviewing the mid to
long term strategy and the business architecture of the Group and
making suggestions to the Board. There is a working team under
the committee to conduct support research on the market direction
of the Group and to provide update on rules and regulations.
The Strategy Committee currently has 6 members comprising: 2
executive directors and 4 independent non-executive directors. The
committee is chaired by Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John, an independent
non-executive director who has extensive experience in the financial
services sector. One Strategy Committee meeting was held during
the year of 2007. The focus of the agenda was in relation to the new
strategic positioning of the Group.
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BOARD EVALUATION

Each of the Board and Board Committees shall conduct a self-
assessment review of their own effectiveness at least once a year,
and review and amend as appropriate their mandates and working

rules according to the outcome of these self-assessments.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has devised special rules governing securities dealing
of directors in the "Employee Dealing Manual” which is more
stringent than the required standard set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
directors, the directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the said manual and the Model Code
throughout the year of 2007.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to delegated responsibility by the Board, the Audit
and Risk Management Committee reviewed and monitored the
effectiveness, independence and objectivity of KPMG, the Group's
external auditors, on their audit procedures, and the results thereof
were satisfactory. Upon the recommendation of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, the Board will propose that KPMG be re-
appointed as auditors of the Group at the Company’s 2008 annual
general meeting. Subject to authorisation by the shareholders, the
Board will authorise the Audit and Risk Management Committee to

determine the remuneration of KPMG.

For 2007, the total fee charged by KPMG was HK$3,146,000
including non-audit service fee of HK$858,000 for the review of
interim financial statements, internal control and risk assessment
review and other services. For 2006, the fee charged by KPMG for
audit and non audit services was HK$1,637,000. The increase was
mainly due to change in the scope of work, the Group's expansion
in operation and the increase in the cost of human resources of the

audit firm.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that the Group maintains
sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the Group's assets.
The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss;
to manage rather than completely eliminate the risks of system
failure, and to assist in the achievement of the Group's objectives.
In addition to safeguarding the Group's assets, it also ensures the
maintenance of proper accounting records and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations.

The Group conducts an annual review of the effectiveness of its
internal control systems covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management.
The review is conducted by making reference to the guidelines
and definitions given by the regulatory and professional bodies for
the purpose of assessing five different internal control elements,
namely, the control environment, risk assessment, control activities,
information and communication, and monitoring. The assessment
covers all the major internal controls and measures, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. The annual review is coordinated by the Group’s
Internal Audit, which, after the Management and various business
departments have performed their self-assessment, carries out
independent examination and other post-assessment work on the
review process and results. The results of the 2007 review had been
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee and the Board
considered that the key areas of the Group's internal control systems
are reasonably implemented and are able to prevent material
misstatements or losses, safeguard the Group's assets, maintain
appropriate accounting records, ensure compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, and fulfill the requirements of the Code
regarding internal control systems in general.

In addition, the key procedures that the Group has established and
implemented to provide internal controls are summarised as follows:

e The Management has established a corresponding organisation
structure and different hierarchy of duties, authorities and
responsibilities of personnels, has formulated written policies
and procedures to check and balance the authorities of
different departments, reasonally safeguards the assets and the
implementation of the internal control measures of the Group,
and operates lawfully, in compliance with laws and regulations
and under effective risk control.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

The Management draws up and continuously monitors the
implementation of the Group’s strategies, business plans and
financial budgets. The accounting and management systems
that are in place provide the basis for evaluating financial and
operational performance.

The Group has various risk management and human resources
management policies. There are specific units and personnel
that are responsible for identifying, assessing and managing
all the major risks. These include reputation, strategic, legal,
compliance, credit, market, operation, liquidity and interest
rate risks. These policies carry out their expected monitoring
function.

The Risk Management Group (“RMG”) under the Management
Committee, is responsible for discharging the core
responsibility of the risk control monitoring function of the
Group. Members of the RMG comprise various heads of
departments and the risk management and compliance
department. The RMG is responsible for supporting and
assisting management in defining and assessing the key risk
exposures of the Group’s core business and conducting the
co-ordination thereon, to define, assess and record the risk
structure of the Group and make sure the relevant business
units are aware of such issues. The RMG is chaired by an
Assistant General Manager of the Group, and will report to
Management Committee periodically. The Risk Management
Group also submits a semi-annual risk evaluation report of the
Company to the Audit and Risk Management Committee for
their review.

The Group's internal audit department independently reviews
areas including financial activities, various business units,
various kinds of risks, operations and activities. Audit reports
are directly submitted to the Audit and Risk Management
Committee. The internal audit department will closely follow
up with items which require attention and put forward
recommendations for improvement.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee reviews the
reports submitted by external auditors to the Group's
Management in connection with the annual audit as well as
the recommendations made by regulatory bodies on internal
control. Internal audit department will follow up these issues to
ensure the timely implementation of the recommendations, and
will also periodically report the status of the implementation
to the Management and the Audit and Risk Management
Committee.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board attaches a high degree of importance to continuous
communication with shareholders, especially the direct dialogue
with them at the Company’s annual general meetings. Shareholders
are therefore encouraged to actively participate in such meetings.

The Chairman of the Board, the Executive Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee as well as Chairman of
the Audit and Risk Management Committee and representatives of
KPMG were present at the Company’s 2007 annual general meeting
held on 23 May 2007 at the J.W Marriott Hotel to respond to
questions and comments raised by shareholders.

The Company has also provided additional information on the
2007 annual general meeting in a circular to shareholders. This
includes background information to the proposed resolutions and
information on the retiring and re-election of directors in order to let
all the shareholders to have knowledge of their rights and conduct
the voting with sufficient information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following statement should be read in conjunction with
the auditor’s statement of their responsibilities as set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report contained in the Annual Report
2007 of the Company. The statement is made to set out for the
shareholders the respective responsibilities of the directors and of
the auditors in relation to the financial statements.

The directors are required by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company. The financial statements should
be prepared on a going concern basis unless it is not appropriate
to do so. The directors have the responsibility for ensuring that the
Company keeps accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
which enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
directors also have general responsibilities for taking such steps as
are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The directors consider that in preparing the financial statements
in its Annual Report 2007, the Company has adopted appropriate
accounting policies which have been consistently applied with the
support of reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, and
that all accounting standards which they consider to be applicable
have been followed.
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THE ROLES OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Board believes independent non-executive directors play an
important role in corporate governance. They help to provide the
necessary checks and balances to ensure that the Group operates
in a safe and sound manner and that its interests are protected.
Independent non-executive directors can also assist by bringing
in external experience and providing objective judgment. They
are particularly important in performing a monitoring role. The
Board considers all its independent non-executive directors to be
independent in character and judgment. The Board has received
written confirmation from the independent non-executive directors
of their independence pursuant to the requirement of Rule 3.13 of

the Listing Rules.

To determine the independence of the independent non-executive
directors, the Nomination Committee is responsible for evaluating
the independence of the existing independent non-executive
directors as well as the candidates for independent non-executive
directors and making suggestion to the Board accordingly. The
Board of directors sets out a standard policy to determine the
independence of an independent non-executive directors. For
independent non-executive directors who have served more than 9
years, the Board will review the appointment every year. The Board
will review and assess his/her independence every year. Having
confirmed his/her independence, the Board will pass a formal
resolution. The relevant independent non-executive director will be
subject to rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of

the Company and the Listing Rules.

THE COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board on
all governance matters. The directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary
is undertaken by a person with relevant professional qualification
as stipulated by the Listing Rules. The Company’s Articles of
Association and the schedule of matters reserved to the Board for
decision provide that the appointment and removal of the Company

Secretary is a matter for the full Board.

Hong Kong, 27 March 2008
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ATTENDANCE

The attendance of the directors and members at board meetings

and various committee meetings is set out bellow:

Board

Directors/members Meeting
B %8 BExg
28

Tang Shuangning FE# % (Note 1 #/711) 4/5
Zang Qiutao B\ % (Note 2 f7772) 5/5
Wang Mingquan EBA# (Note 3 f/7%3) 2/2
Guo You 284 (Note 4 fifz£4) 4/4
Chen Shuang Rz 7/7
Zhou Liqun X & (Note 5 f17£5) 3/3
He Ling B (Note 6 ff1376) 1”1
Xu Haoming 1&7&87 717
Tang Chi Chun, Richard 887 (Note 7 }fi17) 5/5
Ng Ming Wah, Charles Rz 777
Seto Gin Chung, John Bl{E#RH 6/7
Lin Zhijun ME=E 6/7
Tung lring EEZ 7/7

Notes:

1.

Mr. Tang Shuangning was appointed as executive director of the
Company on 16 July 2007.

Mr. Zang Qiutao was appointed as executive director of the Company
on 6 August 2007.

Mr. Wang Mingquan resigned as executive director of the Company on
16 July 2007.

Mr. Guo You resigned as executive director of the Company on 12
October 2007.

Dr. Zhou Liqun resigned as executive director of the Company on 6
August 2007.

Ms. He Ling resigned as executive director of the Company on 16 April
2007.

Mr. Tang Chi Chun, Richard was appointed as executive director of the
Company on 27 July 2007.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS
Mr. Tang Shuangning

Chairman

Mr. Tang Shuangning, aged 53, is the Chairman of the Group and
the Chairman of the Executive Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Mr. Tang is also the Chairman of China
Everbright Group Limited, China Everbright Holdings Company
Limited, China Everbright Bank Company Limited and Everbright
Securities Company Limited. He is also the Director of Sun Life
Everbright Life Insurance Company Limited and the Chairman of
China Everbright International Limited (Stock Code: 257). He serves
as the Vice Chairman of the China Society for Finance and Banking
and the Consultant of the China Society for Investment. Prior to
joining the China Everbright Group, Mr. Tang was the Vice Chairman
of the China Banking Regulatory Commission, the Director-General
of the Banking Supervision Department |, the Director-General of
the Currency, Gold and Silver Bureau and the Director-General of
the Credit Management Division of the People's Bank of China.
He holds a Master's Degree in Economics from China North-
east University of Finance & Economics. Mr. Tang has extensive
knowledge and experience in banking and finance management. He
joined the Board in July 2007.

Mr. Zang Qiutao

Deputy Chairman

Mr. Zang Qiutao, aged 55, is the Deputy Chairman of the Board,
the Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee as well
as the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Zang is the
Vice Chairman and General Manager of China Everbright Group
Limited and China Everbright Holdings Company Limited. He is
also the Chairman of China Everbright Industry Group Limited,
China Everbright Investment Management Corporation and the Vice
Chairman of China Everbright International Limited (Stock Code:
257). Mr. Zang graduated from the Graduate School of the Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences. He was formerly Division Chief of the
State Economic Commission and Deputy Division Director of the

State Planning Commission. He joined the Board in August 2007.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Chen Shuang

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Chen Shuang, aged 40, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group, a member of the Executive Committee and the Chairman of
the Management Committee of the Company. Mr. Chen has overall
responsibility for the operation of China Everbright Limited. He is
also a director of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited and
the General Manager of the Legal Department of China Everbright
Holdings Company Limited. Mr. Chen holds a Master of Law
Degree from the East China University of Political Science and Law.
He is a qualified lawyer in the PRC and a senior economist. Prior
to joining the China Everbright Group, Mr. Chen was the Chief of
the Legal Department of Bank of Communications. He joined the
Board in August 2004. He has over 15 years extensive experience in

commercial banking and investment banking.

Mr. Xu Haoming

Mr. Xu Haoming, aged 43, is a director and President of Everbright
Securities Company Limited and a director of China Everbright
Group Limited. Mr. Xu holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Xu had worked as the Secretary General of the Office of China
Everbright Group Limited and the Secretary General of the Office
of the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors of China
Everbright Holdings Company Limited. Prior to joining the China
Everbright Group, Mr. Xu was the head of the General Administrative
Division at the Headquarter of the Bank of Communications. He
has extensive knowledge and experience in banking, securities and
investment. Mr. Xu joined the Board in June 2005.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Tang Chi Chun, Richard

Mr. Tang Chi Chun, Richard, aged 46, is the Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary of the Group. He has the
overall responsibility for supervising the financial control, credit
management and settlement and treasury management of the
Group. Mr. Tang is the chairman of the Credit Group, Deputy
Chairman of Strategic Investment Group and a member of the
Executive Committee, the Management Committee, the Risk
Management Group, the Market Information Dissemination Group
and the Equity Capital Market Group of the Company. He is also a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tang is a
Certified Public Accountant and is a graduate of the Accountancy
Department, Hong Kong Polytechnic. He is a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 17 years of
experience in audit, investment, accounting and finance. Since 1990,
Mr. Tang had been engaged as department head of the financial
and business operations of various international financial institutions.
He joined the Group in September 2005 and joined the Board in
July 2007.

Mr. Ng Ming Wah, Charles

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Ng Ming Wah, Charles, aged 58, was first appointed to the
Board as an independent non-executive director in November 1993
and has acted as the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee (previously known as the Audit Committee) of the
Company since August 1999. Mr. Ng graduated from Loughborough
University in England in 1972 with a B.Sc. degree in Electronic
and Electrical Engineering and from London Graduate School of
Business Studies in England in 1974 with a M.Sc. degree in Business
Studies. He is a director of Somerley Limited, the principal business
of which is the provision of corporate financial advisory services.
Mr. Ng has over 25 years of experience in corporate finance and
investment banking. Mr. Ng is also a non-executive director of
Goldlion (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 533) and an independent
non-executive director of each of Stone Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 409), Dalian Ports (PDA) Company Limited (Stock
Code: 2880) and China Molybdenum Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 3993).
In addition, Mr. Ng holds a number of community service positions,
including as a member of the Council of Lingnan University of Hong
Kong and a member of the Board of Governors of Hong Kong Arts

Centre.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John, aged 59, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company and the Chairman of the Strategy
Committee of the Company. Mr. Seto is a director of Pacific Eagle
Asset Management Limited. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Kowloon Development Company Limited
(Stock Code: 34) and Hop Hing Holding Limited (Stock Code: 47).
He was an independent director of Everbright Securities Company
Limited, a company registered in mainland China. He was the Chief
Executive Officer of HSBC Broking Services (Asia) Limited from
1982 to 2001 and was the chairman and a non-executive director of
International Financial Network Holdings Limited (formerly known as
“Stockmartnet Holdings Limited”), (Stock Code: 8123) from 2001 to
2005. He was a non-executive director of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (Stock Code: 388), from 2000 to 2003, a council
member of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong from 1994 to 2000
and was the first vice chairman of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
from 1997 to 2000. He holds a Master of Business Administration
degree from New York University, USA and has over 30 years of
experience in the securities and futures industry. Mr. Seto joined the
Board in April 2003.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Dr. Lin Zhijun

Independent Non-executive Director

Dr. Lin Zhijun, aged 53, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company. Dr. Lin is a Professor and Head of the Department
of Accountancy and Law in Hong Kong Baptist University. He is
also an independent non-executive director of Sinotruk (Hong
Kong) Limited (Stock Code: 3808), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lin holds a Master’s degree in
Science in Accounting from University of Saskatchewan in Canada
and a Doctorate’s degree in Economics (Accounting) from Xiamen
University. Dr. Lin worked as a Visiting Professor in The University of
Hong Kong and Tenured Professor in the Faculty of Management
of Lethbridge University in Canada. Dr. Lin worked at the Toronto
office of an international accounting firm (now known as “Deloitte”)
in 1982-83 and he had also been a professional consultant to an
international law firm. Dr. Lin is also a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Australian Institute of Certified
Management Accountants. He is a member of various educational
accounting associations including the American Accounting
Association, the International Association for Accounting Education
and Research and the Hong Kong Association for Accounting
Education. Dr. Lin is also an author of a series of professional articles
and books. Dr. Lin joined the Board in September 2005.

Ms. Tung Iring

Independent Non-executive Director

Madam Tung Iring, aged 47, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Ms. Tung is the operator of My Gym
Children’s Fitness Center. Ms. Tung holds a Bachelor Degree
in Economics and Mathematics from The University of Western
Ontario, Canada. Ms. Tung was employed by The Hong Kong
Exchanges & Clearing Limited from August 1992 to March 2004
with her last position being Vice President of the Listing Division.
From 1992, she worked as person-in-charge of one of the corporate
finance teams of the Main Board and from January 2000 to March
2004, she was the Head of Growth Enterprise Market Board. Prior
to that, she was financial and credit executive of several U.S. based
financial institutions including Merrill Lynch (Asia) Limited. Ms. Tung
joined the Board in July 2006.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tsang Sui Cheong, Frederick

Mr. Tsang Sui Cheong, Frederick, aged 48, is an Assistant General
Manager of China Everbright Ltd. and the chairperson of the
Group's Risk Management Committee. Mr. Tsang is a Chartered
Financial Analyst and has been a director of The Hong Kong
Society of Financial Analysts Limited since 2001. He is a holder of
a Bachelor's degree in Arts from the Wilfrid Laurier University and
Master's degree in Arts from the University of Alberta. Before joining
the Group in February 2000, he served as Head of Research for
several international brokerage firms.

Mr. Chan Kam Hop

Mr. Chan Kam Hop, aged 58, is an Assistant General Manager of
the Group. He joined the Group in May 2001 and was appointed as
the Managing Director of China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited
and China Everbright Forex & Futures (HK) Limited which are
engaged in securities brokerage, futures brokerage and leveraged
foreign exchange trading respectively. Mr. Chan has over 30
years experience in the financial and brokerage business and has
extensive experience in operations, sales and management. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chan had worked in another reputable local
brokerage firm for over 26 years.

Ms. Gan Fang

Ms. Gan Fang, aged 40, is an Assistant General Manager of the
Group, responsible for the investment banking business of the
Group. She holds a Master’'s degree in Economics from Zhongnan
University of Finance and Law and a PhD in Economics from
Graduate School, The Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. She
has over 10 years experience in investment banking and direct
investment. Prior to joining the Group, she worked in two famous
financial institutions.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
HEEHEE

The Directors hereby present their Annual Report together with
the audited financial statements of China Everbright Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in investment holding and
the provision of financial services. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

TURNOVER AND CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP
RESULTS

The turnover and contribution to operating results of the Group
by activity and geographical location are set out in note 37 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007 are
set out on page 65 of this Annual Report.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.10 per share for the year ended 31 December 2007 (2006:
Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's turnover represents the aggregate of revenue from the
sale of trading securities, interest income, dividend income, rental
income, brokerage commission and service income. Accordingly,
it is not practical to state the percentage of the sales attributable
to the Group's largest customers and percentage of the purchases
attributable to the Group's largest suppliers.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder holding
more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital has an interest
in the share capital of any of the five largest suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on page 174 of this Annual
Report.
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FIXED ASSETS

Movements in fixed assets are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at 31 December
2007 are set out on pages 175 to 176 of this Annual Report.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and associates as
at 31 December 2007 are set out in note 13 and 14 to the financial
statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the issued share capital of the Company had been
increased from 1,569,003,212 shares to 1,584,704,212 shares. The
Company issued 15,701,000 shares on the exercise of share options
granted to senior executives of the Group.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Movements in share premium and reserves during the year are set
out on pages 68 and 136 of this Annual Report.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2007
as calculated under Section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance amounted to approximately HK$208,858,000 (2006: Nil).

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within one year or on demand
are classified as current liabilities in the financial statements. No
interest was capitalised by the Group during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below is information regarding certain continuing connected
transactions which the Group is required to disclose in the
Company’s Annual Report pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

1.

After the Company’s acquisition of China Everbright Financial
Holdings Limited (“Everbright Financial”) on 31 December
1998, the provision of financial services by Everbright Financial
and its subsidiaries to China Everbright Holdings Company
Limited (“CE Holdings”, i.e the ultimate controlling shareholder
of the Company) and China Everbright International Limited
and their respective subsidiaries would constitute connected
transactions for the Company. The Stock Exchange has
granted a waiver to the Company from strict compliance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules in relation to connected
transactions subject to certain disclosure requirements (the
"General Waiver”).

The details of these transactions during the year ended 31
December 2007 are set out as follows:

Management of funds of EEKAEBHNES -
CE Holdings by way of
investing, into China

Everbright Dragon Fund,
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a private fund established by (iF1)
the Group (the “Dragon Fund
Investment”) (Note 1)

Management fee received from REERESREME
CE Holdings in respect of the HAREENEERE
Dragon Fund Investment (#1)

(Note 1)

Performance fee received from CE
Holdings in respect of the Dragon
Fund Investment (Note 1)

HREBMHERE
(i#1)

Incentive fee income received from
CE Holdings for provision of
investment management services
(Note 1)

RREE R RN E
(1)

Rental expense paid to a wholly RIREIERABIRFEZ
owned subsidiary of the ultimate

holding company (Note 2) (it2)

Note 1: Also refer to Note 31(a)(i) to the financial statements.

Note 2:  Also refer to Note 31(a)(v) to the financial statements.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

2.

Apart from the above transactions under the General Waiver,
set out below is information in relation to certain continuing
connected transactions entered into by the Group and required
under the Listing Rules to be disclosed in the Annual Report of
the Company:

a) On 5 February 2007, CEL Management Services Limited
("CELMS"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tenancy agreement with Lane Bright
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CE Holdings, in
respect of leasing office premises situated on 36th Floor,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
a term of 2 years from 31 December 2006 to 30 December
2008 at a monthly rental of HK$410,400, exclusive of rates
and management fees and other charges. The aforesaid
tenancy agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

In 2007, the total rental expenses incurred by CELMS
under the aforesaid tenancy agreement amounted to
approximately HK$4,938,000. (Please also refer to note
31(a)(v) to the Financial Statements.)

b) On 4 September 2006, CEL Management Services Limited
("CELMS"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tenancy agreement with Newepoch Group
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CE Holdings, in
respect of leasing office premises situated in Room 4103-5,
41st Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong, for a term of 2 years from 1 September 2006
to 31 August 2008 at a monthly rental of HK$224,000,
exclusive of rates, management fees and other charges.
The first two months of the lease term was rent free. The
aforesaid tenancy agreement constituted a continuing
connected transaction of the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules. The Tenancy Agreement was terminated
on 30 September 2007 with a 2 months rent free period
granted by Newepoch before the date of termination.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the total rent
expenses incurred by CELMS under the aforesaid tenancy
agreement amounted to approximately HK$1,232,000.
(Please also refer to note 31(a)(vi) to the Financial
Statements.)
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued) #FERIBER S (&)

c) According to an incentive agreement dated 25 May 2007
("2007 Incentive Agreement”), which was announced on
the same date, China Everbright Assets Management
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
agreed to pay to the Investment Team through China
Forebright Investment Management Limited, a limited
company owned by the Investment Team, certain
Provisional Bonus and Actual Bonus for the period from 1
January 2007 to 31 December 2009 in the consideration
of their provision of investment advisory services to SOF,
i.e. SeaBright China Special Opportunities (I) Limited,
a closed-end investment company with limited liability

incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin Islands.

The 2007 Incentive Agreement revised the formulae
for determination and payment of the bonus to the
Investment Team and the co-investment obligations of the
Investment Team as an enhancement in risk management
measure. The agreement constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the directors, these transactions were
conducted on normal commercial terms. The independent
non-executive directors have reviewed these connected
transactions and confirmed that such transactions were entered
into on normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of
business of the Group and in accordance with the agreements
governing these transactions. Where there is no agreement,
the transactions were entered into on terms no less favourable
than the terms available to independent third parties, and the
aggregate value of such transactions did not exceed the limits
set out in Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules.

The directors have requested the auditors of the Company to
perform certain agreed audit procedures on the continuing
connected transactions and have received a letter from the

auditors as required under Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this Report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Tang Shuangning, Chairman
(Appointed on 16 July 2007)

Mr. Zang Qiutao, Deputy Chairman
(Appointed on 6 August 2007)

Mr. Chen Shuang, Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Xu Haoming

Mr. Tang Chi Chun, Richard, Chief Financial Officer
(Appointed on 27 July 2007)

Ms. He Ling
(Resigned on 16 April 2007)

Mr. Wang Mingquan
(Resigned on 16 July 2007)

Dr. Zhou Liqun
(Resigned on 6 August 2007)

Mr. Guo You
(Resigned on 12 October 2007)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ng Ming Wah, Charles

Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John

Dr. Lin Zhijun

Ms. Tung Iring

Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association provides that
any director appointed by the Board of Directors shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company,
but shall be eligible for re-election at such meeting. Accordingly,
Mr. Tang Shuangning, Mr. Zang Qiutao and Mr. Tang Chi Chun,
Richard, being directors so appointed, shall retire at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Articles 120 and 121 of the Company’s Articles of Association

provide that one-third of the directors or the nearest number to
but not exceeding one-third of the directors shall retire from office
and be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Chen Shuang and
Mr. Xu Haoming, being the longest serving directors, shall retire by
rotation. They will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting.

Generally, the term of office for each independent non-executive
director is for a period of 3 years (except Mr. Ng Ming Wah, Charles
who has served more than 9 years for a term of one year) all are
subject to rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of

Association.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2007, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares of equity derivatives and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (as defined by Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in
the register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions required to be maintained under section 352 of the SFO

are as follows:

1a. Long position in shares of the Company:

EEgm)
ARAEBERBRNE 12008 R E 121168
FREBEREAFAS L =ZHz—WE
ERFEAENBBILNE 2 ERGRE
BRI EREE - Flt - AHEENES B
TEE  BEBAEBKREREBESR LB
BREERIT 2 RRBFAS LEREE -

—RIBERT  BUBILIFNTEEFNERR
=F(BRAELEFACREGEBIFMEL
HR—F5) - BRREARFAKERA]
T ERE -

EERFRTHRAERKAZRS -
BRGDER - EFRAR

RZZZLF+-A=+—H KRFAIRE
EH N AEIEPIEIS2GERERAREZEEN
TETBRAB#ER AR B MAEC R
T BREBEERFETBRABEARR R HE
ERR(EEREZLPERGIEXVER) 2B
o~ HERDBRAITETARESF 2 RN
T

la. READEBRBZEE -

% of total
issued shares
(if 0.01% or more)
Personal Family Corporate HERTRA
Total interests interests interests aygEIt
Name of director BERZ “y EARER RiEER ARERE  (fH0.01%3 L)
Tang Chi Chun, Richard BrE 406,000 406,000 - - 0.03%
Seto Gin Chung, John AR 320,000 320,000 - - 0.02%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

1b. Long position in shares of China Everbight International Ltd.

EERFRTHRAEBKAZRS -
FRGDER - EFRKXRE)

b. RAQAF zHBRAT X KEBRERAF

("CEIL"), an associated corporation of the Company ZRE

% of total
issued shares
(if 0.01% or more)
Personal Family Corporate FERTRA
Total interests interests interests BYFAL

Name of director BENZ “y BARER RIEER ARESE  (fH0.01%3 A L)
Chen Shuang BR 3% 4,500,000 4,500,000 - - 0.14%

Long position in underlying shares of equity derivatives of

the Company

RAEQATEBARSG - RETETAZRE

Number of
equity Number of
Nature of Date of derivatives held underlying Total
Name of director interest Grant BERAE shares Total Percentage
Exps BHnE RHAS fTETAMA HERO#E By #BEAL
Chen Shuang Personal & A 03.09.04 750,000 750,000
B3k Personal f& A 03.05.05 1,280,000 1,280,000 2,030,000 0.13%
Seto Gin Chung, John Personal & A 05.05.05 320,000 320,000 320,000 0.02%
RAlfERT
Tang Chi Chun, Richard Personal A 27.09.05 400,000 400,000
& Personal f& A 10.04.06 319,000 319,000 719,000 0.05%

All the above shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives
were beneficially owned by the directors concerned. The
percentage shown was calculated based on the number of

issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2007.

Details of the share options held by the directors and chief
executives of the Company are shown in the following section
under the heading “Information on Share Options”.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

2.

Long position in underlying shares of equity derivatives of
the Company (continued)

As at 31 December 2007, save as disclosed herein, none of the
directors and chief executives of the Company were interested
in short positions in the shares, underlying shares of equity
derivatives or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation defined under the SFO as recorded in the register
of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions.

Long position in underlying shares of equity derivatives of
associated corporations

As at 31 December 2007, the following directors had personal
interests in options to subscribe for shares in China Everbright
International Limited (“CEIL"), an associated corporation of
the Company. The shares of CEIL are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

EERFRTHRAEBKAZRS -
FRGDER - EFRKXRE)

RAAREBERSG - BXTEIAZR
=&
R_ZEELF+ A=+ BB EEE
HHN - NRRIRIBEFFH K B E 60T %
BIZEZERFETHAEBEZRARE
RftA - AAREZEEREBITHRAEHR
ERBARR RS EMEE AR 2R,
HERDBRAITET ARES 2 AR E
REBEATEERND - RATETLA
ZEE
R_BZE+F+-A=+—H UTE
ERABBURBRAQF ZHERGF
Bt KB BR AR AR R - HIRHD
AP T o

Number of

underlying

Exercise shares of CEIL

price (ordinary shares)
Nature of (HK$) KREEZ Total
Name of director interest 7#fE  Date of Grant Exercise period HERNEE Percentage
BEpng EEtE (&) R AH T8 (BZER) #EI
Zang Qiutao Personal 0.85 03.08.06 03.08.07-25.05.13 4,000,000 0.13%

R EA
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INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTIONS AREER

Information in relation to share options of the Company disclosed in R i& R BIFTIFFEL BRRENERIOT

accordance with the Listing Rules was as follows:

1. Outstanding share options as at 1 January 2007:

1. REZFZFLFE-A-BERITENZR
b

Exercise

Date of price

Number Grant (HK$)

of options RRE Vesting period Exercise period e

AREHE B AH BHH T (&Er)

Wang Mingquan 3,000,000 07.07.03 08.07.03-07.01.06 08.07.04-07.01.07 2.375

FegiE 1,920,000 03.05.05 04.05.05-03.11.07 04.05.06-03.05.10 2.850

Guo You 750,000 07.07.03 08.07.03-07.01.06 08.07.04-07.01.07 2.375

IR 640,000 03.05.05 04.05.05-03.11.07 04.05.06-03.05.10 2.850

Zhou Liqun 750,000 07.07.03 08.07.03-07.01.06 08.07.04-07.01.07 2.375

kv 1,920,000 03.05.05 04.05.05-03.11.07 04.05.06-03.05.10 2.850

He Ling 750,000 07.07.03 08.07.03-07.01.06 08.07.04-07.01.07 2.375

852 1,280,000 03.05.05 04.05.05-03.11.07 04.05.06-03.05.10 2.850

Chen Shuang 750,000 03.09.04 04.09.04-03.03.07 04.09.05-03.03.08 3.225

5 1,280,000 03.05.05 04.05.05-03.11.07 04.05.06-03.05.10 2.850

Tang Chi Chun, Richard 800,000 27.09.05 28.09.05-27.03.08 28.09.06-27.09.10 3.100

s 425,000 10.04.06 11.04.06-10.10.08 11.04.07-10.04.11 4.800

Seto Gin Chung, John 640,000 05.05.05 06.05.05-05.11.07 06.05.06-05.05.10 3.000
AR

Total employees 500,000 03.09.04 04.09.04-03.03.07 04.09.05-03.03.08 3.225

EEMHAE 5,032,500 03.05.05 04.05.05-03.11.07 04.05-06-03.05.10 2.850

120,000 05.05.05 06.05.05-05.11.07 06.05.06-05.05.10 3.000

820,000 04.07.05 05.07.05-04.01.08 05.07.06-04.07.10 3.135

5,775,000 10.04.06 11.04.06-10.10.08 11.04.07-10.04.11 4.800

China Everbright Limited Annual Report 2007



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EERHEE

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
2. Outstanding share options as at 31 December 2007:

wREER(®)

2. REFFLHFEFTZA=ZT—HERTE

BRI -
Exercise
Date of price
Number Grant (HK$)
of options RRE Vesting period Exercise period e
AREHR REBEH BRE TEEH GET)
Guo You 640,000 03.05.05 04.05.05-03.11.07 04.05.06-03-05-10 2.850
#FR
Chen Shuang 750,000 03.09.04 04.09.04-03.03.07 04.09.05-03.03.08 3.225
FR3k 1,280,000 03.05.05 04.05.05-03.11.07 04.05.06-03-05-10 2.850
Seto Gin Chung, John 320,000 05.05.05 06.05.05-05.11.07 06.05.06-05-05-10 3.000
Atk e
Tang Chi Chun, Richard 400,000 27.09.05 28.09.05-27.03.08 28.09.06-27.09.10 3.100
Bk 319,000 10.04.06 11.04.06-10.10.08 11.04.07-10.04.11 4.800
Total employees 500,000 03.09.04 04.09.04-03.03.07 04.09.05-03.03.08 3.225
EEMRE 2,172,500 03.05.05 04.05.05-03.11.07 04.05.06-03.05.10 2.850
410,000 04.07.05 05.07.05-04.01.08 05.07.06-04.07.10 3.135
3,700,000 10.04.06 11.04.06-10.10.08 11.04.07-10.04.11 4.800
3. No share options were granted during the year ended 31 3. BE-ZEZtF+-A=1+—HLEE

December 2007.
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4.

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTIONS (continued) AREER(®)
Number of share options exercised during the year ended 4, BE-ZEELHF+-A=+—HLEE
31 December 2007: RITENZRRERE -
WA Closing
Exercise price**(HK$)
price (HK$) T3
Date of Grant No. of Shares TEE Wi E**
BB RO#E CEr) CE7)
Wang Mingquan (Note 1) THE (71) 07.07.03 3,000,000 2375 9.09
03.05.05 1,440,000 2.850 17.6
Guo You (Note 2) BR (i#2) 07.07.03 750,000 2.375 9.09
Zhou Liqun (Note 3) LB (3) 07.07.03 750,000 2.375 9.09
03.05.05 1,440,000 2.850 17.06
He Ling (Note 4) B (it4) 07.07.03 750,000 2.375 9.09
Seto Gin Chung, John AlfERT 05.05.05 320,000 3.000 27.70
Tang Chi Chun, Richard B& (i#25) 27.09.05 400,000 3.100 23.41
(Note 5) 10.04.06 106,000 4.800 25.75
Total employees EEMEEH 03.05.05 4,140,000 2.850 18.92
05.05.05 120,000 3.000 23.95
04.07.05 410,000 3.135 9.62
10.04.06 2,075,000 4.800 23.67
Note: it:
1. Mr. Wang Mingquan, resigned as director of the Company on 16 1.  EHREEEER _TTLFLATRAFE
July 2007. RRARIES -
2. Mr. Guo You, resigned as director of the Company on 12 October 2. FRFEHABRZZZLF+ A+ ZHEHEAR
2007. DAEE -
3. Dr. Zhou Liqun, resigned as director of the Company on 6 August 3. RAYHEIERZZZLF/\AXHEHESR
2007. NRIESE -
4. Ms. He Ling, resigned as director of the Company on 16 April 4. BRZITERZZEZE+LFMNA+HEHER
2007. NRIES -
5. Mr. Tang Chi Chun, Richard, was appointed as director of the 5. HFEEER-_TTLFLA-_tTHHESE

*k

Company on 27 July 2007.

The weighted average (“WA”") closing price of the shares of the
Company immediately before the dates on which the options
were exercised.
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INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

5. No share options were cancelled during the year ended 31
December 2007.

6.  Number of share options lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2007:

RREEFR ()
5. BE-BERLF+-A=+-HILFE
Pt S B4 R AR -

6. BE_ZTTLF+-A=T-HLHEFE
RARMBRIRESHE -

Date of Grant No. of options

RHEH ARERE
Wang Mingquan TRk 03.05.05 480,000
Zhou Liqun AL EF 03.05.05 480,000

7. Valuation of share options 7. AREME
The fair value of share options granted is measured using a RN N FEBESRN B IR

Binomial Option Pricing Model based on the volatility of the
Company’s share price immediately preceding the date of
grant, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the share options were granted.

The Group amortises the fair value of share options granted
to employees as an expense in the income statement in
accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payments”. Details of
the underlying accounting policy are set out in note 2(q)(ii) to
the financial statements.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2007, none of the
directors, the chief executives or their respective associates had any
interest in the securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations or in any arrangements to which the Company is
a party to purchase shares of the Company or any other body
corporate.

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on
24 May 2002, an ordinary resolution was passed to adopt a Share
Option Scheme (“the Scheme”).

A summary of the Scheme disclosed in accordance with the Listing
Rules is as follows:

1. Purpose of the Scheme:
To provide an incentive or reward to eligible persons for their
contribution and continuing efforts in promoting the interests
of the Group.

EBELDETE - WARR BN RBAER
HAT 2 BB IR EERE - TEBNRAGT
RBRERI T A R -

RECEBMBRELERDFE 25 B
MEMN] AEEASARENRTE
BERERZNEFEER R E - 5
V& ETBUR B E TSR B R KM
FT2(q)(i) ©

BREXFBEEEN R_TZTLF+_H
=t—H BECEE T2BOBRAERE
FXRAZBEARAARRRELABER
Al ESED  HEMBEERRBREAE
A NEBRR D 2 5k

RBRETEER
ARAAR-ZEE-_FRA-FTMHEHBITZE
REFRAE LBRATRRBERURMN—RIR
EETEI([FTE1]) -

RIE EMARAIRBEN ARG EHBENT:

1. ZETEIMER :
HARKEEL TR R A KBRS
BTz EERALTIRHE IR
B o
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INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

2.

Participants of the Scheme:
Any employee(s) including any director(s) of the Company or
any subsidiary or associated company.

Total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme
and percentage of issued share capital as at 31 December
2007:

99,080,421 (6.25%)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme:
The maximum number of shares (issued and to be issued) in
respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company (whether
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) to any participants in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1 per cent of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time unless such
grant has been duly approved by ordinary resolution of the
shareholders in general meeting.

The period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option:

The exercise period of options ranges from 1 to 4 years.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised:

The vesting periods ranges from 1 to 2.5 years from the date of
grant.

(a) The amount payable on application or acceptance of
the option:
HK$1.00

(b) The period within which payments or calls must or may
be made:
Within 30 days after the date of offer

(c) The period within which loans for such purposes must
be repaid:
N/A
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INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(continued)

8. The basis of determining the exercise price:
The exercise price is determined by the directors which shall be
at least the highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; and (iii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately

preceding the date of grant.

9. The remaining life of the Scheme:
The Scheme will expire on 24 May 2012.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director offering for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not terminable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation other than the
normal statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SR RIEE ()
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2007 the following persons had an interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which must be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who were, directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other member of the group:

FERR
RZZEZ+LF+ZA=+—H8 " TIALE
KpalRh RAEROFHEEBREZES R
HEEPEXVBE2RBID MG AR Z
AR - SKERE S EEEE WS
FRER TEASBEEAEMK B AR Z K
RAE ERE 2 EMERRAEES% A
MRS

Long Position BHozEE
% of total
No. of shares issued shares
Name of shareholder beneficially held {HE 1T
BEREE EREEROEE &N
China Everbright Holdings Company Limited (Note) 867,119,207 54.72%
PELREBBR AR (M)
Datten Investments Limited (Note)(#77%) 867,119,207 54.72%
Honorich Holdings Limited 867,119,207 54.72%

Note: Honorich Holdings Limited (“Honorich”) is wholly-owned by

Datten Investments Limited (“"Datten”) which in turn is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited
("Holdings"). Accordingly, Datten and Holdings are deemed to have
the same interests in the shares of the Company as Honorich.

Save as disclosed above as at 31 December 2007, the directors
are not aware of any other persons who had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was, directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general

meetings of any other member of the group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or

sold any of the Company's securities during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company believes that upholding good corporate governance
measures is of importance to ensure effective internal control and
to protect the long term interest of the shareholders, customers,
staff and the Company. The Company complies strictly with the
applicable laws and regulations and codes and guidelines of the
regulatory authorities, and strives to follow the best international
and local corporate governance practice and to develop and

improve the corporate governance practices of the Company.

For further details, please refer to the section “Corporate

Governance Report” of this report.

AUDITORS

KPMG were first appointed auditors of the Company in 2005 upon
the retirement of PricewaterhouseCoopers. KPMG retire, and being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for their
re-appointment as auditors will be proposed at the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
During the year, the Audit and Risk Management Committee
comprised Mr. Ng Ming Wah, Charles, Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John,
Dr. Lin Zhijun and Ms. Tung Iring. The Committee is chaired by
Mr. Ng Ming Wah, Charles. All members of the Committee are
independent non-executive directors.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee and management
have reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2007. The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee and a summary of the duties discharged in 2007 have
been set out in the section “Corporate Governance Report” of this
Report.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Company provides retirement benefits to all local eligible
employees under an approved defined contribution provident
fund (“the ORSO Scheme”). The ORSO Scheme is administered
by trustees, the majority of which are independent, with its assets
held separately from those of the Company. The ORSO Scheme is
funded by contributions from employees and employers at 5% each
based on the monthly salaries of employees. Forfeited contributions
may be used to reduce the existing level of contribution by the
Company.

As from 1 December 2000, the Group also operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and not previously covered by the ORSO Scheme.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
are members of the retirement schemes operated by the local
authorities. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to these schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is
the required contributions under the schemes.

The Group's total contributions to these schemes charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year ended 31 December
2007 amounted to approximately HK$1.51 million.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
Tang Shuangning
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B XA RS

RN

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE

SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA EVERBRIGHT LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Everbright Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 65 to 173,
which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as
at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B 2B AR S

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2007 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2008
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gONéQ/LiIé)ATED INCOME STATEMENT
R

For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE-TTLF+-A=+—HLFE

2007 2006
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FisE BT T BT T
Turnover e 3 4,437,805 2,772,433
Cost of sales $HER K (3,535,655) (2,307,160)
902,150 465,273
Other income HAA 3 1,330,725 332,283
Staff costs ETEH 4 (299,287) (174,011)
Depreciation and amortisation PrEE K i g
expenses ZH (7,082) (4,596)
Other operating expenses HihZEH (171,307) (84,634)
Profit from operations 4R 2 K| 5 1,755,199 534,315
Finance costs 175 & 6 (122,780) (62,217)
Gain on deemed disposal of IEEE HEHMZS AT
interest in associates 2 2L 14 924,503 —
Share of profits less losses of JE5 2 N B & A
associates REE 14 2,906,226 538,194
Profit before taxation MR F B2 A 5,463,148 1,010,292
Income tax 18 8 (197,724) (88,338)
Profit after taxation Fi1e &R 5,265,424 921,954
Attributable to: BN
Shareholders of the Company RABIILER 5,005,592 878,976
Minority interests DER R E 259,832 42,978
5,265,424 921,954
Dividends payable to shareholders — RAZARNFIRE#FER S
of the Company attributable to FARANFIPEER :
the year:
Final dividend per share proposed  ##x HiR % &
after the balance sheet date & 10 HK$0.1058 T -
Earnings per share BB 11
— Basic —EHK HK$3.17#8 T HK$0.5678 7T
- Diluted —¥E HK$3.1438 T HK$0.56;8 7T

HENARERERAR 2L FFR
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BALANCE SHEETS

BIER

As at 31 December 2007
RZZTtF+=-A=+—H

Group Company
] |
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2007 2006 2007 2006
EEtE “EENE “EELE % i
+ZA=+-B +zZA=+—-B +=ZA=+-B +ZA=+—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i3 BETR BETT BETT BETT
Non-current assets FREEE
Fixed assets BE&E 12 271,280 262,606 1,164 930
Investments in subsidiaries BRARIRE 13(a) - = 1,604,181 1,568,181
Amounts due from subsidiaries N CENGIE 13(b) - = 2,954,359 3,031,265
[nvestments in associates A UNETPS ﬁ 14(a) 4,470,959 1,681,468 1,784,192 1,681,468
Available-for-sale securities BIHER 15 9,045,828 1,810,215 3,805,890 99,573
Financial assets designated at EEARBERARK
fair value through profit or loss ATEENSRIEE 16 665,434 219,922 - -
Intangible assets B EE 17 1,250 1,250 - =
14,454,751 3,975,461 10,149,786 6,381,417
Current assets RBEE
Advances to customers ZEEHR 18 1,600,458 901,122 - =
Amount due from ultimate FEM AR AR 1\ R SR
holding company 31(b) - 2,613 - =
Amount due from a subsidiary N CENGIE 13(b) - = 250,000 100,000
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEWERT - mERFEMTT 19 1,346,319 351,944 2,654,793 4,812
Trading securities R %% 20 1,057,748 981,872 - =
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBREEEY 21 1,826,923 2,154,365 228 235
5,831,448 4,391,916 2,905,021 105,047
Current liabilities hEEE
Creditors, deposits received and JEREER - BEdigg
accrued charges RERER 2 (815,107) (412,610) (2,800) (2,614)
Trading securities R oEE 20 (542,207) (300,641) - =
Amounts due to subsidiaries FENHBARIFIE 13(c) - = (3,442,029) (2,592,647)
Amounts due to associates D AYNEIECE] 14(d) (438) (438) (438) (438)
Loans from ultimate holding company ~ ER&EERAGZER  31(b) - (439,773) - (439,773)
Amount due to ultimate holding ENREAERDRLL
company A 31(b) - (37) - =
Provision for taxation RIB%EME 24(a) (489,055) (314,258) - =
(1,846,807) (1,467,757) (3,445,267) (3,035,472)
Net current assets/(liabilities) ERHEE/ (BF) 3,984,641 2,924,159 (540,246) (2,930,425)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 18,439,392 6,899,620 9,609,540 3,450,992
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BALANCE SHEETS

BERER

As at 31 December 2007
R-ZET+HF+-A=+—8H

Group Company
58 AR
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZETtE “TTRE it 45 3 “EERE
+=f=+-A +zZA=+-B +=B=t-R fZA=1+-H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz BETT BETT BETR BETT
Non-current liabilities FrRaaE
Note payable RES 23 (42,787) (99,573) - -
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAE 24(b) (899,021) (169,880) - =
(941,808) (269,453) - -
NET ASSETS BEE 17,497,584 6,630,167 9,609,540 3,450,992
CAPITAL AND RESERVES RAR fE
Share capital R 25 1,584,704 1,569,003 1,584,704 1,569,003
Reserves FhfE 26 14,774,268 4,806,317 8,024,836 1,881,989
Total equity attributable to BERFARRRER
shareholders of the Company 16,358,972 6,375,320 9,609,540 3,450,992
Minority interests DERRER 1,138,612 254,847 - =
TOTAL EQUITY BREE 17,497,584 6,630,167 9,609,540 3,450,992

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27
March 2008 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

Tang Shuangning
Ee=
Director

EZE

RIZBZENF=ZA-_T+LAKEFEHER

RETIEL AN TEEFRRERTE

Chen Shuang
PR3
Director

EF

HENARERERAR 2L FFR
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CON%Q\UDA%%E%) STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ARE P

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HEZZALFT-A=+—HIHFE

Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
BRNAATRR

Option ~ Investment Capital

premium  revaluation ~redemption Minority
Share Share reserve reserve reserve  Goodwill Capital  Exchange  Retained interests Total
capital ~ premium ARE & BAR  reseve  reserve  reserve  eamnings Totdl  HERR equity

BE  BAEE  OEEERE  EMRE  RORE  BEER  EARR ERRR RERN it B EESSH
HKSO0O  HKS00D  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKS00D  HKSOOD  HKS00  HKSO00  HKSO0O  HKSO000  HKSOOD  HKSO0O
AETn  RETr  BMTm  R¥Tn RETr BT RETn RETr BT E¥Tn B¥T TR

As at 1 January 2007 Z35tF-A-R 1569003 5,641,148 8702 1,097,537 2984 (3672032) 109714 62602 1535662 6375320 254847 6,630,167
Bxchange rate adjustments R :3% - = - - - - - 4918 - 4918 - 4918
Surplus on revaluation, BffiE it

net of deferred tax ke - - - 4,686,933 - - - - - 4,686,933 560,332 5,247,265

Share options forfeited RERIHE TERE - - (1,004) - - - - - it . . ;
Shares issued under share RMEIRLZARE

option scheme 15,701 51,219 (20,162) - - - - - - 46,758 - 46,758
Release upon disposal of i HERARR

available-for-sale securities - - - (298,803) - - - - - (298,803) - (298,803)
Increase in exchange reserve  F{ABAE AT ZER

on interest in associates il - = - - - - - 247,234 - 247,234 - 247,234
Share of investment revaluation FrfE& AT Z4%A

reserve of associate BfsEEEN - - - 278,730 - - - - - 278,730 - 218,730
Netinvestment by minority Y SREERE

shareholders - - - - - - - - - - 63,601 63,601
Equity setfled share-based ~ HARIR T ZBARS

transactions - - 6915 - - - - - - 6915 - 6915
Release upon deemed disposal FEE HEBANT]

of an associate BE = - - 32249 - 2741637 - (26,874)  (2,747,637) 5375 - 5375
Profit for the year AERA = = - - - - - - 5005592 5005592 259832 5265424

As at 31 December 2007 RZFELE
+

—A=t-A 1,584,704 5,692,367 14451 5,796,646 2,984 (924,395) 109,714 27880 3794621 16358972 1138612 17497584

Representing: BT
Company and subsidiaries RARRENBAR 1,584,704 5,692,367 14451 5,468,567 2,984 (924,395) 10,000 7438 1259733 13115849 1,138,612 14,254,461
Associates N - - - 328,079 - - 9,714 200442 2534888 3243123 - 3D

As at 31 December 2007 i gid
T-A=t-H 1,584,704 5,692,367 14,451 5,796,646 2984 (924,395) 109,714 207880 3794621 16358972 1138612 17497584

China Everbright Limited Annual Report 2007



CON%Q\UDA%%%) STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AR fm &

For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTLF+-_A=+—HLHFE

Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
BRNAATRR

Option ~ Investment Capital

premium  revaluation ~redemption Minority
Share Share reserve reserve reserve  Goodwill Capital ~ Exchange  Retained interests Total
capital ~ premium ARE & BAR  reseve  reserve  reserve  eamnings Totdl  HERR equity

BE  BAEE OEEERE  EMRE  RORE  BEER  EARR EXRR REEN Ait B EESSH
HKSO0O  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKS00D  HKSOOD  HKS00  HKSO00  HKSO0O  HKSO000  HKSO0D  HKS000
AETn  RETr  BMTm R¥Tn RETr BT RETn R¥Tr BT B¥Tn B¥T TR

Asat 1 January 2008 Z555-A-R 1564876 5,629,208 19,141 500,250 2984 (3,672,032) 28,066 16,557 738031 4,827,081 64,857 4891938
Bxchange rate adjustments R :3% = = - - - - - 5294 - 5294 19 5473
Surplus on revaluation, BffiE it

net of deferred tax RikFE - - - 785,584 - - - - - 785,584 3,858 789,442

Share options forfeited RERIHE TERE - - 303) - - - - - e . . ;
Shares issued under share RMEIRLZARE

option scheme 4121 11,940 (5,057) - - - - - - 11,010 - 11,010
Release upon disposal of i HERARR

available-for-sale securities - - - (205,397) - - - - - (205,397) - (205,397)
Increase in exchange reserve  F{ABAE AT ZER

on interest in associates il - = - - - - - 40,751 - 40,751 - 40,751
Share of investment revaluation Fi{sESARZ

reserve of associates REE[ERE - - - 17,100 - - - - - 17,100 - 17,100

Share of the increase in EEERTE
associates’ capitalresenve  REBBFIERZ
appropriated from the ERGEEM

associates' retained eamings - - - - - - 81,648 - (81,648) - - -
Netinvestment by minority ~ DEHREFEE

shareholders - - - - - - - - - - 142975 142,975
Equiy settled share-based LR ZRERS

fransactions - - 14921 - - - - - - 14921 - 14921
Profitforthe year RERR - - - - 5 5 5 - 896 eI M8 9219

As at 31 December 2006 RIETRE

tZA=t-A 1,569,003 5,641,148 8,702 1097537 2984 (3672032) 109714 62602 1535662 6375320 24847 6,630,167

Representing: BT
Company and subsidiaries MATREHBAR 1,569,003 5,641,148 28702 1,080,437 2984 (3,672,032 10,000 2520 1907000 6,569,762 254847 6,824,609
Associates BENT = = - 17,100 - - 99,714 60,082 (371,338) (194,442) - (194,442)

As at 31 December 2006 RIETRE
t-A=t-A 1,569,003 5,641,148 28702 1,097,537 2984 (3,672,032 109,714 62602 1535662 6375320 254,847 6,630,167
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

el TRER

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-ZTLHE+-A=T—ALFE

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt BET T BT
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM REEDEEZ
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BERHFE 36 (952,342) (449,196)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Purchase of fixed assets BERETEEE (15,877) (137,409)
Proceeds from disposal of HEBEEEE
fixed assets FriSsk08 3 12,255
Decrease/(increase) in time BEIE 2 EHFER
deposits pledged WA (38h0) 168,099 (548,069)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEHHREERS
securities (41,567) (271,215)
Purchase of financial assets BEETABBER
designated at fair value through AR THEER
profit or loss SREE (36,250) (189,013)
Proceeds from disposal of ST E A Al
subsidiaries FT{S30E 244,655 =
Proceeds from disposal of HEREHEE
available-for-sale securities Fr1S 5008 687,085 440,334
Bank interest received EHERTTHLE 73,949 102,159
Proceeds received from a BRI ERE S O5IE
finance lease - 12,305
Dividends from investments BERFEFIRERE
in securities 71,015 45,223
Dividends from an associate EEGH=UNGISS - 26,856
Capital injected into an associate EEBERE - (34,2006)
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) RETHEE RS
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BA L (GRd) B8 1,151,112 (540,780)
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) BEMBRERA (Rd)
BEFORE FINANCING ACTIVITIES HE 198,770 (989,976)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AR TNER

For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE-TTLF+-A=+—HLFE

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE BT T BT T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES &R
Issue of ordinary shares BT E B D 46,758 11,010
Issues of shares in subsidiaries to BT B AR Z IR D
minority shareholders TLHRE 311,300 142,975
Redemption of shares by minority DHPR R E R RS
shareholders (247,699) =
Repayment of loans from ultimate BEENRT&
holding company by /N (439,773) -
Dividend paid to minority IREIRB T AOBARR
shareholders (50,706) —
Issue of notes BITER - 97,541
NET CASH (OUTFLOW)/INFLOW  B&EEEELAHE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (RE) RARE (380,120) 251,526
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRBELEEYNZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS W FEE (181,350) (738,450)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REREEZEY
Beginning of year FOEH 1,606,296 2,334,389
Exchange rate adjustments [ SR B 22,007 10,357
End of year FRAEER 1,446,953 1,606,296
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF R&REEZEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EREED AT
Bank balances and cash — IRITEEBRIEIRE —
general accounts —REEF 1,826,923 2,154,365
Deposits pledged FEER 2 TR (379,970) (548,069)
End of year FRER 1,446,953 1,606,296

REDERERBRA

B ZBRFFR
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

/\\/T\ fﬁui //Zﬁ%?%

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-ZTLHE+-A=T—ALFE

2007 2006
—ETEHF —ETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cash flow from operating activities 4L &VEBIFTEE 2B MELE
includes:
Interest received on advances to [A1 &= WO 3R 2
customers and others N EH At 274,939 120,651
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES HEMRE AR
During the year the Group disposed several subsidiaries. The fair RAF - AEEHELRME AR - HEE
value of assets disposed and liabilities assumed are as follows: ERAGENAFERRET
2007 2006
—EELE —EERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Proceeds from disposal of HEME A RIS EUA
subsidiaries 247,042 —
Less: cash of subsidiaries et : (B AT ZHS (2,387)
Net disposal proceeds F B PTSRIR 244,655 -
Less: Available-for-sale securities Mg - EHEERE (10,604) -
Other debtors and prepayment FEUAR SR R TR 3R (5,186) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERE A Rl 228,865 =

China Everbright Limited Annual Report 2007



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 R M
Eﬁ@h# JaT
For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTtF+-A=+—HLFE

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Everbright Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in
Hong Kong with its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The directors of the Company consider
China Everbright Holdings Company Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, to be the ultimate holding
company of the Company and Honorich Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, to be the

immediate holding company of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Company, through its subsidiaries and associates, is
principally engaged in investment activities and the provision

of financial services.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(z) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods

reflected in these financial statements.

FEXH
RESEAERARDR([ARR )R~
FETBEMKIZORF - KRFZK
MREBEBBMARXZMERAR LM - K
NEEERRERB ML T B K
AEEBRAFR/RARFZREER
DA MERBHERBEESEMAILZ
Honorich Holdings Limited Holdings
LimitedRIRA R R Z R AR AT ©

RRBI 2 EBEBHB/REER - A7
WEBEMBARRBERTR - EITE
ZRREFHLIRBEE BRI 2 F

FEETEER

(a) FF&EEsIEH
AR IRBE B GRS RN
e ERNCERBM RS ERD
(BT enEsER e E B
BHELER) - (BEEFTERDK
2R)RE  YHE(EEARES
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2007 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred as the “Group”) and the
Group's interest in associates.

The measurement basis used in preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out

below:
- investment properties (note 2(h)); and

- financial instruments classified as trading, financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
or available-for-sale securities (note 2(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and controlled entities

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential
voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into
account. An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
from the date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and
any unrealised profits arising from intragroup transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealized gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are
not owned by the Group, whether directly or indirectly
through subsidiaries. Minority interests are presented in
the consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Minority interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement as an allocation of the total profit or loss
for the year between minority interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess,
and any further losses applicable to the minority, are
charged against the Group's interest except to the extent
that the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able
to, make additional investment to cover the losses. If
the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group's
interest is allocated all such profit until the minority’s share
of losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(m)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including participation in

the financial and operating policy decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates
under a contractual arrangement between the Group or
the Company and other parties, where the contractual
arrangement establishes that the Group or the Company
and one or more of the other parties share joint control

over economic activity of the entity.

An investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity
is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method and is initially recorded at cost
and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change
in the Group's share of the associate’s or the jointly
controlled entity’s net assets, unless it is classified as held
for sale or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale. The consolidated income statement includes
the Group's share of the post acquisition, post-tax results
of the associates and jointly controlled entities for the
year, including any impairment loss on goodwill relating to
the investment in associates and jointly controlled entities

recognised for the year (see note 2(e) and 2(m)).

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the jointly controlled entity, the Group's
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or the jointly
controlled entity. For this purpose, the Group's interest in
the associate or the jointly controlled entity is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group's long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the

associate or the jointly controlled entity.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)

(e)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint controlled
entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest
in the associate or jointly controlled entity, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in
associates and jointly controlled entities are stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(m)), unless it is classified
as held for sale or included in a disposal group that is

classified as held for sale.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity over the Group's interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2(m)). In respect
of associates or jointly controlled entities, the carrying
amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of

the interest in the associate or jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination or an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash generating unit, an associate or a
jointly controlled entity during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the

calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill on acquisitions that occurred prior to 1 January
2001 has eliminated against goodwill reserves. Such
goodwill is released from goodwill reserves to retained
earnings when all or part of the business to which the
goodwill is related to is disposed.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, are as
follows:

Trading debt and equity securities are acquired or
incurred principally for the purpose of trading, or are part
of a portfolio of identified debt and equity securities that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.

Investment in debt and equity securities are designated
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition
when these financial instruments are managed, evaluated
and reported internally on a fair value basis, and the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise.

Debt and equity securities under this category are carried
at fair value and are not allowed to be reclassified into
or out of this category while held or issued. Changes in
the fair value are include in the income statement in the
period in which they arisen. Upon disposal or repurchase,
the difference between the net sale proceeds or the net
payment and the carrying value is included in the income
statement.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

Other investments in securities are classified as available-
for-sale securities and are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet date the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised directly in the investment revaluation
reserve, except for impairment losses (see note 2(m)) and,
in the case of monetary items such as debt securities,
foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised
directly in profit or loss. Where these investments are
interest-bearing, interest calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in profit or loss. When these
investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised directly in investment revaluation

reserve is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group and/or the Company commits to purchase/ sell the

investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At each balance sheet date the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is charged immediately to profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedge the net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(l)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These

include land held for a currently undetermined future use.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

(i)

Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at
fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income
from investment properties is accounted for as described
in note 2(t)(iii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as an investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has been classified
as an investment property is accounted for as if it were
held under a finance lease (see note 2(l)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest as are
applied to other investment properties leased under
finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as
described in note 2(l).

Other property and equipment
The following items of property and equipment are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses (see note 2(m)):

-  buildings held for own use which are situated
on leasehold land, where the fair value could be
measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see note
2(1)); and

-  other items of equipment comprising leasehold
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment, and

motor vehicles.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit

or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

(k)

U]

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation
of items of property and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over

their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years

after the date of purchase

—  Leasehold improvements 5 years
- Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
—  Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on
a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and

its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets — trading rights
Trading rights are stated at cost upon initial recognition
and they are deemed to have indefinite lives and are not

amortised but are tested for impairment annually.

Leased assets

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, except
for property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under

a finance lease (see note 2(h)).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

—TTLF A= T—BLAE

(I) Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property.

(m) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-
for-sale securities are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists,
any impairment loss is determined and recognised as
follows:

-  For unquoted equity securities and current
receivables that are carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for current receivables are reversed
if in a subsequent period the amount of the
impairment loss decreases. Impairment losses
for equity securities are not reversed.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity

securities and other receivables (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these

assets).

If in a subsequent period the amount of an

impairment loss decreases and the decrease can

be linked objectively to an event occurring after the

impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss

is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an

impairment loss shall not result in the asset's carrying

amount exceeding that which would have been

determined had no impairment loss been recognised

in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that had been recognised directly in the
investment revaluation reserve is removed
from the reserve and is recognised in profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised directly in the investment

revaluation reserve.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity

securities and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are

reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify

indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

property and equipment;

pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease;

intangible assets;

investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures (except for those classified as held
for sale or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale); and

goodwill

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the assets. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

2. EEEFHBE®
(m) BEERBERK(E)

(i)

REDEARERBRR

HEEZRE (&)

B ERFE

BEZAKROSEILE
FERERE-EP IR
=E o HHAERER
ERA-BEERMHN
HERORBERBER
ZEERE R AT
KRG ARRB S REN
iﬁﬁ&fﬁ BEREE
REER I HhIB L A E Al
ﬁ%@fﬁi/mi Hr]
Y Bl & REHURIN A8 i
EFXBReRENR/NEE
He(Bl—EReLEESE

fiz) -

TIEIRKR 2 TR
EEEMREERHMEB
RIS AEEES MiﬂTW
B 5EE - AREm
WRMEEK © ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
RIBEEEBLORERR
B HAORESETRS
AEBEAL (S A BEMARR)
EECAREE - HieHi&
LE R AR A 5% B8 i (S E
B ARR) B & E R ER
HE - BEZEENKREE
ARME 8 B A& R A TER
AR A Sk (5 FE (2R ]
EERRE)

B ZBRFFR

85



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTtF+-A=+—HLFE

86

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note
2(m)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment
losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note 2(m)).

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amount of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Employee benefits

(1)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution plans and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in an option premium reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using the
binomial option pricing model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the

options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior year is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the option premium
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the option premium reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company'’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the option premium reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(r)

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised directly in equity, in which case
they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purpose and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax

losses and unused tax credits.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable

that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet

date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a

net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(®)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

(i)  Brokerage commission and service income
Brokerage commission and service income is
recognised on a trade date basis when the relevant
transactions are executed and related services are
provided.

(i) Sale of trading securities
Revenue on sale of trading securities is recognised on
a trade date basis when the relevant transactions are
executed.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

Dividends

Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss,
except those arising from foreign currency borrowings used
to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation which

are recognised directly in equity.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the

dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised directly in a separate component of equity.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign operation
acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of
the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in equity
which relate to that foreign operation is included in the

calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get

ready for its intended use or sale.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group
or exercise significant influence over the Group in
making financial and operating policy decisions, or
has joint control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under
the control, joint control or significant influence of

such individuals; or

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control
or significant influence of such individuals.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by that individual in their dealings with the
entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ik M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTLF+-A=+—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(y)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are

different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group'’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment information as the secondary
reporting format for the purposes of these financial

statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
that segment. For example, segment assets may include
trading securities, trade receivables and property and
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of
the consolidation process, except to the extent that such
intra-group balances and transactions are between Group
entities within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is
based on similar terms as those available to other external

parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the year to acquire segment assets (both tangible
and intangible) that are expected to be used for more

than one year.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax balances,

corporate and financing expenses.

Segregated accounts
Segregated accounts maintained by the subsidiaries of the
Company to hold clients’ monies are not recognised as an

asset in the financial statements.

(x)

(y)

2. FEETHBERGE)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTtF+-A=+—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(2)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs and Interpretations that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting

period of the Group and the Company.

There have been no significant changes to the accounting
policies applied in these financial statements for the years
presented as a result of these developments. However,
as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, “Financial
instruments: Disclosures” and the amendment to HKAS 1,
“Presentation of financial statements: Capital disclosures”,
there have been some additional disclosures provided as

follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial
statements include expanded disclosure about the
significance of the Group's financial instruments and the
nature and extent of risks arising from those instruments,
compared with the information previously required to be
disclosed by HKAS 32, “Financial instruments: Disclosure
and presentation”. These disclosures are provided
throughout these financial statements, in particular in
note 34.

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional disclosure
requirements to provide information about the level of
capital and the Group’s and the Company’s objectives,
policies and processes for managing capital. These new

disclosures are set out in note 25(a).

Both HKFRS 7 and amendment to HKAS 1 do not have
any material impact on the classification, recognition and
measurement of the amounts recognised in the financial

instruments.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period (see note 42).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R M o

HE-_ZTHHF+-_A=1+—ALEE

3. TURNOVER AND OTHER INCOME

Turnover and other income recognised during the year are as

3. EERFMHMWBA
RENGIR 2 ERBEEMBIALT

follows:
2007 2006
—EEF ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Turnover =2
Sale of trading securities HERZ SEEZ W AGRA
- equity securities —REESH 3,183,845 2,245,535
— debt securities —(EEES 30,212 73,269
— derivatives and others —PTET A REAM 639,124 87,366
Net unrealised gain/(loss) RPREZ
on trading investments B F e (BK)
— trading securities —RPEH 79,383 217,424
— derivatives —PTET A (225,603) (241,900)
Brokerage commission and L
service income i5 1 ON 311,088 123,097
Interest income on financial FBUWA —IERBIERS
assets not at fair value PAR B A FAEERY
through profit or loss TREE
— bank deposits —IRITFER 71,514 100,443
— advances to customers Y=L 239,863 96,905
— finance leases —REHESL - 589
— others —Hfb 35,076 23,746
Dividend income from i B U A
— listed investments — EiRE 62,454 44,945
— unlisted investments —JELFTHIRE 9,200 =
Gross rental income from REREMERS
investment properties KRUTA 1,649 1,014
4,437,805 2,772,433
Other income Heng A
Net gain on disposal of HEHEREEESZ
available-for-sale securities U ES 610,149 323,174
Realised gain on financial BT ABBEE AR
assets designated at fair NEEENEREE
value through profit or loss TR WS 215,632 —
Unrealised gain on revaluation  §7E A B Em AKX
of financial assets designated ~ ATV EEHSREE
at fair value through BHIGER
profit or loss HEIRWE 192,428 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & H}/E 2 AUz 228,865 =
Unrealised gain on note payable JENZEA A EREIR K 56,786 -
Exchange gain, net ERzR= 20,058 6,955
Surplus on revaluation of A
investment properties EfhEE 2,400 368
Gain on disposal of fixed assets H&EEEE 2Kz - 51
Recovery of doubtful debts UL [B] A BT FE
previously written off EREERE 2,369 -
Others Hih 2,038 1,735
1,330,725 332,283
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E]f N57 ¥ JaT

For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTLF+-A=+—HLFE

4. STAFF COSTS EITEH
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Salaries and allowances FrEN T & NoEBh 283,841 152,207
Share-based payments LARZ R B 1t 6,915 14,921
Staff welfare and insurance 8 TEM &RE 5,733 4,336
Staff training and recruitment B T R 1,291 1,341
Pension costs — mandatory BRIRKA - BfEE
provident fund and KRR
defined contribution plans =2 1,507 1,206
299,287 174,011
5. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS REBF
Profit from operations is stated after charging the following: KERNME MR TFER -
2007 2006
—EELHF —EETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Depreciation on owned assets ~HERETEEEFE 7,082 4,596
Operating lease rentals TR EELSE
in respect of rented premises ~ FHEME 7,716 4,614
Auditors’ remuneration TZEEN N & 3,146 1,637
Provision and write-off of RImERMEME
bad and doubtful debts PS8 ils - 833
6. FINANCE COSTS MKEA
2007 2006
—EEEHF —EERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Interest on bank loans IRITERZF B 114,322 40,843
Interest to ultimate holding BEERATERZFE
company (note 31(a)) (fF3E31(@a)) 8,458 21,374
122,780 62,217
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B 755 e Y ot

For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTLF+-A=+—HLFE

7. DIRECTORS’" AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 7.

INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ emoluments:

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161

&

(a) EEHEE :
BIEEB(AMERIDE—F N+ —

ESRBEEMEzERASHM

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: G5 ESMET -
Salaries,
allowances Share-based  Retirement
and benefit payments scheme 2007
Directors in kind Discretionary (Note 1) contributions Total
fee ¥& 2EK bonuses  LUR{AENM BfGHE  —BBLE
EEHe BNRE BT (&1) H3% At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BETT
Executive directors HITEE
Tang Shuangning (Note 2) EEB(#2) - 59 - - - 59
Zang Qiutao (Note 3) AiE(E3) - 62 - - - 62
Wang Mingquan (Note 4) THE(H) - 1,108 - 156 - 1,264
Guo You (Note 5) FR(&5) - 55 - 104 - 159
Chen Shuang (Note 6) BRER (3F6) - 885 10,500 231 = 11,616
Zhou Liqun (Note 7) EE:G) - 539 - 156 - 695
He Ling (Note 8) B (3t8) - 234 4,607 60 = 4,901
Xu Haoming foeA - 100 - - - 100
Tang Chi Chun, Richard BFEGEIR10)
(Note 9 and 10) - 626 3,679 222 5 4,532
Independent non-executive directors B 77EE
Ng Ming Wah, Charles RBREE 100 153 - - - 253
Seto Gin Chung, John AIfERRE 100 152 = 104 = 356
Lin Zhijun HHE 100 147 - - - 247
Tung Iring EFE 100 137 = = = 237
400 4,257 18,786 1,033 5 24,481

HENARERERAR 2L FFR
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E]f 197 ¥ JaT

For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_TZ+HHF+-A=+—ALLFE

7. DIRECTORS’" AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 7.

INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments: (continued)

(a) EBME: (B)

EEREEMECHEEAENEH
& ()

Salaries,
allowances Share-based  Retirement
and benefit payments scheme 2006
Directors inkind  Discretionary (Note 1) contributions Total
fee He BAR bonuses  BARR(AER BRiTE  ZEERE
BEHE EYMg EfETEA (1) 25 ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Executive directors HITEE

Wang Mingquan (Note 4) FHE(F4) - 2,095 = 1,034 = 3,129
Guo You (Note 5) BR(&5) - 100 - 345 - 445
Chen Shuang (Note 6) FR3R(36) - 880 4,800 982 - 6,662
Zhou Liqun (Note 7) B (3E7) - 915 6,500 1,034 - 8,449
He Ling (Note 8) B (:8) - 890 3,000 690 - 4,580
Xu Haoming G = 85 = = = 85

Independent non-executive directors BV HHTEE
Ng Ming Wah, Charles REE 100 165 - - - 265
Seto Gin Chung, John AIfERRE 100 175 = 364 = 639
Lin Zhijun HHE 100 165 - - - 265
Tung Wai, David (Note 11) E(N) 40 40 - 182 - 262
Tung lring EVoE 46 62 - - - 108
386 5,572 14,300 4,631 - 24,889
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTtF+-A=+—HLFE

7. DIRECTORS’" AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments: (continued)
Note:

(1

(1)

The above emoluments include the value of share options
granted to certain directors under the Company’s share
option scheme as estimated at the date of grant. Details of
the share option scheme are disclosed in note 28 and in the
directors’ report.

Mr. Tang Shuangning was appointed as executive director
and Chairman of the Company on 16 July 2007.

Mr. Zang Qiutao was appointed as executive director and
Deputy Chairman of the Company on é August 2007.

Mr. Wang Mingquan resigned as executive director and
Chairman of the Company on 16 July 2007.

Mr. Guo You resigned as executive director of the Company
on 12 October 2007.

Mr. Chen Shuang was appointed as Chief Executive Officer
on 6 August 2007.

Dr. Zhou Liqun resigned as executive director of the
Company on 6 August 2007.

Madam He Ling resigned as executive director of the
Company on 16 April 2007.

Mr. Tang Chi Chun, Richard was appointed as executive
director of the 27 July 2007.

Mr. Tang Chi Chun, Richard was appointed as Company
Secretary on 23 August 2007.

Mr. Tung Wai, David retired from the capacity of Director
with effect from 26 May 2006.

7. EEREEMECHEEASHH

& ()

(a)
(1)

(10)

(1)

BEEME - (B)

A EHME BERBEARRFNR
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B E S £ R 20078 A6 H IR R
EERTEEZHRESCRIERE -
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SR S ERR2007F 10128 B &=
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PR 5% S A 72 2007 -8 H6 H IR & T
B BB 1R2007F8 B 6 HE =
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_TZ+HF+-A=+—HLFE

7. DIRECTORS’" AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 7.
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments

ESRBEEMEzERASHM

& ()

(b) BEEMETZHBAR

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Salaries and other S N H b R B
emoluments 5,004 5,529
Discretionary bonuses BB AL 87,605 31,977
Share-based payments DARZ (D (B~ 2,075 5,355

Retirement scheme RONGTEIH TR

contributions 36 72
94,720 42,933
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
Number of directors EE A 1 2
Number of employees BEAH 4 3
5 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTLF+-A=+—HLFE

7. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 7. EEREEME 2B AEREHN

INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS (continued) cAC )
(b) Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments (continued) (b) BEEMEzABRARBGE)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: SIS AR
Number of individuals
AE
2007 2006
—EBLHF —EETRF
HK$5,000,001 to 755,000,001 to /&% 15,000,0007T
HK$15,000,000 3 4
HK$15,000,001 to 75 1#15,000,001 to 75#25,000,0007T
HK$25,000,000 1 1
HK$25,000,001 to 785 #25,000,001 to 75#£35,000,0007T
HK$35,000,000 - =
HK$35,000,001 to 75#35,000,001 to % 45,000,0007T
HK$45,000,000 1 -
5 5
During the year, no emoluments were paid to the RAFE  AEEWESABE T
five highest paid individuals (including directors and ReMEHARZALT(BEESENR
employees) as an inducement to join the Group or as 1B 8 ) LAWR 3| E AN A Sk VEBE B 18 2k
compensation for loss of office (2006: Nil). HEE(ZZTRFE - &) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

Bz

—TTLF A= T—BLAE

INCOME TAX

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 17.5%
(2006: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the
year. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is calculated at the

appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant

jurisdictions.

The amount of taxation charged/(credited) to the consolidated

income statement represents:

HIE

BBFET IR ANE 2 At AR R T
17 5%(ZFTRFE  17.5% ) 1ERTE%E
1# o BINBFI 2T - IR ARFE
TERB AR EE LS ESE 2R
IRERAE -

RirEBRRANZBIE(B1#)HEK 0
T~

2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BT
Company and subsidiaries AT RHBAF
Current taxation &R
- Hong Kong profits tax —EBNET 145,999 72,033
— Overseas taxation —BIMRIA 50,021 9,554
— (Over)/under provision —AEEBFEH (28)
in respect of Hong Kong TRZ B
profits tax in prior years (133) 9,370
Deferred taxation IRIER IR
— Deferred taxation relating to  — JEEFH I8 i 2= B A
the origination and A K el 5
reversal of temporary
differences 1,837 (2,619)
197,724 88,338
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

HE-_ZTHHF+-_A=1+—ALEE

8. INCOME TAX (continued)

BIE (47)

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from AEBRBARF 2 FIE - BRIEER
the taxation charge as follows: ZEEIT
2007 2006
—EELF —ETREF
HK$'000 HK$000
B¥T T BT
Profit before taxation MR F B2 A 5,463,148 1,010,292
Calculated at the rates IR S B AR (= i
applicable to profits e =t 8E 2 18
in the tax jurisdictions
concerned 948,807 175,295
Tax effect of income IR Z WA
not subject to taxation (850,967) (135,732)
Tax effect of expenses AR 2 X H
not deductible for
taxation purpose 11,599 3,447
Tax effect of utilisation ERARARB R 2T
of previously unrecognised
losses (2,962) (3,655)
Tax effect of tax losses and KRR 2 R R EM
other deductible temporary AR E R EEK
differences not recognised HIEE 91,380 39,613
(Over)/under provision FE(EIR) B2 EEE
in respect of prior years (133) 9,370
Taxation charge TRIEE 197,724 88,338

HENARERERAR 2L FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_TZ+HF+-A=+—HLFE

10.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 9. BRRELGEF
Net profit for the year of approximately HK$4,000,731,000 REERARE R EZFATNO BB
(2006:HK$455,344,000) has been dealt with in the financial 4,000,731,00070 ( —ZEE/NF : 4B
statements of the Company. 455,344,000 ZFEH) ERA R A Z
B SRR AEBR IR o
DIVIDENDS 10. BRE
2007 2006
—ETEHF —EERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Dividend declared after RELBBIRZENEHREE
the balance sheet date
— Final dividend, of HK$0.10 — BRI S - BERAE0.107T
(2006: HK$ Nil) (ZZTXRF  8&)
per ordinary share 158,841 -
158,841 -

The directors proposed a final dividend of HK$0.10 per
ordinary share (2006: HK$ Nil per ordinary share). The
proposed dividends are not reflected as dividend payable in

the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTLF+-A=+—HLFE

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
of HK$5,005,592,000 (2006: HK$878,976,000) and the
weighted average number of 1,579,314,372 ordinary
shares (2006: 1,566,028,602 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

1. SRER

(a)

BREREF
BREARRFEZAA AR REN
B ¥ 5,005,592,0007T (— EE
7N 7B #5878,976,0007T ) KR
FAB BT < INHEF %2
1,579,314 372 E MR (ZZTZ X
& 1,566,028,602 0% & @A) - &
=R

1.2 LR
2007 2006
—gTtE —FEX

R—HA— A2 %&TE BB

Issued ordinary shares

at 1 January 1,569,003,212 1,564,875,712
Effect of share options IT{ERRAE 2 2
exercised 10,311,160 1,152,890
1,579,314,372 1,566,028,602
Diluted earnings per share (b) EBRBEERF

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
of HK$5,005,592,000 (2006: HK$878,976,000) and the
weighted average number of 1,591,946,205 ordinary
shares (2006: 1,576,435,626 ordinary shares), calculated as
follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

EREBBEANNEHARAKREE
1 & F| 78 % 5,005,592,000 7t ( —
TE NG ¢ B 878,976,000 7T )
MERABRTERERENEESE
FEEFEMERDZMETFH R
1,591,946,205 8% F i@k (ZFZ N
1 1,576,435,626 % EEA%) - &t
R

Bin 2 I FHERE ()

2007
—EEF —EEX

Weighted average number W+=HA=+—H

of ordinary shares BETERRRGD 2
at 31 December INEE IR ER
Effect of deemed issue RBEARA T2 RIS
of shares under BREESSNeE
the Company'’s share BT 2 IREL

option scheme for
nil consideration

1,579,314,372 1,566,028,602

12,631,833 10,407,024

1,591,946,205 1,576,435,626
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTLF+-A=+—HLFE

12. FIXED ASSETS 12. BEEE
(@) Group (a) £H
Interests in Buildings Furniture,
leasehold held for fixtures,
land held for own equipment
own use under  use carried and motor
operating leases at cost Leasehold vehicles
DR E #EEA  Investment improvements #8
BEERZ EEMN  properties HE #E -3 Total
HELH RASIR  RENE NE%E kA& fit

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AR AR BT AR AT

Cost or valuation: RASRHE
At 1 January 2006 R-EE F—A—H 186,666 22,445 26,512 10,938 39,246 285,807
Additions NE 115,862 17,512 - 1,117 2,918 137,409
Disposal e = = (11,978) (123) (1,462) (13,563)
Surplus on revaluation BftiEE - - 368 - - 368
At 31 December 2006 RZBEAF+-A=1—H 302,528 39,957 14,902 11,932 40,702 410,021
Representing: ARWT
Cost R 302,528 39,957 - 11,932 40,702 395,119
Valuation EELer = = 14,902 = = 14,902
302,528 39,957 14,902 11,932 40,702 410,021
At 1 January 2007 RZEZ+F—F—H 302,528 39,957 14,902 11,932 40,702 410,021
Additions RE - - - 8,374 7,503 15,877
Disposal HE - - - (788) (325) (1,113)
Surplus on revaluation BitiEE = = 758 = = 758

At 31 December 2007 WZZZ+E+-A=1t—H 302528 39,957 15,660 19,518 47,880 425,543

Representing: AT
Cost R - - - 19,518 47,880 67,398
Valuation EXfbfE 302,528 39,957 15,660 - - 358,145

302,528 39,957 15,660 19,518 47,880 425,543
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
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12. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 12. BIEEE &)
(a) Group (continued) (a) EE (&)
Interests in Buildings Furniture,
leasehold held for fixtures,
land held for own equipment
own use under  use carried and motor
operating leases at cost Leasehold vehicles
NgeRg #EEA  Investment improvements 58
BEERAZ EEMN  properties HE #RE-RfE Total
HELH A5 REME nELE RAE ait

HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BRI BT ANt A%Tn A%Tn ERTR

Accumulated amortisation, ZREEH  HERAE :

depreciation and

impairment:

At 1 January 2006 K25, F—F—H 97,292 2,934 - 9,680 34,272 144,178
Charge for the year AEEHR 1,836 542 - 468 1,750 4,594
Written back on disposal HE o] = = = 95) (1,264) (1,359)
At 31 December 2006 RZBEAF+-A=+—-H 99,128 3476 - 10,053 34,758 147,415
At 1 January 2007 W25 t+F-F—H 99,128 3476 - 10,053 34,758 147,415
Charge for the year AEEER 2,573 812 - 1,153 2,544 7,082
Written back on disposal HE B o] = = = (143) (91) (234)
At 31 December 2007 WZEZ+E+-F=+—H 101,701 4,288 - 11,063 37,211 154,263
Net book value: BHFE

At 31 December 2007 RZEE+F+-RA=1+—H 200,827 35,669 15,660 8,455 10,669 271,280
At 31 December 2006 RZEEXF+-A=1—H 203,400 36,481 14,902 1,879 5,944 262,606
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_TZ+HF+-A=+—HLFE

12. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 12. BIEEE &)
(b) Company (b)y AT
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Motor
HE FER vehicles Total

WEHEE HERRHE RE Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT BETT BETT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2006 N=EZ F—F—H 95 2,036 2,232 4,363
Disposal HeE - - (884) (884)
At 31 December 2006 KRB FTZA=1—A 95 2,036 1,348 3479
At 1 January 2007 N-_ZZt+F—H—H 95 2,036 1,348 3,479
Additions ANE - - 687 687
At 31 December 2007 W_EE+F+-A=1—H 95 2,036 2,035 4,166
Accumulated depreciation: ZREHE :
At 1 January 2006 R-_ZE F—F—H 30 1,899 1,176 3,105
Charge for the year AEFRHR 19 39 270 328
Written back on disposal (&R I (884) (884)
At 31 December 2006 KRB FTZA=1—A 49 1,938 562 2,549
At 1 January 2007 RZZZtF—A—H 49 1,938 562 2,549
Charge for the year AEFEHR 19 39 395 453
At 31 December 2007 RZEZ+E+-A=1—H 68 1977 957 3,002
Net book value: BREFE -
At 31 December 2007 RZZZ+E+-A=1—H 27 59 1,078 1,164
At 31 December 2006 RZBEET-A=1—A 46 98 786 930
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTLF+-A=+—HLFE

12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(c)

(d)

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and buildings
and investment properties at 31 December 2007
were appraised by Messrs. S.H. Ng & Co. Limited, an
independent professional valuer in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. These properties were appraised on an
open market basis and are carried in the balance sheet at
market value.

As at 31 December 2007, had the Group's interests in
leasehold land and buildings been carried at fair value,
their carrying amount would have been HK$405,947,000
(2006: HK$271,830,000).

Investment properties of HK$15,560,000 (2006:
HK$6,856,000) of the Group are rented out under
operating leases, of which HK$6,800,000 (2006:
HK$5,650,000) are rented to the ultimate holding
company.

12. BEEE &)

(c)

AEEREAERTEAREZHE
TR EELARENFATANE
M EEHAR YRR ITR -
ET+F+_A=+—HZEBEE
il - EEMELHARFNEER -
REMENEERBRATEA
BE o

R-ZEZ+F+-_A=+—H =«
SEHETHREEENEEER
ANES R - AIEBREEE LB
405,947 00070 ( ZZZRF 498
#271,830,0007T) °

7 5 [E (& (B8 4978 ¥ 15,560,000 7T
(ZEZNF : #7581 6,856,000
T 2 EMEERIBLEHOME
o EAR47%#6,800,000T (=&
TN 478 # 5,650,000 ) E
M FHREIER A ©

The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows: (d) YEHBEEFESTOT
Group =]
2007 2006
—EBLF —ETREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Held in Hong Kong REB
- on long lease —AERHELES 218,563 221,464
— on medium-term lease — AR ER 435S 24,275 23,784
242,838 245,248
Held outside Hong Kong R&EBLIE
— on medium-term lease — AR EAFR 4035 A 9,318 9,535
9,318 9,535
252,156 254,783
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTLF+-A=+—HLFE

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND BALANCES

(a)

13. B ARARERENEQRNE

WITH SUBSIDIARIES RERFX
Investments in subsidiaries (a) HIBATRE
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Investments, at cost & - HAAE
Unlisted shares F_ETARD 1,609,081 1,573,081
Less: provision for B RERERE
impairment in value (4,900) (4,900)
1,604,181 1,568,181

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group.

TR BREREENES EEXA
BEFEZMBEAR -

Percentage of
equity interest

Particulars held by
Place of of issued  the Company
Name of subsidiary incorporation Class of shares share capital KT Principal activities
WEARER A R &R BRIRAEE EAREASM TEXK
CEL Venture Capital The PRC Not applicable HK$100,000,000 100%  Provision of investment
(Shenzhen) Limited HE TNaH 75%100,000,0007T advisory services and
EREREIFRE (RY) investment
BRAH R EBRRERIXE
CEL Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Provision of management
Services Limited E5 LEk BEIT services
KABREERBEARAA R EE RS
CEL (Secretaries) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Provision of secretarial
KRR (WE)BRAR &k LR BT services
RAHE RS
China Everbright Assets Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,000,000 100%"  Provision of asset management
Management Limited &b LA 7B 15,000,000 services
AR AEEERARAA R BEEERY
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTLF+-A=+—HLFE

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND BALANCES
WITH SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a)

13. HEBARKREREMBATRNE
HRERTR ()
M A ARE ()

Percentage of
equity interest

Particulars held by
Place of of issued  the Company
Name of subsidiary incorporation Class of shares share capital ADFFE  Principal activities
WEARER it R &R BRTRAEE EARBASM FERK
China Everbright Bullion Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100%"  Provision of bullion trading services
Investment Limited B LAk 75H1,0007 REEER SR
PEXAEEREBRAA
China Everbright Capital Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 100%"  Provision of corporate finance and
Limited investment advisory services
PEXARABRAT &R Lak 7%10,000,00070 RO RRERREERRY
China Everbright Dragon Cayman Islands Non-participating N 83.90%  Investment
Fund Limited G shares CE )
R AERESARAA E2HER
Participating US$734.63
redeemable 734637
preference shares
B2 ERRREER
China Everbright Finance ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000,000 100%'  Money lending
Limited &R LR 7%100,000,00070 xR
PERAMBERAT
China Everbright Financial ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100%"  Investment holding
Holdings Limited &E R AE1007T REHR
REXAERERER AR Non-voting HK$200,000,000
deferred shares  7%200,000,0007
ERFRELR
China Everbright Financial ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 100%"  Investment
Investments Limited Bk LAk 751,000,007 RE

PERARBREARAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

HE-_ZTHHF+-_A=1+—ALEE

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND BALANCES
WITH SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

(a)

Percentage of
equity interest

13. B DB RERENE DT HE
R (4)
M2 RRE ()

Particulars held by
Place of of issued  the Company

Name of subsidiary incorporation Class of shares share capital KAQFFME  Principal activities
WELREH it gy BRORAEE EAREASN TEXH
China Everbright Forex & ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$35,000,000 100%"  Provision of futures

Futures (HK) Limited BE LR 75#35,000,0007C brokerage and
MEIEKINE - HiE (B8) leveraged foreign

BRAF exchange trading

services
REHEEL IR
NER IR

China Everbright Wealth Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 100%  Provision of wealth management

Management Limited &5 AT 7B#500,0007T services
PEXAMEEEARAA RUHERR
China Everbright Research ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,500,000 100%"  Investment research

Limited &R Bk 75,500,007 REME
PEXAERTRARAA
China Everbright Securities  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$150,000,000 100%"  Provision of stock brokerage

(HK) Limited &k Bk 75%150,000,0007C services and margin financing
PEXARS (BR) BRA REESEERBRAREE
China Everbright Securities  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%"  Provision of nominee services

(Nominees) Limited &B LRk oL Y HRHERIBARE
PEEARES (REA)

ARAA
China Everbright Strategic  British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary Us$2 100%  Treasury management

Holdings Limited REERES LR 2% AEER
China Special Opportunities  Cayman Islands Limited Partnership Not applicable 61.50%  Investment

Fund, LP. REEE aRa% NER &
Everbright-Efund Fund Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 50%  Fund management

Management Limited Bt Lidk 751%1,000,00070 ESER
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTLF+-A=+—HLFE

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND BALANCES

WITH SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

(a)

Percentage of
equity interest

13. HEBARKREREMBATRNE
HRERTR ()
M A ARE ()

Particulars held by
Place of ofissued  the Company
Name of subsidiary incorporation Class of shares share capital ADFFE  Principal activities
WEARER it R &R BRTRAEE EAREAAL FEXRE
Dial Eight Investments British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary US$1 100%"  Investment
Limited REERRS LER E RE
Everbright Wisdom Fund Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 51%"  Fund management
Management Limited Bt Lk 751#1,000,0007C EEER
KABRESERARAA
Fortunecrest Investment Ltd.  British Virgin Islands  Ordinary US$1 100%"  Property investment
RERRRS LAk E ESE
Hairich Enterprises Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100%"  Property investment
&R LAk 710,000 ESE
IHD (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.?  Malaysia Ordinary M$25,000 100%  Investment holding
HRAR LAk 25,0005 7 RERR
Janco Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Property investment
ERERERLA &b LAk BRI ESE
Mutiplus (Warehouse) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Property investment
Limited &k LR BT NERE
R (58) ARAR
Poseidon Treasure Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%"  Provision of debt recovery services
&R Lak ¥ RERREY IR
Solidpole Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Investment holding
ERARAR &R Lak ¥ RERRK
SeaBright Asset Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 65%  Asset management
Management Limited B LR 75#1,000,00070 R EEEERE

TREEAEERARAA
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BE_TTLF+-A=+—HLFE

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND BALANCES 13. fiBEAREEREN B A ANE
WITH SUBSIDIARIES (continued) AR ()
(@) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a) MBARRE(E)

Percentage of
equity interest

Particulars held by
Place of of issued  the Company
Name of subsidiary incorporation Class of shares share capital ADFFE  Principal activities
WELATEH B R &5 BRIRAEE EARBASM FERK
Seabright China Special British Virgin Islands  Non-participating US$5 78.90%"  Investment
Opportunities () Limited ~ EB#RES shares SET RE
B2 HER
Participating US$415
redeemable 45ET
preference shares
B2 R RRELR
Trycom Management British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary US$1 100%  Investment holding
Limited EBBRAS LEk 1% REER
REBRRT
Wealthlink Pacific Ltd. British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary US$1 100%  Investment
ABERES LAk 1% REER
Well Logic Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%"  Property investment
Limited &B LEk ok Y MERE
BARERRAT
AR E R The PRC, domestic ~ Not applicable RMB1,000,000 95%'  Provision of consultancy
BRAF enterprise services and investment
mE - BELE TNER AR1,000,0007 RALH R
1. Subsidiaries held indirectly. 1. REEAZMEARF -
2. Subsidiaries not audited by KPMG. The aggregate net assets 2: 3'5?&7?%% B &% 2 MTJ%%E o JRiEE
of subsidiaries not audited by KPMG is less than 0.1% of the HRMELAON B R R FAERE

BIEEEDR0.1% o
Group's net assets. Mm% EED10.1%
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTLF+-A=+—HLFE

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND BALANCES
WITH SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(b) Amounts due from subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest
free and have no fixed terms of repayment (2006:
HK$155,368,000 which bears an average of 3.04% per
annum) and five non-interest bearing subordinated loans
totalling HK$827,123,000 out of which HK$577,123,000
is repayable in 2009, HK$150,000,000 is repayable in
2008 and HK$100,000,000 is repayable on demand
(2006: three non-interest bearing subordinated loans
totalling HK$250,000,000 out of which HK$150,000,000
is repayable in 2008 and HK$100,000,000 is repayable
on demand). It is the Company’s intention not to demand
repayment from those subsidiaries within one year other
than subordinated loans that are governed by specific

agreements.

(c) Amounts due to subsidiaries
Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free

and have no fixed terms of repayment.

13. B ARREREMBLQANE
HRERFR ()

(b)

(c)

PEUS B B 1 R FRIE

FEUH B A Al IE S | AR - &
B EREREEEAR(ZZE
7NEE 4975 #5155,368,000 7T ¢ F
HFEL3.04%) RAETHEE
B H81827,123,0007T © E A
E# 577,123,000 R =TT NF
FIH - %% 150,000,0007T 7 = F
= \ 4 I HA & 7% # 100,000,000 7T
BIEFERIN  (Z2TARF: =8
TEFE BB 3B 250,000,000
JT ° H A 5 #150,000,000 7T =
=T N\FE|H - ##¥ 100,000,000
TERNR R RSN ) o R AR & B (M)
BB KB A RE —FAEER
15 - MEEBREBRIBER HE
BT °

D R
e BT 8~ R RIS KR - R
A REEEEERS -

HENARERERAR 2L FFR

117



118

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2007

BE-_TT+HF+-_A=+—HLEE

14. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS

DUE TO ASSOCIATES

(a)

Investments in associates:

15

(a) BEQARE:

14 BERNTRERENBE QTR

Group Company
58 AF
2007 2006 2007 2006
bS8 3 ZEERE “BELE ZTTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT BRI BT
Investments, at cost: RE - RKAE
Unlisted shares in IE ETRE D
- Hong Kong — &8 40,458 40,458 40,390 40,390
- Overseas — &b 1,784,460 5,534,961 1,784,875 5,535,376
Share of post-acquisition ~ FE(GULEETR &
reserves 3,494,381 (183,974) - -
5,319,299 5,391,445 1,825,265 5,575,766
Less: R
Provision for impairment % & pX AR B XE
charged against
investment costs (165,548) (165,548) (41,073) (3,894,298)
Premium on acquisition U E (682,792) (3,544,429) - =
Carrying value, net MREE - FEE
(Note 14 (b) (i)) (BFEE14(b)G)) 4,470,959 1,681,468 1,784,192 1,681,468
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14. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS
DUE TO ASSOCIATES (continued)
(b) As at 31 December 2007, particulars of the principal

associate of the Group are as follows:

14. BEQRRARERENBHE QTR

5 (#8)

(b) AEER-TE+F+=A=+—
A EEREAREHWT -

Percentage of
equity interest

Place of held

incorporation/ directly

Name of associate operation Principal activities RAREEREEE

BE AT A AR it B FEXK FERBIL

Everbright Securities Company PRC Securities operations 39.31%
Limited (“Everbright Securities”) e BHE

KRAEFEDBR AT

(MYERGEZR])

In early 2007, Everbright Securities issued 453
million new shares to 11 investors for a total cash
consideration of RMB1,246 million. The objective of
the placement was to broaden the capital base of
Everbright Securities. After the new share issue, the
Group's interest in Everbright Securities was diluted
from 46.60% to 39.31% effective from 1 January
2007. As a result of the share dilution, the Group
has recorded a deemed gain on disposal of HK$225

million.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, Everbright
Securities recorded an after tax profit of RMB5.1
billion (according to HKFRS) and the Group's share of
profit, under equity accounting method, amounted to
HK$2.03 billion.

Everbright Securities is planning to list its shares on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange by way of an initial
public offering.

REZZZLFH) - HRAEFN
Be T RETA53EHRK
FUAIREE fEHARE
1246187 ° SR HILETE
IR E R EEREARER - 5=
ZZLF—H—HE ' AQF
B R FE 75 2 1 %5 B9 46.60%
W EE39.31% - NEERH
R AR EESE T S8R5 16 2.25
B ZIFEEHEBENRE
B o

cl)|

Bk

BE_TTLF+-A=1—
B+ % KA 582 S 5 8 & 7
ARBSIET(REEGTE
) - REEEEEAEE
FEAE BRI 381520 3(RT ©

YRS B AT IEAT 8RB AR
BT LEmARNELBESRRS
T £ o
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120

14. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS
DUE TO ASSOCIATES (continued)

(b)
(ii)

(continued)

On 30 November 2007, China Everbright Bank
Company Limited (“Everbright Bank”) issued 20
billion shares to the Central SAFE Investments
Limited according to a Subscription Plan approved
by the China Banking Regulatory Commission for
a consideration equivalent to RMB20 billion. As a
result of the new share issue, the Group’s equity
interest in Everbright Bank was diluted from 21.39%
to 6.23% effective from 30 November 2007. After the
new share issue, the Group no longer has significant
influence over Everbright Bank and the investment
in Everbright Bank was reclassified from investments
in associates to available-for-sale securities (Note
15). As a result of the share dilution and change
in classification, the Group has recorded a gain
on deemed disposal of HK$699 million. In 2007,
the Group has recorded approximately HK$873
million share of profit from the equity accounting of
Everbright Bank's results to 30 November 2007. This
share of profit was arrived at after the deduction of
the Group's unrecorded share of Everbright Bank’s
losses since 2004.
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5 (#8)

(b)

(#%)
(i)

RZEZE+F+—H=1H"
B KERTTAR D B R A 7
([Fe KRBT BIEH BRI T
EEEEZESEEMNAR
FHE - BIT20018 01D TR
EeREFRETAR(ES
~all) - EEHAREE2001E
TTEE B ZETLF+—A
=+ A ARXETRDM
SIBURE B R RIRTT 2 iRt
R 21.39% 8 58 & 6.23% ° 7~
SBER K RIBITEREEAT
2 MmMZBREBEEEHBEAR
AREBEI ABEHEBEEES
(BFFE15) - AMRAESESE R ET
IR 2 - NEBBR S
6 BT AIEEEREN
RNIBITHERH AT o REBR
R FIRERERARS
FEME R RIRITRFN A AHES.73
B ERFEHNREZZTN
FAREBEREARZEEHLR
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE-TTtF+-A=+—HLFE

14. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS 14. & N FIREREBHE AT

DUE TO ASSOCIATES (continued) TH (&)

(c) Supplementary financial information of the principal (c) EEBENT2@HTHEER
associate
Supplementary financial information in respect of the FEBENF 2B EER 2R
principal associate extracted from its financial statements RS AR 2B EIHRRK - WL
after necessary adjustments to conform to the Group's AU EAEE 2 ST HE L
accounting policies and prepared under accounting BB ZEHER]

principles generally accepted in Hong Kong is as follows:

Everbright Securities

HARFE
2007 2006

—EELHF —EERF
Consolidated meEER RMB’000 RMB’000
income statement ARET T ARETIT
Turnover | 10,189,791 2,075,347
Profit before taxation R 5 BT 22 F | 7,226,503 1,529,900
Current taxation RNEEFHIE (2,174,783) (373,876)
Minority interests DB RR R RE RS (51,255) 3,397
Profit attributable to % R G & F

shareholders 5,000,465 1,159,421

Consolidated HeBEESER
balance sheet
Total assets mEE 13,775,866 5,755,697
Total liabilities FEN=E (3,086,165) (2,094,421)

10,689,701 3,661,276
Minority interests DB PR R RERS (83,406) (38,921)
Net assets FEE 10,606,295 3,622,355

(d) ENBEQTHE
FEBE NRIRIRY REER - %
EMEREEEER -

(d) Amounts due to associates
The amounts due to associates are unsecured, interest
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES 15. EHEERS
Group Company
&E AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
“BERLE —ZTE ZEELE ZTTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BT
Listed equity securities at TREES
fair value: BATE
Listed in Hong Kong RER L 2,494,642 1,374,215 - =
Listed in PRC Mainland PR BIRM 2,715,673 - - -
Unlisted equity securities EETREES 3,835,513 436,000 3,805,890 99,573
9,045,828 1,810,215 3,805,890 99,573

On 20 December 2005, the Group entered into a securities

lending agreement with an independent third party to lend
18,000,000 in China Mobile (Hong Kong) Limited (“China
Mobile"”) shares (stock code: 941.hk) which entitles the Group

to a stock lending fee of 0.5% per annum. The stock lending

agreement may be terminated by either party giving the other

not less than 5 days written notice. As at 31 December 2007,
the number of China Mobile shares on loan was 6,000,000 (2006:
12,000,000) and the shares had a fair value of approximately

HK$827 million (2006: HK$808 million).
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BE_TTLF+-A=+—HLFE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES (continued)

The Group held the following principal available-for-sale
securities as at 31 December 2007:

15. SRS (@)
W=BELE+=A=1—A ~%H
BT E BB MRS

Effective equity
interest held by

Place of the Group

Company name incorporation Principal activities AEEEERE
NEERE ook 3t FTEXK EXEBRAEIL
Everbright Bank (i) PRC Banking operations 6.23%
FERIRTT() R RITHE
Goldwind Science and Technology PRC Manufacturing of wind 4.37%

Company Limited (i) (“Goldwind”) =5 power generating
MBS RERMBERNBERAF () equipment

(Tem]) SLER I EERE

Realised gains on disposal of Goldwind is subject to the
payment of an incentive project bonus to an investment team
(see note 32(b)).

(i) At 31 December 2007, the carrying value of interests in
Everbright Bank and Goldwind both exceeded 10% of
total assets of the Group.

NESREIEE HERMNERNRZS T2
EHFtE BB Een TIREBB (M E
32(b)) °

() R-ZTBLF+-A=+—8"
REEXARITREREZMEEE
MEEESSRAEELEED
10% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_TZ+HF+-A=+—HLFE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR 16. EEABBERZURMAFEE

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS NEREE
2007 2006
—EBLF —TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
At fair value: NS
Hong Kong listed equity BB LEMREZES
securities 277,473 -
Overseas unlisted convertible  J&9MNE T RT R ES
bonds - 140,314
Overseas unlisted equity BINE FTIRRE 5
securities 373,303 79,608
Overseas unlisted convertible  JE9NE_E T A & 5 I%
preference shares 14,658 -
665,434 219,922
Realised gains on disposal of the above unlisted financial assets NEFETEREELERNHERIK
are subject to the payment of an incentive project bonus to an o BREEHAERR RS TREE
investment team (see note 32(b)). B (BiaE32(b)) °
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BEEE
Goodwill Trading rights Total
e R a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost: B ST BT T BT T
At 1 January 2006 and RZZZEAF—A—A8AK
31 December 2006 —EERF+_A=1+—H 102,300 1,250 103,550
At 1 January 2007 R_ZEE+F—H—H 102,300 1,250 103,550
Release upon deemed JEE Y HER SN 7O
disposal of an associate (88,350) = (88,350)
At 31 December 2007 R F+ZA=1+—H 13,950 1,250 15,200
Accumulated amortisation R &
and impairment loss: WEEBX :
At 1 January 2006 and RIZBZERF-—A—BR
31 December 2006 —EERF+-_A=1+—H 102,300 - 102,300
At 1 January 2007 R-ZZ+F—HF—H 102,300 - 102,300
Release upon deemed JEEE N EBE AR R
disposal of an associate (88,350) - (88,350)
At 31 December 2007 —EELF+—A=+—H 13,950 - 13,950
Net book value: BREFE -
At 31 December 2007 —ETtF+=A=+—H - 1,250 1,250
At 31 December 2006 —EEREt+-A=1t—H - 1,250 1,250
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18. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

18. EFERX

2007 2006

—EEEHF —ZEETR
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Term loans to customers BHREFER 241,898 239,916
Amounts due from margin clients ffE & &R 1,364,417 669,433
1,606,315 909,349
Less: impairment loss provision & @ JR{EIEK %R (5,857) (8,227)
1,600,458 901,122
Term loans are secured by unlisted bonds issued by reputable EHEREFPUERGEENRNKIEE

financial institutions held as collateral. Amounts due from
margin clients are secured by listed securities of margin clients
held as collateral. An ageing analysis is as follows:

T2 LMEREER - FREPHAE
ZEZRETESEEM - Rk L0

T

2007 2006

—2TLHF —BEREF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT

Repayable on demand BIIRFE 5K 1,542,150 909,349
Over 3 months to 1 year “BAREE—F 64,165 -
1,606,315 909,349
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19. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 19. EWERR - BERBANK
Group Company
£E AF
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEtE ZTTRE ZERLE ZETRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR ARTT ARTR ARTL

Accounts receivable, net MRS - HE 1,112,944 313,211 - =
Deposits, prepayments and %e  BiIFk
other receivables Hi R 233,375 38,733 4,793 4,812
Dividend receivable from A B RIS
subsidiaries - - 2,650,000 =
1,346,319 351,944 2,654,793 4,812
Details of the ageing analysis on accounts receivables are as FEM R BBREC D ATLAT
follows:
2007 2006
—EBBEF ZETREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Within 1 month —fE@ANT 1,104,229 312,651
Within 1 to 2 months —Z=—{@A 5,770 232
Within 2 to 3 months —E=={EA 1,192 5
Within 3 to 6 months =&~ @A 899 205
Over 6 months NEA A E 854 118
1,112,944 313,211
Accounts receivable mainly comprise amounts due from EWERTEARER 7 KL EBRR
brokerage clients, brokers and clearing houses. These P ROEEREEFRER » —RBIER
receivables are normally due two days after trade day, and the SEMKDNE  TH B ERESEEE
extension of credit requires management’s approval on a case- BIHEAE o

by-case basis.
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20. TRADING SECURITIES

20. RZEH

2007 2006
—EEEHF —ETRF
Current Assets HK$'000 HK$'000
REEE BT T BT T
At fair value: NEE
Equity securities: REES
- listed in Hong Kong —&BELE™ 813,705 443,046
— listed overseas —&5N T 83,275 443,920
896,980 886,966
Debt securities: EfEEA
— listed overseas — /&N kT - 20,269
— unlisted —JE LT 372 3,347
372 23,616
Derivatives: PTET A :
— equity-linked and options — B RN 160,396 70,918
— others —Hh - 372
160,396 71,290
1,057,748 981,872
Current Liabilities RBAE
At fair value: NEE
Equity securities: REE S
— Listed in Hong Kong — &S T (47,002) (16,344)
Derivatives: PTET A :
- equity - linked note (i) — EAAG ZE 8 (7)) (434,098) (231,829)
— others —Hfh (61,107) (52,468)
(542,207) (300,641)
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20. TRADING SECURITIES (continued)

0]

On 21 December 2005, the Group purchased a principal
guaranteed note (“PGN") from an independent third party
for a total consideration of approximately HK$693 million.
The payment of consideration has been deferred and
the Group is obliged to pay to the PGN issuer a finance
charge of 3.65% per annum. According to the terms of
the PGN, the purchase consideration is to be settled in six
equal semi-annual payments. Each payment is either in
cash or by 3,000,000 shares of China Mobile, the ultimate
form of settlement depends upon the closing share price
of China Mobile two business days prior to payment date
and the closing value of Hang Seng Index on the payment
date. Under the PGN, the Group is entitled to receive six
semi-annual payments from the issuer and each payment
is equal to one-sixth of the PGN amount plus an additional
bonus, if applicable, based on the average appreciation of
the China Mobile mid-week closing share price from the
date of inception to payment date.

As at 31 December 2007, the fair value of the PGN of
HK$434,098,000 (2006: HK$231,829,000) was calculated
with reference to the terms of the PGN and the closing
share price of China Mobile as at 31 December 2007,
adjusted by the underlying option value and taking into
account the discounted net present value of the Group's
payment obligations, including finance charge, under the
PGN. Key parameters used in the PGN valuation include
the volatility of China Mobile’s share price, the volatility of
the Hang Seng Index and expected future interest rates.

(i)

20. RSB F5F (1)

R-ZBZRF+_A-+—H X«
EEE—BUE=FENBESIE
THEE —HRAZER(PGN]) o &
RAEBEEEX 8 F3.65%2 8t
BERTPGNZEITE  ZEHEE
HIBISLARESZ T » iRIEPGNALZ
B ZEBEREG TR S RS
S B¥F—H - FHNHA
AR & 5k A 3,000,000 A% A B #% &
XA o AR Z AR AFEUAR
BB BN B ARIMERZHZ
Wi {8 R 1E RS 5R B 2 W
K¥ o ZPGNIER - AEE A/
BITEWE N - B¥F 2K
15 - GEIASAPGNABESRE LD
—NE—FINEE - ZREEBRE
HEZEEPGNBEREZNHKEE
B 2 Wi B 2 FHFAE (0
HR)FTE -

RZZEZ+HE+_HA=+—H -
PGNZ A {5 434,098,0007T
(ZZEZNF : 5% 231,829,000
TL)RTE TIRIEPGN Z & HIER -
WKIEFBEBEN T F+=
A=+—B2zWmE  WHEAH
EEERNEBEBEPGN Z B
NE(PREMBER) 2ITRE8E
7E °c PGNEEBENEZELHBIEREH
BEIREZRBE  BEARECRK
8 2 J AR SR A TR A2 o
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

22.

21. RERREEEY

Group Company
&E D
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEELE —ZZTE ZERtLE —ETRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT BETT BT
Cash on hand, savings B BERERERP
and current accounts 575,817 695,419 228 235
Fixed deposits with banks RITE A 1,251,106 1,458,946 - -
1,826,923 2,154,365 228 235

CREDITORS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 22. BflRR: - ERERFARER

ACCRUED CHARGES

Group Company
58 AT

2007 2006 2007 2006

“EELE ZTERE “BELE ZTTRE

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BB BT BRI BETT

Accounts payable BN 605,621 287,436 - -

Other creditors, deposits HEMEDR

received and accrued Bl RBIRER

charges 209,486 125,174 2,800 2,614

815,107 412,610 2,800 2,614

Accounts payable are all due within one month and comprise

principally amounts due to brokerage clients, brokers and

clearing houses.
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23. NOTE PAYABLE 23. ESERE
On 28 August 2006, the Group issued a floating rate note of RZEBEZRFENAZTNE - REEE
face value RMB99,950,000 equivalent to a third party. The 17T —EARAEAEAAR99,950,000
carrying amount of the note as at 31 December 2007 was TEENRBET —F=% - ZEZBERNZ
HK$42,787,000 (2006: HK$99,573,000). Under the terms of TTLFE+-_A=+—ANEREAS
the note, the Group will pay the subscriber all the realised B 42 787,000 ( —EENF B
proceeds and investment income received from an available- 99,573,0007T ) ° WRIFFZZIKE 2 &K
for-sale investment of the Company throughout the life of the AEEHSER R B HEEEEE 5P
note. The note will mature on 27 August 2011. Bz EBHRRAREERZ N TET
FoZZBEBER-_ZT——FENA=-_T+
HEHS -
24. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 24 REEEBRNBIIEER
(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents: (a) REEEBXRANKTERNESH
2007 2006
—EBLF ZETREF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Provision for Hong Kong ~ ZRFEEFHEEFEH
Tax for the year 145,999 72,033
Provision for PRC Tax for  ZNFEE R B A i F115 7
the year 50,021 9,554
Provisional profit tax paid ~ TBEAEEFIEH (14,496) (14,259)
181,524 67,328
Balance of profit tax INEFERBNESTH AR
provision relating to
prior years 307,531 246,930
489,055 314,258
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24. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued)

24. REESERNBIAERB)

(b) Deferred taxation (b) EZERIIE
The movements on the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are as RERIBEAE (AfE)EFHNT
follows:
Fair value adjustment
Accelerated tax for available-for-sale/
depreciation trading securities
Tax losses & RS/ Total
HERX gt ReHRFHE At
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEREE CETNF ZFRLE CTTRE ZRBEE CTTAF BBt CITE
HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
A¥TR BT ATn  BETn  B%Tn  BMTr  BMTR  BETR
At 1 January ®—A-H - - (68) (12) (169,812)  (104,150) (169,880)  (104,162)
Credited/ (charged) to RNesBEERZTR

profit or loss (note 8) (3t9%) (F5E8) 829 15976 17 (56)  (2683) (13301)  (1.837) 2619
Credited/ (charged) to reserve I Ee (R 2 28k (5H7) - = - - (727,304)  (68,337) (727,304)  (68,337)
Set off of tax TR (829)  (15,976) - - 829 15976 - -
At 31 December RT=A=1+-H - = (51) (68)  (898970)  (169812)  (899.021)  (169,880)
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(r), BIEM 2y @5t - AEBAEHE
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets, in respect 27 i ST 4 UG 90 (B 5T (= BE X
of tax losses of approximately HK$992 million (2006: HK$572 G 4BHES 72(ETT) ESBRIERIIEE
million), as it is not probable that future taxable profits against E EEEABERET—FiEAEERK

which the tax losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant entity.

China Everbright Limited Annual Report 2007
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25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. |7
2007 2006
—EELF —EETR
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Authorised: JEERAK -
Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each &A&E#1.007T 2 & B H 2,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EZFTRE#ERAE -
At 1 January FHERTE 1,569,003 1,564,876
Exercise of share options 1T A% 15,701 4,127
At 31 December FREAEE 1,584,704 1,569,003

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends

as declared and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings

of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to

the Company'’s residual assets.

(a)

Capital Management

The Group’s primary objectives in capital management
are maximising shareholder returns, matching of business
funding needs and maintaining the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Management regularly, or
as change in circumstances which warrants, reviews and
manages its capital structure so as to maintain a proper
balance amongst shareholder returns, leveraging and

funding requirement.

EBENBEEERKIE MR ER
RARBZBREZREER K2R
R - B EBRBRDHARRZHGE
ENBREZOFHE -

(a) EXEE
AEEERAEENEEZAE =
BEEFREAL  BEEEBESE
Z - URBBAEEOFERE
B2 E T Ak BB R B AR &
ERHENEE  UEFRED
- EERESERZBENEEF
15 o
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a) Capital Management (continued)

25. A (\)

Net-debt is defined as liabilities generated from

operations (includes creditors and other payables and

trading securities liability), note payable, interest bearing

loans and unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and

cash equivalents. Adjusted capital represents total equity

less unaccrued proposed dividends. The net-debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio at 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as

follows:

(a)

BEXEEGE)
FEBNERRELELNAR
(B ¥ FE 1 BR K % L A B A5 SRR %
RopBHFEME) BNRE EL
M S E R B ARFH R ZER S -
BERERASEEY - KARZ
BEAR S BRBURFH R ZE
B R-FFLF+-_A=1+—H
R_BERNFHFEHEAL XL
T

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE BT T BT
Current liabilities REBAE
Creditors, deposits received ERERR - BdURSE R
and accrued charges TEIRE A 22 815,107 412,610
Trading securities RHEH 20 542,207 300,641
Loans from ultimate SRR AT ZER
holding company I 31(b) - 439,773
1,357,314 1,153,024
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Note payable TENEE 23 42,787 99,573
Total debt EEEEE 1,400,101 1,252,597
Add: Proposed dividends hn s BEERE 158,841 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : & KIS EEY (1,446,953) (1,606,296)
Net liabilities/(assets) REK(EE) 111,989 (353,699)
Total equity A 17,497,584 6,630,167
Less: Proposed dividends B AR (158,841) —
Adjusted capital REENER 17,338,743 6,630,167
Net-debt-to-adjusted FEEKAREARL R
capital ratio 0.6% (5.3%)

China Everbright Limited Annual Report 2007



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 e Y ot

For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTtF+-A=+—HLFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

Capital Management (continued)

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements. Certain subsidiaries of the Company are
subject to regulatory imposed capital and liquid capital
requirements (see also Note 34(b)), these subsidiaries have
complied with those requirements at all time during both

the current and prior financial years.

The capital restructure plan of the Group’s former
associated company China Everbright Bank Company
Limited (“Everbright Bank”) has been in progress since
2004. The Group had retained significant cash reserves
with the aim to participate in any restructuring plan
so as to retain a significant equity stake in Everbright
Bank. However, with the conclusion of Everbright
Bank’s restructure plan in November 2007, the Group's
participation in such plan has been ruled out (see notes
14 and 15). Therefore the Group has revised its funding
allocation to various business operations aiming at

achieving an optimal capital allocation mix.

25. A (\)

(a)

BEXEEGE)
RRBBEBTININEARRE °
ARAETHBARAETEEE
BETHERNNRRBDERRE (F
2 RME34(b)) - ZEHB R RN
MEHFERFEN—BENEABR
5 o

REBRTE R S R F R B ARTT
B BERRR(EARRTHER
BRI A —TTMOEUAR—BE#
TEF - AEEBEE T RERSH
- BME2BERM:E - LR
RHARRITHEREANHE - A -
BEEXARITHNEEFEN_-F
THE+—ABER AEETR2H
Zat 8l (B2 RME14%15) o
- AEECKES AR TEEE
% NHEBRENEARLS -

=
i}
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26. RESERVES 26. f#1E
The Company AT
Retained
Option  Investment Capital profits/
premium  revaluation redemption (Accumulated
Share reserve reserve Capital reserve |osses)
premivm  KE BE  reserve 5 RERN/ Total
ReRE  RERE EfRE  EXBE  BERE  (RHER) aif
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
BETT BBt BBt B%Tn BkTn BEfn BETx
Asat 1 January 2006 “ETNE-A-REE 5629208 19,141 - - 2984 (4,248524) 1,402,809
Surplus on revaluation BEEE = - 2,032 - - - 2,032
Share options forfeited BB 8 TARE - (303) - - - 303 -
Shares issued under share BERR Gy
option scheme 11,940 (5,057) - - - - 6,883
Equity settled share-based transactions MR [ zBA RS = 14921 = - = - 14,921
Profit for the year RERF - - - - - 455,344 455,344
As at 31 December 2006 and R-EEAFT-A=1-H
1 January 2007 k=%%2t%5-A-A 5,641,148 28,702 2,032 - 2984 (3792817) 1,881,989
Surplus on revaluation BitEE - - 2133740 - - - 2133740
Share options forfeited JUBR L E TME - (1,004) = = = 1,004 =
Shares issuied under share mETRARE
option scheme 51,219 (20,162) - - - - 31,057
Equity settled share-based transactions W[ RAR 5 - 6915 - - - - 6,915
Implied interest on non-nterest bearing ~ ER—HBART:E
subordinated loans to a subsidiary BETZBEANE = = = (2959) = = (29.59)
Profit for the year RERF - - - - - 4000731 4,000,731
As at 31 December 2007 RZFEtETZA=1-H 5,692,367 14451 2135772 (2959) 2,984 208858 8,024,836
The movement in the Group's reserves have been disclosed in REE 2 FHEHERNGREEEE TR
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. FI7R ©
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27. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve
The application of the share premium and the capital
redemption reserve is governed by Sections 48B and 49H

respectively of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Option premium reserve

The option premium reserve represents the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share

based payments in note 2(q)(ii).

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for sale
securities held at the balance sheet date and is dealt with

in accordance with the accounting policies in note 2(f).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations as well as the effective
portion of any foreign exchange differences arising from
hedges of the net investment in these foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies set out in note 2(u).

Goodwill reserve

The goodwill reserve comprises goodwill on acquisitions
that occurred prior to 1 January 2001. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 2(e).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises specific allocation of amount
transferred from retained earnings due to regulatory
requirements. It also includes the share of statutory

reserve of associates.

27. R MEERR

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

A E R A A
BARENEAE L iR BRI

FAFEC(RRGHAD M+ /\BK

RO+ H o

RRERERE

SRR B R TR RIAR A (B 5
SR BER (P EE2(q) (i) R AR E
BT REBEZABENEE KGR
B BRITRE BRI A FE

REEMHE
REERFREREHREEIESFN
BEABHZATEZZTFE
B o HERBESERDHE2RE
I8 o

BE R R
ELFRESMBELEERE AN
BB BRI ZER ZBERRAY
UL EBINERFRE 2 B RE R
EZRED c BRMEBZERED
SUBRH EE2(u) ©

[ 3o
HEREOERN_TT—F—A—
BRIEBMEL ZEE - tREED
RIBSETHRRM 2R

B
BENREREEREAEEEERKAR
BREMNFED IR S  LREETT
BEIEBERREEEZRZH
=
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Bz

ETLF A= T—BLAE

28. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 24 May 2002 whereby the Directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to grant to employees of the
Group, including directors of any company in the Group, to
take up options and subscribe for the shares of the Company.
Upon the first anniversary, 25% of the options will vest and the
rest will vest in three equal installments on each subsequent
semi-anniversary. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

28.

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during

the years are as follows, and all options are settled by

physical delivery of shares:

BB H 2 2RER S
AAREBREER_FTT_FHA

“ BT — ERBER BlR AL
BrzEEEEAKBETEAARZE
E REBBREARBBARRZEERE -
RO RRERE25% BN E —BFER
M RGO BIER T o =N ERE
¥¢3Z*F$A( CB-RBERTRAA

RBARE 2 —BE B -

(i) RERFERD R G
T o FRERBEARZEYZ
RS T &

No.of options

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price granted
REAH B 1TES THEEE RREHE
07/07/03 08/07/03-07/01/06 08/07/04-07/01/07 2.375 10,150,000
03/09/04 04/09/04-03/03/07 04/09/05-03/03/08 3.225 1,250,000
03/05/05 04/05/05-03/11/07 04/05/06-03/05/10 2.850 15,900,000
05/05/05 06/05/05-05/11/07 06/05/06-05/05/10 3.000 1,520,000
04/07/05 05/07/05-04/01/08 05/07/06-04/07/10 3.135 820,000
27/09/05 28/09/05-27/03/08 28/09/06-27/09/10 3.100 800,000
10/04/06 11/04/06-10/10/08 28/09/06-10/04/11 4.800 6,200,000

36,640,000

Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group

before the option is vested.
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28. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 28. LI X ZBRAR S (&)

(continued)

(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (i) RAEZESHE RENEFEHTEZ
share options are as follows: ITEBWT :
2007 2006
—EELF ZETRE
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number exercise
share price of share price

options InEEF g options hnkEFg
RREEE TEE RRERE 1TE(E

HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at 1 January 7 — A —H&%% 27,152,500 3.241 25,902,500 2.766
Granted during the year RERE L - - 6,200,000 4.800
Exercised during the year A ATT{E (15,701,000) 2.980 (4,127,500) 2.669
Lapsed during the year G ANE (960,000) 2.850 (822,500) 2.908
Outstanding at R+=-—A=+—8
31 December FRER 10,491,500 3.667 27,152,500 3.241
Exercisable at Rt+-—A=+—8H
31 December AI{T(E 6,986,500 3.196 12,020,000 2.685
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise RERTTEE 2 BIEZ INEFIEIRER
for share options exercised during the year was HK$15.983 PE#15.983T(ZFTRF : H%#6.528
(2006: HK$6.528). ) ©
The options outstanding at 31 December 2007 had R-ZEZLFT__A=+—HHERZ
exercise prices ranging from HK$2.850 to HK$4.800 RIEHE 2 ITERERBE2.850L 2B
(2006: HK$2.375 to HK$4.800) and a weighted average 4800 NE(ZZTZT/RF  B¥2.3757T
remaining contractual life of 2.463 years (2006: 2.925 B A% 4.8007T) R E ME T FIRE L
years). FHIE2.463F o (ZEZT/NF 1 2.925

ek
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28. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(iii) Fair value of share options and assumptions
The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted are measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair
value of the services received is measured based on a
binominal option pricing model. Contractual life of the
option and expectations of early exercise are incorporated
into the model. The expected volatility is based on the
historical volatility. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends as well as expectation on future period
performance. Changes in subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

28. IR 2 RAR 5 ()

(iiiy RREZATLERRBRRE

RER R E TS REH A FER
ERTRAREHQTETE - BF
IR S ET A FER(ZIEHEE
BEREAXVFE - RRENELHNFH
kIR ZIRBITEARAZER -
TEERR IR TIARIEE LR BT E - T8
HARR B TH AR IR R 5 AR B K FA B R 2R
CEERBET - THHABRZL
2B gt EATE N ENGEE ©

B2 A TFERER

2007 2006
—2TLHF —TETRF

Weighted average JHEF1 2
Fair value at measurement date ~ Ri+E HH AT E - HK$1.73
Share price B&E - HK$4.59
Exercise price 11fE(E - HK$4.80
Expected volatility TEHRIR 18 - 39%
Expected option life TRHARR AR #E 5 HA - 4.0 years
Expected dividends TREARR R - %
Risk-free interest rate 42 [ B ) 2 - 4.6%

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant
date fair value measurement of the services rendered.
There were no market conditions associated with the share
option grants. No share option has been granted for the
year ended 31 December 2007.
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29. MATURITY PROFILE 29. AR 7 AT
Maturity profile as at 31 December 2007 RE-BELE+-A=+—BHRIHF

1yearorless  5yearsor

3 months but over less but over
Repayable or less 3 months 1 year After
on demand 38R 38R 15 5 years Total
W FUT  UEE1E HLEESE SENE ]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ERTn  E%Tn BMTn BETR RERTR

Assets BE
- Advances to customers =T 1,536,293 - 64,165 - - 1,600,458
- Debt securities —[EEES 372 - - - - 372
- Fixed deposits —~EHER - 1,251,106 - - - 1,251,106
1,536,665 1,251,106 64,165 - - 2,851,936
Liabilities af
- Note payable -ERZE - - - (42,787) - (42,787)
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29. MATURITY PROFILE (continued)

Maturity profile as at 31 December 2006

29. HABR D #T (48)

RZZEZRET_A=T—BHRS

1 year or less

5 years or

3 months but over  less but over
Repayable or less 3 months 1 year After
on demand 3fEA @A 14 5 years Total
B FUT  MER1E LLEESE S E ELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
L BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Assets BE
- Advances to customers =T 909,349 = = = = 909,349
- Financial assets designated —ETEARBER - - - 63,577 76,137 140,314
at fair value through NRBATLEE
profit or loss NeREE
- Debt securities —BREES - 23,616 - - - 23,616
- Fixed deposits —EHIER = 1,458,946 = = = 1,458,946
909,349 1,482,562 - 63,577 76,137 2,532,225
Liabilties afE
- Note payable -ENFE - - - (99,573) - (99,573)

30. SEGREGATED ACCOUNTS NOT REFLECTED ON 30. TR EEEBRZETRF

BALANCE SHEET

2007 2006
—EBLF ZETREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Bank balances — segregated IRITAEER—E7EARP
accounts 1,210,948 478,341
Receivable from clearing house RN 455 FiT K B & e R0
and futures brokers 21,190 14,171
Amounts held on behalf of clients  RZ=¥FE 1B (1,232,138) (492,512)
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(a)

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31. BREALRS
The following transactions were entered into with related (a) AEEREXNEEBEATZZS
parties during the year: mF
2007 2006
—EBLF —ETREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Management of funds of EEAREENES -
CE Holdings by way of RENRNEBAKZEFLA
investing, into China E&—PEXRERES
Everbright Dragon Fund, (MBEBERIEE D)
a private fund established by
the Group (the “Dragon Fund
Investment”) (i) 158,042 125,145
Incentive fee income received from [ ERAR A% A T UL ER
ultimate holding company (i) ZHEEE (i) 19,291 2,029
Management fee shared by ultimate ~ H&AIZRE AR DIEZ
holding company (i) BB () 4,662 1,802
Performance fee shared by ultimate — FAIERR AT D IE
holding company (i) ZRIFE (i) 25,155 10,284
Interest income earned from HERE 2 N B URERAT 3R
associates on deposits placed ZAEHA 30 35
Rental income received from: HEWA
— an associate (ii) — BN 7] (i) 84 84
- ultimate holding company (iii) — B FERT A A (ifi) 180 180
Securities brokerage commission WER 2 42
received from:
— a subsidiary of ultimate holding —REERA RS
company Z—KHIBRA] 209 -
Interest expenses on loans paid to MRRIERA R ER
ultimate holding company ZHEZH 8,458 21,374
Rental expenses paid to ultimate AERAAERR A B S A
holding company (iv) & (iv) - 35
Rental expense paid to AIREIER A BRE Z
wholly-owned subsidiaries of 2EWBRRXZNHEE
ultimate holding company ((v),(vi)) ((v), (vi) 6,170 3,600
Consultancy fee expenses: B
— paid to an associate — A AT S 300 300
Remuneration for key management S EEEAEME
personnel (including the (BREANRESE)
Company'’s directors) which is EEREBTER]:
included in “staff cost”:
— short-term employee benefits — R HEE N &= 61,787 35,615
— retirement scheme contributions —RIREH 2R 83 77
— Share-based payments — DA D EAT 2,628 7,773
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

(i)

(ii)

In May 2005, China Everbright Assets Management
Limited (“CEAM"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, has entered into an investment
management agreement with the ultimate holding
company for the management of a HK$100 million
portfolio for a term of 1 year. On 28 June 2006,
CEAM entered into a new investment management
agreement with the ultimate holding company for
the management of a HK$300 million and US$10
million portfolio for terms ranging from 1 to 3 years.
Under the terms of the investment management
agreements, the Group is entitled to an incentive
fee of 30% from the part of the portfolios’ return in
excess of certain agreed percentages. The incentive
fee earned directly from the ultimate holding
company is disclosed above.

Some portions of the portfolios have been placed
with China Everbright Dragon Fund Limited (“Dragon
Fund”). As CEAM is also the investment manager
to Dragon Fund, it earned management fee and
performance fee from Dragon Fund. The amounts
of management fee and performance fee earned
from Dragon Fund have been eliminated in the
preparation of consolidated financial statements but
the relevant amounts attributable to the ultimate
holding company’s investment portions are disclosed
above.

On 28 August 2005, the Group entered into a
tenancy agreement with Everbright Bank in relation to
the leasing of office premises to Everbright Bank for
the period from 28 August 2005 to 27 August 2006
with an option to renew for another term of one year.
Pursuant to the exercise of such option, the lease
was renewed for one year from 28 August 2006 to 27
August 2007. The rental agreement is continued with
the same rental amount. The rental income earned by
the Group amounted to HK$84,000 for the year.
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(a)

(%)

(i)

(i)

R-ZZZRAFHA  ARAIZ
—HKEEMBRRTEAKRE
EEBRBERAR(IAXREEE
2 |) BRI AR —IE
RM—F2REEEHH A
HEB1EETZREES -
XR-ZFBEREANAAZTNA
B XAAREETEEASKIER
RAFR] THO—HARH—E
—EZRERERS  /HE
IB3EEITE1,0008% T2
KREMSG - RIEZF &S 2 15
R WABREEAEEZSR
BEZBALL - RIARSKE R
SO M30% - BEER
REERATWEZ REIED
BETEX-

REHAT R BRERT
Bt ARERESHBR AR (M5
BEE]) HRAKREEER
NRERES CIRELE - 1
BERES IR B BER
RECNRIIRS M RE T
2H0H - BT RER AR
KREMAGE D ZHESEAH
B

R-ZEZRFENA=-F+/NB
NEEE L AIRITERE] —IAM
4 - AEEE RS RIRITH
AE—BRAYE - HEH=
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

(iii)

(vi)

On 20 December 2005, the Group entered into
a tenancy agreement with the ultimate holding
company in relation to the leasing of residential
premises to the ultimate holding company for the
period from 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006.
In 2007, the tenancy was continued at the same
rent and the rental income earned by the Group
amounted to HK$180,000 for the year.

From 8 April 2003, the Group entered into a monthly
tenancy agreement with the ultimate holding
company in relation to the leasing of residential
premises to the Group. There was no rental expense
incurred on this tenancy for the year ended 31
December 2007.

On 5 February 2007, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the ultimate holding company entered into a tenancy
agreement with the Group in relation to the leasing
of office premises to the Group for the period from
31 December 2006 to 30 December 2008. The rent
expense amounted to HK$4,938,000 for the year.

On 4 September 2006, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the ultimate holding company entered into a tenancy
agreement with the Group in relation to the leasing
of office premises to the Group for the period from
1 September 2006 to 31 October 2008. The first two
months of the lease term is rent free. The tenancy
agreement has been terminated on 30 September
2007. The rental expense incurred for the year
amounted to HK$1,232,000.

. BEBEALRS (8)

(a)

(%)
(i)

(iv)

(vi)

REDERERBRA

RZZZRFTAZ=1+H -
$%@§@E—ZR* RR uT_
HL  AEBEMEAETE—IE
FEWE %ﬂﬁﬂﬂa_yy/@
_H_Elj: = /\£E+—ﬂ
E+—E¢°%:$§t¢'
ZBARATARBESEL -
REBRAEE 2 HERAR
75180,0007T °

I‘L /_\

BE-ZET=FMANAE K
B BRI A BIEK —IR
AMMBY > AEEREREE
A—REEYE  AKERAK
FEIEES I -

RZZEZT+F-_HAH  &&
ERARZZENBRRER
B2 —HAY  AEER
mMEMR—ERAME A

H-ZEERF+HA=1—

E_ETNFE+ A=+
H, AEEsHeXEREE
4,938,0007T °

ZETRFNLANA - &
RN 2 E B A REA
EZERI—EEL  AEER
EREER-ERAYE %ﬂ
HR-_ZETRFNALA—BZE

ZENF+A=+—8H" %H,Hﬂ

¢l

BEWEARRES  ZED
R-FFLFNAA=1TER
It REFZHETHAEY
1,232,0007T °

B ZBRFFR
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

146

. BEBEALRS (8)

Included in the balance sheets are the following balances b) REEABRAMNBEEALEIR
with related parties: B
Group Company
&8 AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
—ETEF —ZTTF ZEELF —TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T BT
Deposits placed with N YNCI S
associates (included (BIERIETT
in bank balances and HERNIRE) (i)
cash) (i) - 5,163 - —
Amount due from L NCIE
an associate (BFER IR
(included in debtors, BRFX - & MTER
deposits and A (i)
prepayment) (ii) 289,319 49,050 - -
Amount due from FEMERAR AR A A
ultimate holding (i)
company (iii) - 2,613 - -
Loans from ultimate B R ARIERE A A
holding company (iv) ZER(v) - (439,773) - (439,773)
Amount due to ultimate FERN SAAER A A
holding company (iv) Z 2 IHA(iv) - (37) - =
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Deposits placed with associate are unsecured, bear
interest at commercial terms and will be repayable

upon on demand.

Amount due from an associate arose in the ordinary
course of securities brokerage business, and is

unsecured, interest free and repayable upon demand.

On 31 December 1998, the Company entered
into a tax indemnity arrangement with its ultimate
holding company China Everbright Holdings
Company Limited (“CEHL"). Under the tax indemnity
arrangement, the ultimate holding company will
bear all the liabilities for taxation of China Everbright
Financial Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(“CEFH") prior to 1998. An amount of approximately
$2,613,000 was recoverable from the ultimate
holding company for the taxes charged in relation to
taxation prior to 1998 on CEFH net of tax refunds.
The amount was unsecured, interest bearing and

repayable upon demand.

In 2006, the Company renewed three term loans
with CEHL amounting to HK$380 million and RMB60
million. All the term loans have been repaid in 2007.
The interest rates are computed based on Hong
Kong Interbank Offer Rate (“HIBOR") plus 0.5% per
annum for the Hong Kong dollar loans and 5.5% per

annum for the Renminbi loan.

. BEBEALRS (8)

b) (&)
() REEDBTNFRREER -
RREEGETEE - YR ERE
{HiE -

(ii)

(iii)

FE Ui Bs i N R IR T E A B R
EFREBAFPZERESFR
% RASEERW - AR
B WRERKEER -

R—AANE+=ZA=+—
H @ ARREEKEERA R
FEAXAEEARAF (K
AEE D& — D RIBIRER
HE - REBBREGSK - &
IR A R B AERB RS
B AR A R R EMEB A A
(I&RER DR —hNEFSK
IRIEEZBR - RFEERE
U B 4R 1 AR A B B SR A S M
2,613,000 7T WFHIEERE
B BRI — UL\ EE AR
EERBIRRTEZFE -
FEMGRIERT B - EIEA R IR

ZREFEE ©

RZZZRFE - ARAEEK
SEER=HHBEREEIS
BILRARKECL BITZER
W& - TEERER =TT L
FEE  BEERZENER
ABRITRIZEFRS(THIBOR])
MOSE - ARBEREF X
All&5.5E -
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@) Corporate guarantee

32. RAREE

(a) AEER

Company
YN

2007 2006

—EELF ZETRF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T
Guarantee given to financial ~ AMBARIKEITHEE
institutions in respect of A& BB IR (R

banking facilities granted
to subsidiaries 170,000 80,000

As at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006, the
Group's subsidiaries did not utilise any of its banking

facilities.

As at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006, the
Company had issued corporate guarantees to certain
financial institutions for trading facilities granted to a
subsidiary which engages in leveraged foreign exchange
trading and other subsidiaries which carry out derivatives
transactions. The guarantee amounts vary and are
dependent on the volume of transactions effected with

the financial institutions.
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

Incentive payment

According to an Incentive Agreement dated 25 May
2007, which was announced on the same date, the
Group is obligated to pay incentive project bonus to an
Investment Team, all the individual members of which are
employees of the Group, on realisation of each project,
whether in whole or in part, under SeaBright China Special
Opportunities (I) Limited (“SOF” the Group has a 78.9%
equity interest in SOF). The amount of incentive project
bonus payable under the agreement is equal to 15% of
profit realised from disposal of those investments plus
the related amount of advisor fee income received less
certain attributable project expenses and the investment
team'’s operating expenses. The incentive project bonus
is recognised on realisation of the relevant project.
As at 31 December 2007, the accumulated unrealised
gains associated with the relevant projects amounted to
HK$3.91 billion (2006: HK$292 million). In the consolidated
financial statements, HK$3.50 billion (2006: HK$261
million) of the fair value appreciation has been reflected
in the investment revaluation reserve while the remaining
HK$0.41 billion appreciation has been accounted for in
the income statement (2006: HK$31 million). If all relevant
projects were disposed of on 31 December 2007 at their
fair value, the amount of incentive project bonus payable
to the Investment Team would be approximately HK$0.48
billion.

32. IAREFE @)

(b)

REFR
BRER_ZEZLFAA_+HHF]
B - SRR B A2 B 7

%k B &1ZSeaBright China Special
Opportunities (I) Limited([ SOF] -
REEFHT8.9% SOF &) &
HAZ=BAR N ERFNBAEL
Ewx AR ABESRTRER
K(FrEKEHBRASEEST) -
mBB R RESENZERERF
HeWHm"15% A AR EIK
A WHRERRE ZEIEREE
BERKREEGZEER - M
BREAESEERHERS SR
BR - -N_ETLF+_A=1—
B HEBEZAERATEE
EREEIVIRT(ZZETRF :
BHE2.92187T) - HEREMB®K
W HPBEEBBIT(ZEER
F:BE261EIT) 2ELEKRE
fERP R - R TAEK4IETRE
EESRPARCETARE B
¥0.31187T) - MAABEMEMEE R
—EEFEF_AZT—BURYF
BELHE  BEXNKREEEERZ
15 B BB RSN REE4.818TT

HENARERERAR 2L FFR

149



150

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 R M

E]f N57 ¥ JaT

For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_TTtF+-A=+—HLFE

33. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitment

33. A&iE

The Group has capital commitments are as at 31

December 2007 (2006: Nil):

(a)

BAESE
R_FFtLtF+-_A=1+—8"
REENERAZAT(ZFTX
F )

2007 2006
Zggtf— —EER \fﬁ
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Authorised but not contracted for B #tZIBREL) 163,655 =
Contracted but not provided for ~ EZ#)BRH1E 51,043 =
214,698 _
Operating lease commitments (b) @’ﬁ*ﬂﬁﬁdﬁ

(b)

Operating lease commitments as at 31 December
2007 amounted to approximately HK$13,400,000
(2006: HK$5,139,000) of which HK$7,931,000 (2006:
HK$3,333,000) is payable in the next twelve months. The
Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

R_EZLF+_A=+—8 -
REHERERBHABE
13,400,000 T (ZZEZT XN F : &

75 #5,139,0007T ) © H A 4B
7,931,0007C (ZZFERF « 488

3,333,0007T) AFRK+ @A RNE
SNz EESEE REERETA

BiH 2 REME » RARIMNZ &
RAEERR@RENT :
2007 2006
—BBLF —ETX
Properties Others  Properties Others
FE Ht FE Hity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BYT T BB T BT
Not later than one year —FE RN EF|H 7,918 13 3,058 275
Later than one year and —FUAEERSF
not later than five years 5,469 - 1,802 4
13,387 13 4,860 279
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33. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(c) Future operating lease arrangement

33. A (#)

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had future aggregate

minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating

leases for investment properties as follows:

(c) ARKEHERH(E)
R_ZZTtF+_A=+—H8 " ' &
SEBREBE AT HEHNREMERE
A - RARRATER 2 &K &K

BARNT :

2007 2006

—EBEHF —EETRF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BB

Not later than one year —FREIH 589 223
Later than one year and —FEEEREF

not later than five years 44 -

633 223

(d) Off-balance sheet financial instruments

The fair values and the contractual or notional amounts of

the Group's trading equity derivatives outstanding at 31

(d) BEEEBERIESEMTE
R-ZE+F+-_A=+—H " =K
EERFREZITETIRAAHZAFE

December 2007 are detailed as follows: BEREHNHEEDBHAT
Fair value Contractual/
assets/(liabilities) notional amounts
ATEEE(AE) BH/BELE

2007 2006 2007 2006
—ERLF —TTRF ZBBLE —TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BET T BT
Overseas futures BINERE (1,990) (2,334) 128,550 85,339
Forwards contracts HEA4 (59,118) (50,134) 1,913,308 2,173,404
Equity linked derivatives ~ ARZHMEFTET A (434,098)  (231,829) 231,031 462,062
Overseas index swap AFINE B B - = 39,483 -
Hang Seng Index futures (B AEEHAE - 122 - 100,090
Interest derivatives FM={TETE - 249 - 15,557
(495,206) (283,926) 2,312,372 2,836,452
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33. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(d) Off-balance sheet financial instruments (continued)
The financial instruments become favourable (assets) or
unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market

prices of the underlying instruments relative to their terms.

Notional amounts of these financial instruments provide a
basis for comparison with instruments recognised on the
balance sheet but do not necessarily indicate the amount
of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the
instruments and, therefore, are not a representation of the

Group's exposure to the credit or price risks.

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risk management is of fundamental importance to the business
operation of the Group. The major types of risk inherent in the
Group's business are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk and equity price risk. The Group's risk
management objective is to maximise shareholder value and
to reduce volatility in earnings while maintaining risk exposures
within acceptable limits.

The Group's work in the area of risk management is facilitated
by the Risk Management Committee and the Credit Committee
while execution is carried out by the two Committees’
supervising Risk Management and Credit Control Department.
This functional structure has the role to advise and to assist
the management to identify and assess the main risks faced by
the Group's business in a co-ordinated manner, also to assess,
identify and document the Group's risk profile and to ensure
that the business units focus, control and systematically avoid
potential risks in various areas of business. The following is a
brief description of the Group's approach in managing these

risks.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
advances to customers, trade and other receivables, debt

investments and unlisted derivative financial instruments.

In respect of advances to customers, the Group requires
collateral from customers before advances are granted.
Collateral normally takes the form of listed securities, cash
deposits or debt financial instruments issued by entity
with high credit rating. The amount of advance permitted
depends on the quality and value of collateral provided
by the customer. Subsequent change in value, as well
as quality, of collateral is closely monitored in order to

determine whether any corrective action is required.

Trade and other receivables mainly arise from the Group's
brokerage business and investment activities. Receivables
from security brokerage customers and brokers are
normally due two days after trade day while deposits
with brokers are repayable on demand. The Group has
established procedures in the selection of brokers with

sound credit ratings and/or reputation.

Investments in debt instruments and unlisted derivative
financial instruments are also governed by whether the
issuers and the trade counterparties respectively have

sound credit ratings.

The Group has well defined policies in place on the
setting and approval of trading, credit and investment
position limits in order to manage its credit risk exposure
and concentration. As at the balance sheet date, the
Group does not have a significant concentration of credit
risk other than (i) the provision of advances to customers,
which are collaterialised by unlisted debt securities issued
by issuers with sound credit ratings, of approximately
HK$241 million (2006: approximately HK$240 million) and
(i) the PGN (note 20(i)) with a remaining notional amount
of HK$231 million (2006: approximately HK$462 million)
issued by a reputable third party with sound financial
standing.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
account of any collateral held is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset, including
derivative financial instruments, in the balance sheet date
deducting any impairment allowance. Except for the
corporate guarantee given by the Group as set out in note
32(a), the Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group or the Company to credit
risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the
corporate guarantee at the balance sheet date is disclosed
in note 32(a).

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from advances to customers

are set out in note 18.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly assess current and
expected liquidity requirements and to ensure that
it maintains reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

For subsidiaries with statutory liquidity requirements,
the Group monitors closely their liquidity position. To
ensure strict compliance, the Group maintains adequate
cash reserves to prepare for immediate fund injection
if required. If there is a medium-to-long term operation
need, the management would also consider adjusting
those subsidiaries’ capital structure. Subsidiaries with
external equity stakeholders are generally responsible for

their own liquidity management.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)
The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's
financial liabilities which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

4. €M I H%)

(b) REBESRMR(E)
TREJIAEENERBBBENFE
BEERES MBI BB M RIERERE - T
REBEAOARMRASREAKE R

RIEESINEY A BASH -

2007 2006
ZBELE SERRE

Total More More Total More More

contractual Within  than 1 year than 2 year contractual Within ~ than 1year than 2 year

undiscounted 1 year or but less than but less than undiscounted  Tyearor butlessthan but less than

Carrying  cash flow on demand 2 years Syears  Camying  cashflow ondemand 2 years 5 years

amount AHAER -Fh®  BE-F EBWE  amont ANAEE W —FR  BE-EF  HERE

BEE RERAR EREXN EORRE EORIE FOE ReReE TIEXN EINmE BOREE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK$000

BRI RMTn  ERTR  A%Tn  BMTR BT BNTr BT BETr BETx

Creditors, deposits %R B

received and BERRREM

accrued charges 815,107 815,107 815,107 - - 412,610 412,610 412,610 - -

Trading securities R5EH 542,207 556,055 556,055 - - 300641 316181 203277 112904 -

Amount due to associates JEMEEAFIZUE 438 438 438 - - 438 438 438 - -
Loans from ultimate ERREERAT

holding company Wa-¢ - - - - - 439773 454,871 454 871 - -
Amount due to ultimate [N SAIERAR)

holding company 258 - - - - - 37 37 37 - -

Note payable EfZE 42,787 42,787 - - 42,787 99,573 99,573 - - 99,573

1,400,539 1,414,387 1,371,600 - 42,787 1253072 1,283710 1071233 112,904 99,573
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group monitors its interest rate exposure regularly
to ensure that the underlying risk is monitored within an
acceptable range. Most of the Group’s interest bearing
assets and liabilities are on a floating rate basis with
maturity of one year or less.

The Group's interest rate positions arise from treasury
and operating activities. Interest rate risk arises in treasury
management, customer financing and investment
portfolios. Interest rate risk primarily results from the
timing differences in the repricing of interest-bearing
assets, liabilities and commitments. It also relates to
positions from non-interest bearing liabilities including
shareholders’ funds and current accounts, as well as from
certain fixed rate loans. Interest rate risk is managed by
the Treasury Department under the delegated authority of
the Board of Directors. The instruments used to manage
interest rate risk include time deposits and interest rate

linked derivatives.

In respect of income-earning financial assets and interest
bearing financial liabilities, the following table indicates
their effective interest rate at the balance sheet date. As
for sensitivity analysis of interest rate changes: Assuming
that a general increase of 1%/decrease of 2% in interest
rates had occurred at the balance date on the Group's
then interest rate exposure, the Group's profit after
tax and retained profits, as well as equity, would have
an estimated increase of HK$31,416,000/decrease of
HK$62,832,000 (2006: profit after tax and retained profits
increase of HK$28,455,000/decrease of HK$56,911,000
for increase of 1%/decrease of 2% in interest rates).
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)

34. SR T A ()

The Group’s interest bearing assets and liabilities are

substantially at variable interest rate basis other than a

RMB60 million loan from the ultimate holding company as

() R=EEBR(E)
BT ANFRNKKERATZ

2 —

AR¥0.61

SILETA

S REERE

EMBEERABAID ZRENT

at 31 December 2006. FFIE o
2007 2006
—EELF —EEREF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate HK$'000 rate HK$'000
BERFIR B F =%
% BT T % BT T
Assets BE
Advances to customers ZEER 7.3 1,600,458 10.3 909,349
Bank balances and cash WITEBRNIES 2.9 1,826,923 5.1 2,154,365
3,427,381 3,063,714
Liabilities =Ei=
Loans from ultimate i ANES <2y NG|
holding company ZE® - - 4.8 (439,773)
Total net interest bearing E4£FIEMNEE
assets FREEMAEE 3,427,381 2,623,941

The above increase or decrease in interest rate represent

the management's assessment of a reasonably change in

interest rates over the period until the next annual balance

sheet date. It also assumes that all other variable remains

constant.

R R RS NEEEREE T
—(E2FAEREX RIS EF

REBETE - BRRAA
BEREEHTE o
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk primarily
stems from holdings of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies, leveraged foreign
exchange trading and net investment in foreign
subsidiaries and associates. As most of the Group's
monetary assets and liabilities and net investment in
foreign subsidiaries and associates are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars or Renminbi,
management does not consider there is any significant
currency risk associated with them. The Group has a policy
not to maintain a significant net position on leveraged
foreign exchange trading and the underlying exposure is
monitored on a continuing basis. In respect of financial
instruments demoninated in other currencies, the Group
ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable
level by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term in balance.

Overall, management monitors the Group’s foreign
currency exposure closely and would consider hedging

significant currency exposure should the need arise.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 34. ERMT A ()

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued) (dy SNERERE)
TREIINBEEBBERAREER
BEHREERABBZEXRR
EHEERBENTEEREEA
BRI .M :

At balance sheet date, the Group's exposure to currency
risk arising from recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional

currency of the entity to which they relate is tabled below:

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETREF
In USD In RMB In USD In RMB
Ep AR ET AR
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT BT
Investments in associates ~ FAEEE AR ZIHE - 4,470,959 - 1,681,468
Available-for-sale securities {&{tiHE &= - 3,805,890 = 155,583
Financial assets designated 157 &BiBiEx
at fair value through AR AFEE
profit or loss HemEE - 182,992 = 140,314
Advances to customers ZEER 248,626 - 255,301 -
Debtors, deposits and EUERR - &S
prepayments RIEFTE 139,564 4,388 79,122 19,427
Trading securities R PiEH
(current assets) GrRBEE) 37,449 - 47,212 =
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIS 679,883 1,156 1,753,934 4,834
Creditors, deposits received FEfERZ « B Uk
and accrued charges ReRBERER (98,029) (1,130) = (665)
Trading securities RSEH
(current liabilities) CREham) (59,118) - (49,389) -
Loans from ultimate holding & 432[ A A
company ZER - - = (59,774)
Note payable ARE ST - (42,787) = (99.573)
Net exposure arising from R EHEREE
recognised assets K a B RRER
and liabilities 948,375 8,421,468 2,086,180 1,841,614
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)
An analysis of the estimated change in the Group's profit
after tax (and retained profits) and other components of
consolidated equity in response to reasonably possible
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the balance sheet date is

presented in the following table.

2007
b S
Effect on
Increase/  profit after
(decrease) tax and
in foreign retained
exchange profits

rates HiRBiA
Exth/ BIRRE

34. SR T A ()

SNERER ()
TRAOMAEEREEABRAR
EEEEARBMNEXRHRSET
BEREBR  ARERBZAT
(RIRBEF)) A RERE e E AR
FEB S 2 TaRT

2006
“ERAE
Effect on
Effect on Increase/ profit after Effect on
other (decrease) tax and other
components in foreign retained  components
of equity exchange profits of equity

HEREM rates  HEBHK  HEDEM
ampe  EXLH/  RARRE  AREHD

(T BingsE (k) BEing2 a7

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT BT

United States Dollars, USD 71 1% 9,484 - 1% 20,862 -
(1%) (9,484) - (1%) (20,862) -

Renminbi, RMB ARE 7% 10,123 579,379 7% 320 128,594
(5%) (7,231)  (413,842) (5%) (228) (91,853)

The above analysis assumes the change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the balance sheet date
and had been applied to each of the Group entities’
exposure to currency risk in existence at that date while
all other variables remains constant. The stated changes
also represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in foreign exchange rates until the next
annual balance sheet date. The Hong Kong dollar and
the United States dollar peg is assumed to stay materially
unaffected by any fluctuation United States dollar against

other currencies.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as trading securities
(see note 20), available-for-sale (see note 15) and financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss (see
note 16). Other than unlisted securities held for medium-
to-long term investment purposes, all of these investments

are listed.

The Group's listed investments are mainly listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Decisions to buy or sell trading
securities are rested with assigned investment teams
professionals and each investment portfolio is governed
by specific investment and risk management guidelines.
Independent daily monitoring of each portfolio against
the corresponding guidelines is carried out by the Risk
Management and Compliance Department. Listed
investments held in the available-for-sale and financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
portfolio have been chosen based on their medium-to-
long term growth potential and are monitored regularly

for performance against expectations.

The performance of the Group's unquoted investments is
assessed, based on the limited information available to the
Group, periodically against performance of listed entities

of comparable size and nature of businesses.

34. SR T A ()

(e)

B R B
ROBRZHESR(RMEE20) - 4
HHERH (RMFE15) RIKERR
BRENRRAFEENEREE
(RIEE16)MBRRREME @ &K
BAASEREZHNER - R
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FIEZEREYRLEMRE -
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table shows the approximate changes in the
Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) in response
to reasonable change in the relevant listed equity stock prices:

34. SR T A ()

(e)

RERR(E)
TRIFAAEE R A (KR
BREMN REELTRENSES
BTERATE

2007 2006
s £ 3 =
Effect on Effect on
profitafter ~ Effect on profit after Effect on
tax and other tax and other
Increase/ retained  components Increase/ retained  components
(decrease) in profits of equity  (decrease) in profits of equity
equityprice  HERH%  HERHAM  equiypice  HRERE HEREM
RELR/ BARRE apRe  RELH/ EARRE R
(F%) BHNHSE we (TH)  BNHZE LHE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB BB BB
Market price of underlying ~ _ERZEER)

listed equity investments T%E 5% 48,936 226,570 5% 35913 68,711
(5%) (48,936) (226,570) (5%) (35,913) (68,711)

35. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Estimation of fair values

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature,
and are made as of a specific point in time based on the
characteristics of the financial instruments and relevant
market information. Where available, the most suitable
measure for fair value is the quoted market price. In the
absence of organised secondary markets for most financial
instruments, and in particular for unlisted equity and debt
instruments and derivatives, direct market prices are not
available. The fair value of such instruments was therefore
calculated on the basis of well-established valuation
techniques using current market parameters. In particular,
the fair value is a theoretical value applicable at a given
reporting date, and hence can only be used as an indicator
of value realisable in a future sale.
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35. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(a)

Estimation of fair values (continued)

The Group compares valuations derived from models
with quoted prices of similar financial instruments, and
public information available in order to further validate
and calibrate the models. These techniques involve
uncertainties and are significantly affected by the
assumptions used and judgments made regarding risk
characteristics of various financial instruments, discount
rates, estimates of future cash flows, future expected loss
experiences and other factors. Changes in assumptions
could significantly affect these estimates and the resulting
fair values. Derived fair value estimates cannot necessarily
be substantiated by comparison to independent markets
and, in many cases, could not be realised in an immediate
sale of the instruments. The following methods and
significant assumptions have been applied in determining
the fair values of financial instruments:

(i) The fair value of unquoted equity investments is
estimated using an appropriate combination of (1)
discount cash flow method to devolve the future
value of the business into a present market value, (2)
deducing from prices recently paid for similar assets
and the financial indicators of the transacted assets
such as net book value and net operating profit,
and (3) applying, if possible, price/earnings ratios
for similar listed companies adjusted to reflect the
specific circumstances of the issuers;

(i) the fair value of derivatives is estimated either
using broker quotes or by discounting future cash
flows. Future cash flows are estimated based on
management's best estimate of the amount it would
receive or pay to terminate the contract at the
balance sheet date taking into account current market
conditions. The discount rate used is a market rate
for a similar instrument at the balance sheet date.
The fair value of an option contract is determined by
applying the Black-Scholes option valuation model.
Inputs are based on market related data at the
balance sheet date.

3[5. EMIENAFEE®R)

(a)
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35. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
(b) Fair value
All financial instruments are stated at fair value or carried
at amounts not materially different from their fair values as
at 31 December 2007 and 2006.

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash outflow from

3[5. EMIENAFEE®R)

(b) AFEE
ESRIADRUARFEESLE
HR-_ZFTLF+_A=+—HBM
—EERERANRHEEEEHR
TR

36. GREBRSREBRME

PR AT & A AR 2R B 2 B R R R
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operating activities: HERK
2007 2006
—BELHF —ZTN
HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BT

Profit before taxation M B &2 A 5,463,148 1,010,292
Interest income on bank deposits ~ RITERREEA K

and finance lease T2 A (71,514) (101,032)
Interest expenses FE X H 122,780 62,217
Dividend income RESLION (71,654) (44,945)
Gain on deemed disposal of FELHERENT

interests in associates AT (924,503) -
Share of profits less losses FEAG B & R Bl B A

of associates EE (2,906,226) (538,194)
Depreciation and amortisation WENEBEER 7,082 4,596
Staff share option amortisation RN AR 5 6,915 14,921
Realised gain on financial asset Y5 7E iR iR 18 25 DA R Bk

designated at fair value NBENEREE

through profit or loss E BRI (215,632) -
Unrealised gain on financial asset 15 7F AR B85 A <

designated at fair value ANHEENTREESR

through profit or loss BEMRER K (192,428) (30,910)
Unrealised gain on notes payable  EMZIEA R EARTIEUES (56,786) =
Net gain on disposal of HEBHIEEERFFRE

available-for-sale securities (610,149) (323,174)
Surplus on property revaluation YIS E(HIGE (2,400) -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEBTEEZEBE

fixed assets (W) 876 (51)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR &R (228,865) -
Surplus on revaluation of investment & & ¥ & (HI1EE

properties 1,642 (368)
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 36. iR ERERMT (B

STATEMENT (continued)
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Cash inflow before working capital ‘&iEE & EBFIEREHA
changes 322,286 53,352
Increase in advances to customers &P {E g0 (699,336) (309,358)
Increase in debtors, deposits FEWERR ~ e RIEF K
and prepayments il (1,001,357) (110,182)
Decrease/(increase) in trading RGFHRL/(38N)
securities 165,690 (203,995)
Increase in creditors, deposits FERERR - ElIES Kk
received and accrued charges BB I 402,473 203,598
Decrease in amount due from FEMERAR AR A A
ultimate holding company NSRS 2,613 =
Decrease in amount due to FER SR AAEAR A R FIB
ultimate holding company o (37) (10)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBNEH (10,542) (16,168)
Overseas profits tax paid EREIMNIEH (11,376) (4,216)
Interest paid BEfNFE (122,756) (62,217)
Net cash outflow from operating BEEBEE 2 RHFRE
activities (952,342) (449,196)
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37. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Business segments

37. EEFR

(a)

The Group conducts the majority of its business activities

in three areas: short-term investments, financial services

and long-term investments plus other operations. An

analysis by business segment is as follows:

EBoE

AEEREEZEBEEAD /=
B RHRE  RRBEMEDR
BENEMETR - mEBHBRZEFR

DATUOR

Long-term investments

Short-term investments Financial services and others Total
rHRE SREH RERER AN At
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ZERLE CERSF CBRtE ZEEF ZBRAE SIS CEELE BT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BeTn AT BMTn  AETr  B¥Tn  AETr  B%Tn AETx
REVENUE WA
Investment income REWA 3,434,804 2,578,075 2,837 5615 340,974 166,123 3,778,615 2,749,813
Interest income FEMA 56,112 46,326 277912 119,506 12,429 55851 346,453 221,683
Commission and service G TION
income - 398 311,088 122,592 - 107 311,088 123,097
Net gain on disposal of HERREESR
available-for-sales palic:
securities - - - - 610,149 - 610,149 -
Realised gain on financial T AERERN
assets designated REATEES
at fair value through TREEDER
profit or loss K& - - - - 215,632 - 215,632 -
Unrealised gain on EEARBREN
valuation of financial RBATEES
assets designated PHAEE(EE
at fair value through WAEBIE
profit or loss - - - - 192,428 - 192,428 -
Gain on disposal of tH R 8 A
subsidiaries - - - - 228,865 - 228,865 -
Other income kA 2,985 - 3,088 - 19,221 10,123 85,300 10,123
Total revenues BRA 3493901 2624799 594,925 247,713 1,679,704 232204 5,768,530 3,104,716
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37. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)

37. ZERE R (4)
(a) HBHE()

Long-term investments

Short-term investments Financial services and others Total
BHRE SRS RERERH At
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
CEEtE “EE5F CZEEtE —S55F CERtE CIESF CEELE —F%5E
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETR  BETr  R%Tn A%t BETn  A¥Tr  B¥Tn AETr
RESULTS 5
Segment results VES 854,482 374420 366,257 132965 777,768 143,671 1,998,507 651,056
Unallocated corporate APENDTER
expenses (243,308)  (116,741)
Operating profit TSR 1,755,199 534315
Finance costs HEER (122,780)  (62,217)
Gain on deemed disposal of ~ FEEHEBENT
interests in an associates R B 924,503 -
Share of profits lesslosses ~ [E(EBE A AIER
of associates HER 2,906,226 538,194
Income tax A (197,724)  (88,338)
Profit after taxation g ET 5,265,424 921,954
OTHER INFORMATION RftEs
Segment assets AEBE 2,857,442 2560108 2,796,484 993,986 10,053,443 2,874,558 15,707,369 6,428,652
Investment in associates BENFZHRE 4,470,959 1,681,468
Unallocated corporate assets ~ RATRIAEIEE 107,871 257,257
Total assets BEE 20,286,199 8,367,377
Segment liabilities AEARE 210,395 85,362 700,332 323,065 487,943 343,194 1,398,670 751,621
Unallocated corporate APRMATER
liabilities 1,389,945 985,589
Total liabilities Bafk 2,788,615 1,737,210
Capital expenditures ERlYH 100 - - 399 15777 137,010 15877 137409
Depreciation and amortisation  HER#HEH
expenses 665 397 377 9 6,040 4103 7,082 4,596
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37. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 37. 7 EER (@)
(b) Geographical segments (b) #HEHIE

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2007 31 December 2006
BE-EBLFT-A=T-HIEE BE-TE\F+-A=t-HLLFE

Hong Mainland Hong Mainland

Kong China Total Kong China Total
R PEIRE &t &8 TER CH

HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
A®Tn  BRTR  BMTR  EARTr  EARTR  ERTR

Segment revenue il ON
Tumover BER 3,616,101 821,704 4,437,805 1,903,063 869,370 2,772,433
Other income HipA 896,977 433,748 1,330,725 332,131 152 332,283
4,513,078 1,255,452 5768530 2235194 869522 3,104,716
As at 31 December 2007 As at 31 December 2006
RZEB+tF+-A=1-H KB F+-A=t-H

Hong Mainland Hong Mainland
Kong China Total Kong China Total
BB HER Bt B FE A =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI
Segment assets PREE 8,192,537 7,514,832 15,707,369 5472382 956,270 6,428,652
Additions to fixed assets PNEETEE 15,780 97 15,877 137,388 21 137,409
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38. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of these accounts and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years
presented. Changes in assumptions may have a significant
impact on the accounts in the periods where the assumptions
are changed. The application of assumptions and estimates
means that any selection of different assumptions would cause
the Group's reporting to differ. The Group believes that the
assumptions that have been made are appropriate and that the
accounts therefore present the financial position and results
fairly, in all material respects. Management discussed with the
Audit Committee the development, selection and disclosure of
the Group's significant accounting policies and estimates and

the application of these policies and estimates.

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i)  Advances to customers
Advances to customers are reviewed periodically
to assess whether impairment losses exist. The
Group makes judgement as to whether there is any
objective evidence that an advance is impaired,
i.e. whether there is a decrease in estimated future
cash flows. If management has determined, based
on their judgement, that objective evidence for
impairment exists, expected future cash flows are
estimated based on historical loss experience for
assets with similar credit risk characteristics. Historical
loss experience is adjusted on the basis of the
current observable data. Management reviews the
methodology and assumptions used in estimating
future cash flows regularly to reduce any difference

between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

38. EEHAET R A

RS MR - EREVAELE
TERNUFMHERROAY - HREE
ENBBESRENAREERAERES
FENGBMEE  AKTFAEELET
CHMEFEARARTHERETE
BT RRE - B UL ERE - A
RESHEL BRNENREMM B RRELE
EXZTE - FABSFHEREMGEEBK
EERATRANKE  ARERRENE
HESHEMTRE - AEERSEFEHE
SR ALESESERER - MR
I BE R 3 [ BR AN B O B BUW L AN 3
B EEECHEERZB RN ERA
SEEZSABREMAFTHHE - EEF
MIRE - AR FHR R AR -

(a) EEFBREERZNEZRR
T RERZN At E EHRRMA
T

) FEFEHX

B ERETE B A S E
EBELTEM TR - AEEF
ZHE A B EAIFEER AT
HRABRNEESL TR - Al
At RRRSREARD - &
B I B AR R E A EUR TR E
MEBERFE  BQRESE
TEEMAEIRRKES - bAfG
SHREIS GRS - MILEE
ENEERREFEREERR
RrEAEE o AER KGRI
B ATH AT R E R R ERIEL
AE - BEENS TSR
PAMEET R & A T A MR
E R A AEHER EER
BRZENER -
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38. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Unlisted investments

The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale
securities and other non-trading securities are
significantly affected by the combination of valuation
methodologies employed, the parameters used
and, if required, the underlying sample chosen.
The valuation methodologies and the source of
parameters adopted by the Group are discussed in
note 35(a)(i).

Unquoted derivatives

The fair value of Principal Guarantee Note (“PGN")
(note 20(i)) depends upon the underlying option value
estimation and the application of discount rate on the
Group's future payment obligations. Key parameters
using in PGN's valuation include the volatility of
China Mobile share price, the volatility of the Hang
Seng Index and the expected future interest rate.

Tax provision

The Group's taxation provision is based on
management’s assessment of the estimated
assessable profits for the year taking into
consideration the Hong Kong and, those relevant,

overseas tax legislations.

39. BANKING FACILITIES AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Aggregate banking facilities of the Group as at 31 December
2007 amounted to approximately HK$170 million (2006:
approximately HK$269 million). None of these facilities were
utilised (2006: None).
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38. EEHhE R A ()

(a) fEFFTFBERENEZEFRRGE)

(i) FFLETRE
FEMZEHEEEFEEM
HERFGEFZAFERRE
MR BIFFRAZBET X
ERZHBBE(IFER)FMEE
MERTE - BREAKEPK
Rz BETERSIECEME
35(a)()/EH TR °

(i) FEEMPTAETA
RAZE(M7E200) 2 A FE
EREFTRA EERER
RSB AR 2 FFAEERE
Rz AR o RARZE(HEF
FItAz T EHEREFRZ
BIRE IR - BERH K
8 B SR A 2 2 TR o

(iv) FHIEEE
REBEZ HIBEFHEENE R
BEERTNERESEA
ZBINEBSEBIERTHR ©

39. RITEREEREEKH
REER—_ZTEZLtF+_A=T—HZ
RITEREENRBEE17ET(ZET
JNEE B2 6918 TT) - NEENER
WEFEATANERBEE(ZTT A F
) o
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40. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

(a)

(b)

Disposal of financial assets

In January 2008, the Group has disposed of some of
its listed available-for-sale securities. The aggregated
disposal proceeds amounted to approximately HK$632
million while its fair value as at 31 December 2007 was
approximately HK$734 million. The estimated disposal
profits after deduction of investment cost and estimated
project bonus, is approximately HK$508 million which will
be reflected in the Group’s 2008 consolidated income

statement.

From January to March 2008, the Group has also disposed
of certain unlisted financial assets desginated at fair value
through profit and loss. The aggregated disposal proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$204 million while its fair
value as at 31 December 2007 was approximately HK$205
million. The estimated disposal profits after deduction
of investment cost, as well as estimated profits tax and
project bonus totalling HK$30 million, is approximately
HK$81 million. Taking into account unrealised gains
recorded in 2007 and prior years, an estimated loss of
HK$31 million which will be reflected in the Group’s 2008
consolidated income statement.

Post balance sheet changes in applicable tax rates

On 27 February 2008, the Financial Secretary of the Hong
Kong SAR Government announced his annual Budget
which proposes a cut in the profits tax rate from 17.5% to
16.5% with effect from the fiscal year 2008-09 and a one-
off reduction of 75% of the tax payable for the 2007-08
assessment subject to a ceiling of HK$25,000.

40. EERBERAREH

(a)

(b)

HESHEE

“TENF—R, ARECHE
By LEHHERS - BEHE
Wik Ret KB # 6328 KT
TLEFE+T-_A=+—HBZEENR
FENBETIMET - EFHER
MABRIRE R AR IR B WS E E
BAFAEMS.088TT - ZENBR
RE—ZTN\FHHFEEBHERT °

H-_TZNF-—AE=A, *&H
EHERMDIELTRE S BBER
NRBRAFEENSREE - HAE
HE WS REHKEK2.048T - 1
—ETLF+-A=+—H%HER
R FEKER2.05(87T ° et
EBNHBRRERAN - WA R
BO3BITMAN ST KA R AR ES
®‘HSEK0BIETL - IR T
TERARFEHRSRERATN
e AEE T N\FrHEa1ER
RFTRIR 2 BB /R0.31{8 7T °

EEEEROZERANEZ2H
—EENF_A-++H BFEE
ERFVRARDRERFERE
R ETEEH-_SENE_ZTZT
N BREERIERRFEHEH
17 5% E165% * AR —IRBE
B-ETLET \FERMNMIEN
75% LR A#E#25,0007T ©
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40. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT (continued)
(b) Post balance sheet changes in applicable tax rates
(continued)

The directors estimate that these proposed changes
will result in the opening balances of the Group as at 1
January 2008 being remeasured as follows:

(i)  current tax payable by the Group will decrease by
HK$200,000; and

(i) the Group's deferred tax liabilities will decrease by
HK$12,074,000.

These opening balance adjustments to current and
deferred tax balances at 1 January 2008 will be recognized
as a reduction in the Group's income tax expenses of
HK$203,000 and an increase in the Group's investment
revaluation reserve of HK$12,071,000. It is impracticable
to further estimate the impact on future financial
statements of the change in tax rate.

41. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
As a result of adopting HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
disclosure, and the amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements: Capital disclosures, certain comparative
figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in
disclosures in the current year and to show separately
comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed for the
first time in 2007. Further details of these developments are

disclosed in note 2(z).
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40. EERBERARENH®)

(b)

EERBEXRARERREZEH
(#%)

BE=hEt 0 AFEREDHSEH
AEER—_ZFTNF—A—HZH
VESRENTE - FBWOT

() AEEREMAMBIERRDE
#200,0007T ¢ &

(iy AEEELEHREBEEEERE
#12,074,0007C °

A LB AR SRR BEHN —F
TNF—A—BHRVERNAE
K ERRAREMEH RS
75 #203,0007C © ARAEEIRE
Efh#RIE A% 12,071,0007T °
#E— AR BB BRI 5 5
RNFELTYE -

41. EBEF

HMEEMBREENEIRIERMT
B BEIREBSIENSE 1% BBKR
KMET  BARE BETE - AAF
BETETUBET  URAAEER
BEEENEY  URSMER-_TZt
FEABBRENLESE - BHHE
FHAHIEE2()
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42.

43.

ETLFTA=T—HLFE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2007

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretaions which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2007 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Company’s results
of operations and financial position.

In addition, HKFRS 8, Operation segments, which is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009,
may result in new or amended disclosures in the financial

statements.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements on page 65 to 173 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March
2008.

43.

EAEREBE-ZEZLF =
A=t+—HIEFEHMRERZE
A HEAIRREZRERE

U ERRIAE A B HAT - BESEMD
SR T ZREF] - FITEMF R
B FER] - IR ERFREREE—
EZHF+-_A=+—HLEFERKRE
2 BTN AR AR UL FRIA ©

AEBIEET B EERT « FIZEMF
REFEEARBHELNTE -5
BERARMNZEER] « TZEMFZ
BEHEENEERTBRIREEAY
@,

BEAN - BAMBHRE LR FBRI L LD
MI(R=_FFNF—-A—-BLERRAR
ZEFEHRAR) AL S HARIA IR HIE
HANERTHYIEE

BB e
REEHBRRNESEI73AER=
ZEN\FZA-FTLARBEEEHER
TR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
BHE-_ZTLHF+-_A=+—HILFE

RESULTS E5
For the years ended
BETHREZEE
31.12.2003 31.12.2004 31.12.2005 31.12.2006 31.12.2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT e BT BT BETT
Turnover CES] 1,737,827 2,855,444 2,014,112 2,772,433 4,437,805
Operating profit after RERTIR
finance cost B E 197,577 326,264 311,315 472,098 1,632,419
Gain on deemed disposal of EEE HEBENT
interest in associates TS B = = 583 = 924,503
Gain on disposal of interest I ERE AR
in an associate TEZS B = 166,514 = = -
Share of profits less losses of NI
associates RIEHE 157,671 (431,034) 26,467 538,194 2,906,226
Impairment loss on goodwill B NERERE
attributable to interests in EEE
associates - (102,300) - - -
Impairment loss on NGB g
investment in an associate REBE (119,118) = - - -
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEAERN/ (B8) 236,130 (40,556) 338,365 1,010,292 5,463,148
Income tax FRIE (16,749) (11,386) (33,865) (88,338) (197,724)
Profit/(loss) after taxation BEREN/(BE) 219,381 (51,942) 304,500 921,954 5,265,424
Attributable to: EEN:
Shareholders of the RAFIRE
Company 219,560 (59,857) 295,746 878,976 5,005,592
Minority interests DG E RE (179) 7,915 8,754 42,978 259,832
219,381 (51,942) 304,500 921,954 5,265,424
Earning/(loss) per share (HK$) BRAF,/(B8B)(ET) 0.14 (0.04) 0.19 0.56 3.17
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at
RT3 EH
31.12.2003 31.12.2004 31.12.2005 31.12.2006 31.12.2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BETT
Total assets BwEE 5,856,946 5,380,317 5,940,441 8,367,377 20,286,199
Total liabilities BaE (1,116,273) (897,252) (1,048,503) (1,737,210) (2,788,615)
Minority interest LERRIER (218) (16,828) (64,857) (254,847)  (1,138,612)
Shareholders' fund W 4,740,455 4,466,237 4,827,081 6,375,320 16,358,972
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
TEYEER

Site area/Gross

Location floor area Tenure Use
2 i HEEERE B3 i
Hong Kong
BiE
46th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, Gross floor area of 10,800 sg. ft. Government lease for Commercial
16 Harcourt Road 75 years from 23 July 1980,
extended for another 75 years
BREB16%: fEEEE10,800F R BRRALTRF - & [GES
ERGRT L4612 “NW\EFLAZt=HE"
EHLThE
40th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, Gross floor area of 10,800 sg. ft. Government lease for Commercial
16 Harcourt Road 75 years from 23 July 1980,
extended for another 75 years
BRRE16%; fEREEE10,800F AR BFBAL+RF - & [
ERERPL40E “NW\EF+AZt=HE"
AR ThE
Flat A, 27/F, 1 Star Street, Gross floor area of 655 sq. ft. Government lease for Residential
Wanchai 75 years from
22 August 1928
extended for another 75 years
EFEE—5R27A BREER6SST AR BEBA+TRhE B FE
“NZN\ENAZTZRE
RS TIhE
Flat A, 32/F, 1 Star Street, Gross floor area of 655 sq. ft. Government lease for Residential
Wanchai 75 years from
22 August 1928
extended for another 75 years
BIFEH—R32A fEEmEeS5 T IR BB TIF - & £
“hWN\FANAZt_HE"
ESRTTRE
Flat H, 6th Floor, Gross floor area of 1,096 sq. ft. Government lease from Residential
Tower 10 South Horizons, 28 January 1988 to
Ap Lei Chau 31 March 2040
BN ERES BREER,096 T AR BRFRAR—NNE £
FETEOEHE —AZ+/\RZEZZ@NTF

=A=1+—-H
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

ity el
TEMEER
For the year ended 31 December 2007
BHE-_ZTLHF+-_A=+—HILFE

Site area/Gross

Location floor area Tenure Use
B it/ BREEE £ ko
Flat G, 40th Floor and the Roof Terrace, Gross floor area of 2,195 sg. ft. Government lease Residential
Tower 17, South Horizons, 28 January 1988 to
Ap Lei Chau 31 March 2040
BN ERES BREER2,195F AR BRRAR—NNE =
FTRIEGEERAR —AZt\REZZMTF
=H=H—H
Flat H, 22nd Floor, Tower 21 Gross floor area of 1,107 sq. ft. Government lease from Residential
South Horizons, 28 January 1988 to
Ap Lei Chau 31 March 2040
MBS BREER 07T AR BRSO R —NNE =
BT —E2BHE —AZt\RZEZZMTF
=A=1-H
Car Parking SpaceNos. 230 and Not applicable Government lease from Carpark
241 on Podium Level 1, Phase Il 28 January 1988 to
Car Parking Space No. 9 on 31 March 2040
Podium Level 2, Phase lll,
South Horizons, Ap Lei Chau
BRI ERES NER BFASR—NNE B
FUATEFE —A=t/\RZ=ZNTF
F230R241 5 2B ML =RA=1+-8
REIRTAE20BEIRIFEN
Land on Lot No. 539 (portion) Site area of 560 sq. ft New Territories lease Open storage
in Demarcation District No. 106 for 99 years from
Kam Sheung Road, Yuen Long, 1 July 1898 less 3 days,
New Territories extended for another 50 years
ML FBR THIERS60F AR MABONLTIE - B BERE
1065 L2410 —\NN\EER—RBigt
5395 IR W=R - EHAtF
Mainland China
B A
8th Floor, Industrial Gross floor area of 1,240.95 sg.m. Land use right for 50 years Commercial
Bank Building 4013 from 27 December 2000
Shennan Road Futian District,
Shenzhen
AYmiEmE BEEEE,240.95F K TiERELTE [GES
IREIAIBA0135% B-ZTTET_A
BERITAESE iy =)
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